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FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLERMONT COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Federal Grantor/ Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA
Program Title Nurber Number Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster

National School Breakfast Program N/A 10.553 $2,583

National School Lunch Program 04-PU 10.555 14,681
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 17,264
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 17,264
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES
Passed Through Ohio Department of Mental Health:

Social Services Block Grant (Title XX) N/A 93.667 73,340

Medicaid Assistance Program (Title XIX) N/A 93.778 1,163,322

Center For Medical Rehabilitation Research N/A 93.929 131,800

(CMRS Block Grant)

Passed Through Ohio Department of Mental Retardation
and Developmental Disabilities:

Social Services Block Grant (Title XX) N/A 93.667 129,349

Medicaid Assistance Program (Title XIX) N/A 93.778 87,645
Passed Through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:

Block Grants for Prevention & Treatment of Substance N/A 93.959 666,126

Abuse (SAPT Block Grant)

Passed Through Ohio Supreme Court

State Court Improvement Program N/A 93.586 57,417
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 2,308,999
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Disaster Recovery Initiative B-98-DU-39004 N/A 135,000
Passed Through Ohio Department of Development:

Community Development Block Grant N/A 14.228 323,894
Total U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development 458,894
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Drug Court Discretionary Grant Program N/A 16.585 11,269

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant N/A 16.592 32,275

Community Policing Grant (COPS Grants) N/A 16.710 79,629
Passed Through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:

Byrne Formula Grant Program (Drug Control & System Improvement) N/A 16.579 188,730

Juvenile Accountability Incentive Block Grant (JAIBG) N/A 16.523 34,460
Total U.S. Department of Justice 346,363

(Continued)



FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLERMONT COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
DECEMBER 31, 1999

(Continued)

Federal Grantor/ Pass Through Federal

Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA

Program Title Nunber Number Disbursements

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed Through Clermont/Warren Job Training Consortium:
Jobs Training Partnership Act Cluster

Title [l EDWAA 17.246

98 A-98-12-00-02 118,224

99 A-99-12-00-00 185,094
Total Title Il EDWAA 303,318

Title 1l Governor's Reserve 17.246

98 B-98-12-00-00 140,780

99 B-99-12-00-00 47,706
Total Title Il Governor's Reserve 188,486
Total Employment and Training Assistance Title Il 491,804

Title 1A-77% 17.250

96 0-96-12-00-01 30,943

97 0-97-12-00-01 168,299

98 0-98-12-00-01 26,545
Total Title 11A-77% 225,787

Title 11C-82% 17.250

97 Y-97-12-00-01 43,210

98 Y-98-12-00-01 78,976
Total Title 11IC-82% 122,186

Title 11A-5% Older Worker 17.250

97 1-97-12-00-01 1,329

98 1-98-12-00-01 2,481
Total Title 11A-5% Older Worker 3,810

Title IB SYETP 17.250

98 5-98-12-00-01 10,897

99 5-99-12-00-00 313,026
Total Title IIB SYETP 323,923

Title 11A-5% Incentive 17.250

96 3-96-12-00-01 1,102

97 3-97-12-00-00 30,529
Total Title 11A-5% Incentive 31,631

Title 11A-8% Vocation Education 17.250

96 4-96-12-00-01 1,630

97 4-97-12-00-01 23,149

98 4-98-12-00-01 16,575

99 4-99-12-00-01 3,356
Total Title 11A-8% Vocation Education 44,710
Total Jobs Training Partnership Act 752,047
Total Jobs Training Partnership Act Cluster 1,243,851
Total U.S. Department of Labor 1,243,851

(Continued)



FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLERMONT COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Continued)

Federal Grantor/ Pass Through Federal
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA
Program Title Nunber Number Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:
Special Education Cluster

Title VI-B 6BSP-99P 84.027 59,156

Title VI-B 6BSP-00P 84.027 47,337
Total Special Education Cluster 106,493
Passed Through Ohio Department of Health and Human Services:

Early Intervention - Hearing Impaired N/A 84.181 55,194
Passed Through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug
Addiction Services:

Drug Free Schools N/A 84.186 143,500
Total U.S. Department of Education 305,187
U.S DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Transportation:

Highway Planning and Construction N/A 20.205 401,083

Public Transportation for Nonurbanized Areas N/A 20.509 1,042,979
Passed Through Ohio Department of Public Safety:

State and Community Highway Safety N/A 20.600 16,225
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 1,460,287
FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ASSISTANCE
Passed Through Ohio Emergency Management Assistance:

Federal Emergency Management Assistance N/A 83.552 39,220

Hazard Mitigation N/A 83.548 18,832
Total Federal Emergency Management Assistance 58,052
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Passed Through Ohio Environmental Protection Agency:

Nonpoint Source Implementation Grant N/A 66.460 50,464
Total Environmental Protection Agency 50,464
Total Federal Financial Assistance $6,249,361

The accompanying notes to this schedule are an integral part of this schedule.



FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLERMONT COUNTY
DECEMBER 31, 1999
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES

NOTE A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures (the Schedule) summarizes activity of the
County’s federal award programs. The schedule has been prepared on the cash basis of accounting, except
expenditures of assistance passed through the Clermont/Warren Job Training Consortium which are
presented on an accrual basis.

NOTE B - FOOD DISTRIBUTION

Nonmonetary assistance, such as food received from the U. S. Department of Agriculture, is reported in the
Schedule at the fair market value of the commodities received and consumed. Itis assumed federal monies
are expended first. At December 31, 1999, the County had no significant food commodities in inventory.

NOTE C - COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) REVOLVING LOAN PROGRAMS

The County has established a revolving loan program to provide low-interest loans to persons from low
income households for repairs to or replacement of septic systems, completion of septic system installations,
or connection to the public sewer system. The Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD) grants money for these loans to the County passed through the Ohio Department of Development.
The initial loan of this money is recorded as a disbursement on the accompanying Schedule of Federal
Awards Expenditures (the Schedule). Loans repaid, including interest, are used to make additional loans.
Such subsequent loans are subject to certain compliance requirements imposed by HUD, but are not
included as disbursements on the Schedule.

These loans are collateralized by five-year mortgages on the property, amortized monthly. At December
31, 1999, the gross amount of loans outstanding under this program was $200,021. There were no
delinquent amounts due.

NOTE D - MATCHING REQUIREMENTS

Certain Federal programs require that the County contribute non-Federal funds (matching funds) to support
the Federally-funded programs. The County has complied with the matching requirements. The expenditure
of non-Federal matching funds is not included on the Schedule.

NOTE E - SUBRECIPIENTS

The County passes-through certain Federal assistance received from the Ohio Department of Mental Health
and the Ohio Department of Drug and Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services to subrecipients. As described
in Note A, the county records expenditures of Federal awards to subrecipients when paid in cash. Of the
federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the County provided $1,163,322 of Title XIX Medicaid
(CFDA#93.778) funds and $596,126 of Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment (CFDA #93.959) funds
to subrecipients.

The subrecipient agencies have certain compliance responsibilities related to administering these federal
programs. Under Federal Circular A-133, the County is responsible for monitoring subrecipients to help
assure the Federal awards are used for authorized purposes in compliance with laws, regulations and the
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and the performance goals are achieved.



FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLERMONT COUNTY
DECEMBER 31, 1999
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AWARDS EXPENDITURES
(Continued)

NOTE E - TITLE XIX (MEDICAID)

Some of Title XIX (Medicaid) funds passed through the County Board of Mental Retardation and
Developmental Disabilities to providers are considered payment through a vendor relationship with the Ohio
Department of Mental Retardation and Developmental Disabilities and thus are not included on the
Schedule. Those funds which are passed through as a subrecipient relationship are included on the
Schedule. Funds passed through the Community Mental Health Board to providers are considered a
subrecipient relationship and are included on the Schedule.
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STATE OF OHIO 250 West Court Street

2 :
el OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Suite 150 E
P S Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
A
S/ 1M PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE Telephone 513-361-8550

800-368-7419
Facsimile 513-361-8577
www.auditor.state.oh.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE AND ON
INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Clermont County
101 East Main Street
Batavia, Ohio 45103

To the Offices, Boards and Commissions:

We have audited the financial statements of Clermont County, Ohio (the County), as of and for the year
ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated April 28, 2000. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Clermont County Sewer District, which represents all of the assets and revenues
of the Enterprise Fund Type. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has
been furnished to us, and our opinion on the general-purpose financial statements, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for the Enterprise Fund Type, is based on the report of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. However, we noted an immaterial instance of noncompliance that we have reported to
management of the County in a separate letter dated April 28, 2000.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the County’s internal control over financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we noted
a matter involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be a
reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant
deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgement,
could adversely affect the County’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent
with the assertions of management in the financial statements. A reportable condition is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings as item 1999-60413-001.



Clermont County

Report of Independent Accountants on Compliance and on
Internal Control Required by Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that
are also considered material weaknesses. However, we believe the reportable condition described above
is not a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial
reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have reported to management of the County in
a separate letter dated April 28, 2000.

This reportis intended for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, management and

Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

April 28, 2000
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OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
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JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-368-7419
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Clermont County
101 East Main Street
Batavia, Ohio 45103

To the Offices, Boards and Commissions:
Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Clermont County, Ohio (the County) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
1999. The County’'s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and
grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the County’s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the County’'s compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance occurred with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the County’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In
planning and performing our audit, we considered the County's internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
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Page 2

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design
or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the
risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would
be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a
timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no
matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

Schedule of Federal Awards Expenditures

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of Clermont County as of and for the year ended
December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon dated April 28, 2000. We did not audit the financial
statements of the Clermont County Sewer District, which represents all of the assets and revenues of the
Enterprise Fund Type. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us, and our opinion on the general-purpose financial statements, insofar as it relates to the
amounts included for the Enterprise Fund Type is based on the report of the other auditors. Our audit was
performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of federal awards expenditures is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation
to the general-purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

This reportis intended for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners, managementand

Federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

April 28, 2000
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLERMONT COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
DECEMBER 31, 1999

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

(@) Type of Financial Statement Opinion | Unqualified
(d)(@)(ii) Were there any material control No
weakness conditions reported at the
financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(@)(ii) Were there any other reportable Yes
control weakness conditions reported
at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(d)(Q)(iii) Was there any reported material non- | No
compliance at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(@2)(iv) Were there any material internal No
control weakness conditions reported
for major federal programs?
(d)(@Q)(iv) Were there any other reportable No
internal control weakness conditions
reported for major federal programs?
(d)(@2)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance | Unqualified
Opinion
(d)(@)(vi) Are there any reportable findings No
under § .5107?
(d)(2)(vii) Major Programs (list): JTPA Cluster:
Title Il - CFDA #17.250
Title 11l - CFDA #17.246
Highway Planning and Construction
- CFDA #20.205
Public Transportation for Non-Urbanized Areas
- CFDA #20.509
Title XIX - CFDA #93.778
SAPT Block Grant - CFDA #93.959
(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A\B Programs | Type A > $300,000
Type B - all other programs
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? No

11




FINANCIAL CONDITION
CLERMONT COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A -133 § .505
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(Continued)

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

FINDING NUMBER 1999-60413-001

On June 14, 1999, the County Child Support Enforcement Agency (CSEA) fully implemented the Support
Enforcement Tracking System (SETS). SETS is a federally mandated system established to record and
issue child support payments for each county. Since implementation, CSEA has experienced difficulties in
reconciling SETS toits bank accounts and has encountered various errors in relation to disbursements made
by SETS. The State of Ohio is responsible for SETS and has guaranteed funds to correct all errors with the
system.

The County CSEA receives payments for child support and enters the data into SETS. CSEA has various
monitoring controls in place to ensure that accurate data are input into SETS. At the time of payment, it
becomes the responsibility of the State to ensure that accurate payments are made to the guardian of the
child or children. However, many errors have come to the attention of CSEA that have been attributed to
SETS and not CSEA.

We recommend CSEA and the State continue to coordinate their efforts to eliminate the cause of errors and
correct the limitations imposed on the reconciliation process.

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None
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LINDA L. FRALEY o - w

Clermont County Auditor_

101 E. Main Stréet. . .
Batavia, Chio 45103-2961 .

Lo

To the Citizens and Board of Comimissioners
of Clermont Gounty, Ohio: April 28, 2000

We are pileased to present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for Clermont County, Chio.
This report, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999, contains the financial statements and ofher financial
and statistical data that provide a complete and full disclosure of all material financial aspects of the County.
The responsibility for the accuracy of all data presented, its completeness and faimess of presentation rests
with the County Auditor's Office.

This report presents the financial activity of the County in conformity with general accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other
recognized authoritative sources.

The CAFR is organized in three sections: the Introductory Section, the Financial Section and the Siatistical
Section. The introductory Section contains a table of contents, letter of transmittal, organization chari, list of
elected officials and a Certificate of Achievement for Excelience in Financial Reporting for the 1998 CAFR.
The Financial Section contains the general purpose financial statements and relevant suppiemental financial
statements and schedules, as well as the independent accountant's report on these Financial Sections and
Schedules for Clermont County. The Statistical Section {which is unaudited) provides selected financial,
economic and demographic information which may be used to indicate trends for comparaiive fiscal periods.

The County of Clermont is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the

Single Audit Act of 1884 and the ().3. Office of Management and Budget's Circular A-133, Audits of State and
Local Information related {o this single audit, including a schedule of federal financial

assistance, the independent auditor's reports on internal controis and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, and a schedule of findings and questioned costs are included in a separately issued single audit
report.

While this report accurately presents the financial statements and statistics of Clermant County, it only reflects
a small segment of the entire communily -~ a2 community that includes many businesses, quality school
systems, a fine park district, library system, Clermont College (a branich of the University of Cincinnati) and
several industrial parks.

REPORT ENTITY

The County was formed by an action of Arthur St. Clair, the first governor of the Northwest Territory in 1800,
The elected three-member Board of County Commissioners funclions as the legislative and executive branch
of the County, Each commissioner serves a term of four years. In addition to the County Auditor, who serves
as chief fiscal officer, there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom operate
independently as set forth by Ohio law. The officials are: Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prasecuting
Attormney, Recorder, Sheriff and Treasurer. All of these officials serve four-year terms. The following judges
are elected on a county-wide basis to oversee the County's judiciat systern: Three Common Pleas Court
Judges, one Domestic Relations Court Judge, one Probate/Juvenile Court Judge and two Municipal Court
Judges. Judges are elected to six year terms.

The County provides general govermmental services to its citizens which include: tax collection and
distribution, public assistance, health assistance, community refated services, civil and criminal justice
sysiems, road and bridge maintenance, sewer and water line construction and maintenance and other general
administrative support services. The County also operates water suppiy and sewer treatment systems.

{513)732-7150 & FAX (b13}732-7849

®



The County's reporting entity has been defined in accordance with Govemnmmental Accounting and Standards
Board Codification, Section 2100, The financial statements contained within this Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report include alt funds, account groups, agencies, boards and commissions for which the County
elected officials are financially responsible. A complete discussion of the County's reporting entity is provided
in Notes A and B to the combined financial statemenis.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND QUTLOOK
Summary of Local Economy

Clermont County continued its position of rapid growth In 1999, Woods and Poole, Inc. based in Washington,
D.C., ranks Clermeont County third in projected population growth in Ohio for the period 1997-2005, as
compared o the other 87 counties in the state. It also projects Clermont County to be the third fastest growing
county employment-wise in the state through the year 2005. The county unemployment rate of 3.7% at
Deacember 31, 1999 compares to 4.3 % for the State of Ohio and 4.2% for the United States.

The Clermont tax base includes 55 companies with 100 or more employees inciuding Cinergy Corporation
(Greater Cincinnati} - 4,645 employees, Cincinnati Bell Telephone (Greater Cincinnati) - 2,700 employees,
Cincinnati Milacron - 1,400 employees, Fard Motor Company - 1,275 employees, Structural Dynamics
Research Corpoeration (SDRC) - 1,200 employees, US Precision Lens, Inc. - 1,000 employees, and Clermont
Mercy Hospital — roughly 700 employees. )

In the industrial areas covered by the Rural Enterprise Zone Act, which provided tax incentives, there have
been 8 projects approved for a total investment of more than $292.8 million with 485 jobs retained in Ohio and
179 jobs created in 1999, according to the Clermont Chamber of Commerce. This brings the total investment
since 1988 io over $1,806 million, the total number of Ohio jobs refained to 12,372 and tolal jobs created to
5,002.

Clermont County has experienced substantial growth in the last fwo decades, aided by the completion of I-275
and the opening of 1-471 between 1-275 and downtown. With the increased accessibility, a pro-business
environment and an abundance of low-cost available property, Clermont County continues fo flourish in
residential and commercial growth.

Commercial and retail expansion in Clermont County not eligible for tax incentives continues to expand.
Clermont County has several large employment centers with a diverse concentration of companies. Located
at the corner of Wards Corner and [-275, the Wards Corner Business Park covers 77 acres, and is home to
the research and development center for Intemational Paper. Additionally, there are five other buildings in the
park that house office, light manufacturing, sales, and distribution firms. The fastest growing area for retail
shopping is located off State Route 28, just northeast of Milford. Developed by the Myers Y. Cooper
Company, the Mulberry Square shopping center is anchored by Sears and Kroger.

One of the largest high-tech research parks in Ohio, is located on a 455 acre campus at the intersection of
-275 and US 5§0. Park 50 TechneCenter is home {o more than 145 companiss which employ over 3,800
individuals. More than 50 percent of these companies are high-tech, including Structural Dynamics Research
Corparation, Zonic Corporation, Computer Technology Corporation, International TechneGroup, Inc and
BASF. The focal peoint for Clermont County’s retail sxpansion continues to be the Eastgate area. Located
at the intersection of 1-275 and State Route 32, development continues at a rapid pace. Bigg's Place Mall
recently completed a $6 million upgrade, and several large discount retailers have also taken advantage of
the area’s rapid population growth, housing increases, and strong community demographics.



Future Economic Qutlook

Ciermont County's General Fund year end fund balance continues to remain healthy. The County continues
to maintain a significant General Fund balance that should allow the County to meet the increasing demands
for General Fund expenditures without facing shortages in resources. The $16.6 million unreserved and
undesignated fund balance at December 31, 19599 represents approxumately 51% of 1959 General Fund
expenditures and other financing uses.

The real property tax revenues of the General Fund are derived entirely from inside millage (unvoted millage).
The revenue structure of the General Fund is balanced so that the operation of the County is not overly
dependent on one specific revenue source. This diversified revenue stream has provided an equitable means
of generating reventues necessary for the operation of the offices administered by the elected officials, as well
as for mandated contributions for welfare costs and discretionary grants to certain county organizations and
special districts.

With the diverse Southwest Ohio economy, the prospects for 2000 and beyond ook promising. Clermont
County’s inclusion in the Greater Cincinnati Metropolitan area has been a key factor in the population growth
that has been experienced in the past two decades. The County will continue to provide this area with an
environment that offers the benefits of small town and/or country living within minutes of a large urban
environment.

MAJOR COUNTY INITIATIVES
Current Year Projects

Auditor: As required by Chio faw, the Auditor’s office updated 1999 taxable real estate valuations on more
than 65,000 parcels. The triennial real estate value update was a statistical analysis based on sales trends
from 1996, 1997, and 1998, as well as general economic conditions such as interest and inflation rates. The
Auditor’s office was able to perform the 1999 triennial update study in-house, sawng the county the expense
of an outside appraisal company.

The GIS {Geographical Information Sysiem} project goal for 1888 was to make GIS information easily
available through the use of public terminals. Achigving this goal would pave the way for phasing out several
hundred tax map, plat and survey books. The Audifor's office offered computer training, which many title
searchers and surveyors tock advantage of, with most sessions filled to capacity. The next phase will be
public internet access to the tax map and real estate information.

Building Inspection: One stop Shopping, a customer-oriented way of doing business, was bom in the 1990s
and continued to grow throughout the decade. New computer software from Hansen Information
Technologies is now installed on department terminals. This new software will further link us to the Clermont
County Auditor's Office and their parcel system for quick access to parcel numbers and addresses.

One application is being used for all inspection requests, eliminating the multiple forms that used to
characterize the process. The exception fo this rule comes with obtaining septic system and piumbing
permits; these are obtained through the General Health Disirict co-located at Permit Central

In 1999, it was defermined that this depariment wili be a pilot site for activity based costing. To operate more
efficiently, building inspection will be making a determination of actual operation cosis by momtonng their
time involved with each duty. -~ )
Municipal Court. Through community service placements offenders assisted forty-seven (47} government
and non-profit agencies in Clermont County and the surrounding counties. The daily “work crew” provided
labar to a wide variety of work sites that included: schools, park districts, County maintenance programs, and
disaster relief efforts. The work crew collected 4,556 bags of litter over a stretch of 354 miles of County and
township roadways in 1998. The Municipal Court ordered 1,674 misdemeanor offenders to compiete
community service work. A totai of 34,479 community service hours were performed in 1989.



The Municipal Court continued to utilize Intensive Supervision Frobation (ISP) funded through a grant from
the Ohio Department of Rehabilitation and Corrections. The ISP Officer closely monitors high risk
misdemeanor offenders through a more structured level of supervision. The program provides increased
reporting requirements, home and employment contacts and monitoring of treatment conditions. Eighty-one
{81) offenders were placed on {nfensive Supervision Probation for the year.

To address offenders whose crimes are primarily a result of alcohol and drug additions, the Court
implemented Intensive Treatment Probation {ITP). The ITP Officer closely monitors treatment conditions by
way of increased office visits, drug screens and review hearings scheduled twice a month before the
Magistrate. During 1999, fifty-nine (59) offenders were placed on Intensive Treatment Probation. '

Treasurer. The Treasurer’s Office collected approximately $140 million dollars in real estate taxes and $1.5
million in manufactured home taxes as of the end of December 1893. The Treasurer’s office worked very hard
and is proud fo report & real estate delinguency rate of only 3%. A total of 67 real estate foreclosures were
filed in 1989, . '

Emergency Planning & Operations: The department moved closer to making the 800 MHz public services
communications system a reality during 1999. The 800 MHz system will include the completion of seven
new communications sites to speed communications and ensure that dispatches reach the entire county.
Construction on the system continued through 1999, it is estimated that the project will be completed in the
fall of 2000. Upgrades to the Department's Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) and Records Management
Systems (RMS) are integrally linked to this project, creating a comprehensive public safety information
network.

Clermont County applied for and subsequently received support from the Federal Emergency Management
Agency {FEMA) for its Project Impact initiative: Project Impact supplies federal dollars and resources to help
communities identify and resolve issues before an emergency to reduce subsegquent losses to the community.
Only one community in each state is selected for this annual program. Previous reciplents in Ohio included
Licking County and Springfield Township {(Hamilton County). '

Department of Human Services: With the implementation of Welfare Reform, there have been dramatic
changes in the overall operation of DHS. DHS now has the opportunily to receive block grants to develop
focal programs that are designed to meet the needs of the local area. The framework for determining the
-needs of the local area has been broadened to include partnerships with private sector businesses and
community organizations.

The Collections Branch of Child Support processed over $31.8 million in child support payments, more than
a 6% increase from 1998, Clermont County CSE collected 91% of all current child support orders for fiscal
year 1999. (The state average for collecting current child support is 71%.) We continue to receive excellent
state performance audit reviews. In 1999, we received 100% rating in six out of seven categories. As aresult
of our outstanding performance the division earned 100% funding from state and federal resources for
exceeding performance measures in all five incentive categories. Clermont County CSE was honored by the
request of Ohio Child Support Directors’ Association {OCDA) to represent the district as President of the
Association.

Engineer: The Engineer’s office is a member of Safe Communities. This is @ commitiee that has been
organized to educate the public to reduce fatalities and accidents on roadways in the county. The total
number of accidents in the county has decreased in 1989. The department has received a grant for $10,000
from the Ohio Department of Public Safety. This allows the department to perform a “Guardrail Inventory and
Hazard Study” to aid in prioritizing and planning for the placement of guardrail.



During 1899, the Engineer’s office completed the following road and bridge projects: Amefia Olive Branch
Road — A turn lane has been added to better serve the entrance to Amella High School (West Clermont
School Board funded the project); Bach Buxton Road — Improvemenis have been made to connect State
Route 125 to State Route 32 by extending existing Bach Buxton Road, crossing Shayler Road and connecting
to existing Elick Lane; Bear Creek Road - Landslide corrections had to be made after the heavy rains of
March 1997 (The department managed the project which was funded by Washington Township, National
Resource Conservation Service and Ohio Emergency Management Association); Marian Drive — An exiension
of Marian Drive connects from the existing roadway to Eastgate Woods Apariment complex.(This allows
access to the signalized intersection of State Route 32 and Elick Lane); Bethel Maple Road - replacernent
of a 12 ton bridge; Cole Road — replacement of a 25 ton bridge; Miller Road and Mullen Road — replacernent
of concrete creek crossings with bridges; Olive Branch Stonelick Road — replacement of a 3 ton bridge;
Stenelick Williams Comer Road — stream revetment project for which Clermont County received a Cincinnati
Preservation Award and Twelve Mile Road — replacement of a closed steel truss bridge that was builtin 1892.

Departmental focus

Each year the we focus on the operation and accomplishments of a particular department. This year's
department is Community Planning and Development.

Community Planning and Developrnent provides planning assistance to the pubiic, local governments and
county agencies, they approve subdivision plans, advise townships on zone changes, facilitate long range
pianning goals for Clermont county and overall improve the guality of life for county residents through planning
and implementing development strategies.

in 1998, the County Commissioners approved the allocation of $753,000 in federai Community Development
Block Grants for the following projects: the purchase of radio equipment for the 800 MHZ system, $594,323;
Williamsbhurg Sanitary Sewer Repalr/RepIacement $123,500; Fair housing project, $7,000; Project
administration, $28,177. .

Also, an additional nine Enterprise Zone agreements were approved in 1999. Agreements provide local tax
incentives in exchange for commitment to locate new businesses or expand existing ones in the county. Four
agreements brought expansion of existing business, and five brought in new businesses. The agreements
will add 188 and retain 338 jobs over the next three years, generating over $17,685,218 in new investment.
The Tax Incentive Review Council (TIRC) met in April, 1999 for its annual review of agreements. It
recommended to continue enterprise zone agreements with all but four companies.

The Clermont County Planning Commission approved fifteen new subdivisions and nineteen additions fo
existing subdivisions in 1989. These subdivisions were reviewed to ensure compliance with the Clermont
County Subdivision Regulations. These regulations ensure development will occur in an orderly fashion and
will benefit to the residents who live there. The Clermont County Planning Commission also advised 10
townships on 68 zoning cases. These cases involved both change of zoning request and zoning code
amendrments.

The Clermont County Planning Department continued to work on the new Subdivision Regulations. With
additional staff, the department completed a rough draft currently being reviewed by the Commission. This
draft will update current regulations to reflect current planning practices and will streamline the approval
process.



In September of 1997, the Village of Neville received approval for $727,650 from the Federal Emergency
Management Agency and $231,000 in Community Development Block Grant funds for flood mitigation in the
village, with the county acting as agent. In 1999 the county completed Neville Phase |. During this phase
owners of 24 properties were given the option of selling properties to the village or having property elevated.
This phase resuited in 11 properties being acquired, 3 being elevated, and 11 being demolished. The county
is now working on Neville Phase Il. For this phase the village received $801,742 from the Federal Emergency
Management Agency, $125,000 from the Community Development Block Grant, and $395,548 from the State
of Ohio with the county again acting as agent. In 1999, the couniy wide flood mitigation project began
planning the acquisition of fifteen properties, the flood proofing of fifty-five properties, and the elevation of
thirty-two properties.

Future Projects

The 800 MHz public services communications systermn is well under way. I[n June, the Board of
Commissioners accepted a bid from Motorola, Inc. for awide-area 800 MHz tunked radio system to support
county voice radio, paging, and mobile data communications. The upgrade will include a minimurm of seven
new communications sites to speed communications and ensure that dispatches reach the entire county.
Construction on the system continued through the remainder of 1999, and will he completed in the fall 6f 2000.
The 800 MHZ project that began to {ake physical form in 1994 is an expensive one. The $12 million tofal price
tag has been offset In part by a 1997 $1.8 million federal grant from the Department of Justice and $1.3
mitlion in Community Development Block grant funds. While the County will contribute available moneys to
the program, the majority of the project will be financed by the 1999 issuance of $6.5 milfion in tax-exempt
bonds. - - : -

The Board of County Commissioners has initiated a Land Use Vision Pian for the State Route 32 corridor.
Clermont County and the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT }are proposing major capital investments
in transportation projects known as the Family of Projects along the State Route 32 corridor. This area
contains numerous existing developments/investments that would serve as catalysts adjacent to the planned
transportation facilittes. The opportunity to plan for future growth and development that is fiscally responsible
and economically viable is significant. In addition there is tremendous citizen interest and concern about the
impacts of the proposed improvements on existing neighborhoods and future land use.

The County is in the process-of securing funding for the renovation and expansion of the adult detention
facility. The estimated cost of this project is $10,050,000. Grants from the Ohio Department of Rehabilitation
and Correction tfotaling $3,348,000 have been allocated fo the project. The project is currently having studies
completed fo comply with applicable regulations.

Component Units

Clermont County Board of MRDD; Meeting the needs of individuals with developmental disabilities is not
limited to certain hours of the day. Many services are offered around the clock and around the county. As
enrolliment in the Wildey Early Intervention Program continues to grow, the number served in the preschool
nrogram dropped to zero as public schools began serving the preschoolers in home districts.

Clermont County Menta! Health & Recovery Board: Clermont County is a pilot site for a new statewide
information system for reporting mental health and substance abuse services. The system represents amajor
change in how boards and contract agencies do business.



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Accounting System and Internal Controi

The County's accounting sysiem is organized on a "fund” basis. Each fund or account group is a distinct self
balancing accounting entity. The County's day-to-day accounting and budgetary records are maintained on
a basis other than Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAF). For financial reporting purposes, the
accounting records are converied to the modified accruai basis for all Governmental and Fiduciary funds and
the accrual basis for Proprietary funds. On the modified accrual basis, revenues are recognized when
measurable and available, and expenditures are recognized when goods and services are received. On the
accrual basis, revenues are recognized when measurable and earned; expenses are recognized when
incurred.

The basis of accounting and the various funds and account groups utilized by Clermant County are fully
described in Note D of the financial statements. Additional budgetary mformatlon can be found in
Note E.

In developing the Counfy's accounting system, much consideration was given to the adequacy of internal
accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and
(2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for
assets. The concept of reasonable assurance is based on the assumption that the costs of internal
accounting controls should not exceed the benefits expected to be derived.
The County utilizes an accounting system, as well as a system of control, for fixed assets and payrall. These
systerns, coupled with the auditing of each individual voucher prior to payment by the Audltors office, ensure
that the financial information generated is both accurate and reliable. :

Budgetary Controls

The Board of County Commissioners adopted the 1899 annual budget for the County in December, 1998.
All disbursements and transfers of cash between funds require appropriation authority from the
Commissioners. Budgets are controlled at the major account level within a department and fund. All purchase
orders must be approved by department heads and submitted to the County Auditor for processing. The
necessary funds are encumbered and the purchase order released fo the vendors; those purchase orders
which exceed the available appropriation are rejected until additional funds are secured.

General Governmental Functions
General Fund: The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund revenues and expenditures for

the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 and the amount and percentages of increases (decreases) in
relation to the prior fiscal year.



Increase Percent of Increase
Revenues 1999 1998 {Decrease) {(Decrease)
Taxes $23,013,418 $21,435,371 $1,578,047 7.4%
Charges for services 7,094,461 7,454,972 (360,511) 4.8)
Licenses and permits 978,113 915,657 62,456 6.8
Fines and forfeitures 1,284,884 1,153,347 131,537 114
Intergovernmental 3,930,049 3,681,422 248,627 68
Investment eamings 3,594,614 3,265,740 328,874 10.1
Net increase(decrease)
in fair value of
investments (1,412,472) 398,974 (1,811,448) (454.0)
All other revenues 1.315.401 - 2,123,146 . (807.745) (38.0)
TOTAL REVENUES $39,798.468 $40428.629 - ($830.1681) (1.6%)

The 7.4% increase in total Tax revenues resulfed from strong gains in sales fax and general property tax
receipts. Sales tax revenue increased approximately $1.5 million from 1998 {o 1999, while general property
tax revenue increased approximately $288 thousand for the same perlod. Increases in the sales tax revenue
can be atiributed to continued growth in the consumer economy. The increase in general property fax
revenue can be attributed to an increasing property tax base.

The 4.8% decrease in Charges for services revenues can be attributed to a decrease in conveyance fees,
recorder fees, board of election fees, court fees and a decrease in the volume of indirect services provided
by county departments to other county departments. The 6.8% increase in Licenses and permits revenue
was due to an increase in building permits. Fines and forfeitures increased by 11.4% mainly due fo an
increase in collections of court fines. Intergovernmental reveniue increased by 6.5% mainly due to an
increase in payments to the county from the state and local governments. Investment earnings revenue
increased by 10.0% due to a better than average rate of return. Net increase(decrease) in the fair value -
of investments dramatically changed due to a decrease in the market value of investments during 1999. [n
1998, the Bureau of Workmans’ Compensation rebated the county for prior premiums and excess reserves
which accounted for the 38.0% decrease in All other revenue.,

Expenditures 1999 1998 (B:;‘::::e} Perc?gte::;:scsase
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive $11,404,519 $10,457,800 $946,719 9.1%
Judicial 5,770,843 5,560,583 210,260 38
Public safety 13,979,732 13,188,054 790,678 6.0
Health 192,636 290,413 {97.777) (33.7)
Human services 529,415 552,985 .{23,570) {4.3)
Community devefopment 383,400 317,855 65,845 20.7
TOTAL EXPENDITURES $32.260.545  $30,368.380 $1.892,155 82%



The 8.1% increase in Legislative and executive expenditures reflects increased costs in general fund capital
purchases and personal services. The 3.8% increase in Judicial expenditures reflects increased costs for
wages and salaries, contract services, and material and supplies. The Pubiic safety expenditure increase
of 6.0% can be atfributed mainly to an increase in expenditures in the Sheriff and Adult Detention
departments, These increases relate mainly o increased wages and purchased services. Health
expenditures decreased 33.7% in 1999, due o a decrease in Health Grant purchased services. The 4.3%
decrease in Human services expenditures was atiributed to less reliance on Human Services’ grant
purchases. Community development expenditures increased 20.7% due to an increase in purchase
services contracts.

Special Revenue Funds

All Special Revenue Funds, on a combined basis, had an excess of revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses of $910 thousand in 1988. From 1888 to 1999 total revenues and total
expenditures increased by $2.5 miliion. These increases are attributed to lncreased services fo the citizens
of the county in the human services area. -

Debt Service Funds

The fund balance in the Debt Service funds decreased by approximately $40 thousand in 1999, which
decreased the fund balance to $179 thousand.

Capital Projects Funds

The Capital Projects funds recorded revenues and other sources in excess of expendrtures and other uses
by $7.1 million in 1999. _ .

Proprietary Operations
* Enterprise Funds

The Enterprise Funds operated by the County include the Water and Sewer Funds. County
Enterprise Funds operated in 1999, with approximately $26 million in operating revenues and a
resultant net income of $2.2 miliion.

* internal Service Fund _
The Internal Service Funds operated by the County are the Health Insurance Fund, Fieet
Maintenance, the Telephone Company and Workmans’ Compensation. These funds received $8.0.
million in revenues from other County funds for services provided during 1999, and recorded a net
income of $122 thousand. This can be attributed to an increase in services provided to employees
and departments for 1999.

Fiduciaty Operations
At December 31, 1999, assets held in Agency funds totaled approximately $1586 million. These assets were

directly offset by liabilities for amounts due fo other governments other funds, component units and other
liabilities. '



Debt Administration
At December 31, 1999, general obligation bonds outstanding totaled $31,825,000. .

Net General Obligation Bonded Debt - $31,645,217
Net Debt per Capita - $178.8
Net Debt to Assessed Value - 95%

The outstanding debt is primarily related {o repayment of the proceeds of monies used to either construct or
renovate buildings used by the County for its operations, road improvement and communication upgrades.

The County also had $84 million in Revenue Bonds outstanding related to Water and Sewer operations as
of December 31, 1889. These bonds are secured by the revenues of the Water and Sewer operatlons and
do not constitute a general obligation of the County.

The county’s general obligation bond issues are rated A1 by Moody’s Investment Service. The 1893 Water
and Sewer Revenue bonds are rated Aaa based on municipal bond insurance policies provided by AMBAC
Indemnity Corpeoration. The 1984 Sewer Revenue Bonds were not rated and were scild to the Farmers Home
Administration.

Cash Management

The County pools its cash to simplify cash management. Allidle monies are invested, with the eamnings being
paid into the Undivided Interest Agency Fund and then allocated to the General Fund and other qualifying
funds as prescribed by Ohio law. The County invests primarily in Certificates of Deposit, .S. Government
Securities, U.8. Government Backed Securities, Federal agency notes, Mutual Funds, Repurchase
agreements and the State Treasury Asset Reserve Program. Investments are reported at fair value which
is based on quoted market prices. The County Treasurer makes such commitments of County resources only
with federally insured financial instifutions, and with the State of Ohio.

Certain deposits are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust
department or agent but not in the county’s name. The pool of securities so pledged must have a current
market value at least equal to 110% of all public monies on deposit with the depository including the amount
covered by federal insurance.

Risk Management

Clermont County is continuing its efforts to use alternative coverage to get the maximum amount of insurance
coverage for the minimum amount of premiums. In 1999, the County carried comprehensive general liability
including law enforcement liability, blanket crime coverage, public officials liability insurance, fleet insurance,
and a comprehensive boiler and machinery coverage. '

Clermont County enforces a program permitting only those employees with "good driving records"” to operate
any County vehicle. An employee’s driving record is validated through the Ohio Bureau of Motor Vehicles
upon employment and is checked periodically after that.

The County is seif-funded for employee health care benefits. The program is administered by Anthem Biue
Cross Blue Shield, which provides claim review and a proportionate share of coverage. The County's liability
is limited to $100,000 per employee in total per year.,

The County maintains a Workmans’ Compensation Fund for the administration of a Workers' Compensation

program te reduce employee risk, decrease the County’s workers’ compensation liability and to measure and
recover the cost of providing the program to departments of the County
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Included in this report is an Auditor of State unqualified opinion rendered on the County's financial position,
and results of operations, as well as its existing assets and liabilities, as reported in the combined financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 1999. An annuai, independent audit of the County's financial
statements is part of the annual preparation of a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This annual,
independent audit continues to provide a review and comments which strengthen the County's accounting and
budgetary confrols.

GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial reporting to Clermont County for its comprehensive annual financial
report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1898. This was the thirteenth consecutive year that
the County has achieved this prestigious award. In order o be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a
government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annua! financial
report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and appi:cabie legal
requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA {o determine its eligibility for another certification.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Clermont County is proud to have been one of the first counties in Chio fo prepare a comprehensive financial
report in conformity with generally accepied accounting principles (GAAP)} and the precise guidelines
established by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA).

The preparation of this repert could not have been accomplished without the dedicated effort of a number of
empioyees within the County Auditor's Office and the audit division of the Auditor of the State of Ohio. We
also extend appreciation to the County's other elected officials and department heads for their contributions
and continued support of this project. In addition, we would also jike to acknowledge the Ciermont Vjsxtor 5
Bureau and Ink Well for the completion of this year’s cover.

I would especially like to recognize Charles F. Tilbury, Jr., Chief Deputy Auditor, Christopher T. Mehlman,
Deputy Auditor - Financial Operations and the County Auditor's fiscal department for their dedication toward
the successful completion of this project.

Respectively submitted,

Linda L. Fraley
Clermont County Auditor '
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CaFOIVTT GIBEIM et iiiririeiiccrectianiresnsmsrsrenmsssssar s samsae s senmeerstsanants fsaenr ah s s e ne s min se s es Serimr s s e St Recorder
Albert (Tim) Rodenberg, Jr ....cccomeveeeeen- eevertterremntnanrsee————————onseeeacomarrsynnm—.e Sheriff
J. Robert True ........... caamn . = ceettemireenstmmeserrommsrseteanereabanrs e eenn e s r————— — Jreasurer

TWELFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS:

Steve Powell ..ocenecieevancees A b 7 Rt S SRS R E RS £ E 8 AT SRR bk S ba e S Re Sy o e Judge
Anthony Valen ......... et b b e S S S HE SR SRS B R EE T £ BRN 44 B kAR b byt Judge
Robert Walsh .....ocorimieerrsceieresse s Mttt Rk £ B S R e e e s w o Judge
RVATA1 1 T ST €T oo U P VU OO U VY - Judge

COMMON PLEAS COURT:

General Division: } .

Robert P. RINGIANG ..o e cccrreeeermessarsamrseresssses reessenssrmsrnnrereneeensssames, AGMiNistrative and Presiding Judge
JEITY R IVICBIIAR ...t ceeeeerevcescerecsmmermecese e eecssmr e e e ammere st ms e st mn n s bamm et e s $ 4 4 s mar e S s nma oo pmmmnts b emmm s Judge
William Walker ...ovccreeeicirencessrrssnersreesraraees . rreieesserasssesnmsssseintremssEressuanensaEEetiaeasEy ennnssrnas Judge

Domestic Relations Division: _ - -
Michael J. VOris ..occoirmeeeciinrmiaene U reesarrirseeseranrsasmnsotruenras et sanenaennanes Judge

Juvenile and Probate Divisions: 7 _
Stephanie Wyler .......... i etnes s b 4 SR b RS 448 M £ S e & eSS e e aans ne s aman e Judge

MUNICIPAL COURT:

Thomas B. HErMAN ... tsemre e rermimm s etennec s s e ramenene e ssmenas sessenreenner. A ININISTrative Judge
James A. Shriver ........ . teeieeesememeeestrninreruesdtoanes ot are et mn et s ernndeomenn ra s - Judge
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Certificate of

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to : - -

~ Clermont County,
Ohio
For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 1998

A Certificate of Achievernent for Excelience in Financial
Reporting Is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive arnual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest .
standards irn government accournting
and financial reporting.
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250 West Court Street

STATE OF OHIO : - " Suite 150 E _
OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Cincinnati, Ohie 45202

. Telephone 513-361-8550
Jiv PETRO, AUDITOR QF STATE _ , 800-368-7419

Facsimile 513-361-8577
www.auditor.state.ch.us

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Clermont County
101 E. Main Street
Batavia, Ohio 45103

To the Offices, Boards and Commissions: -

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of Clermont County, Ohio, {the
County) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, as listed in the table of contents. These general-
purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the County's management. Our responsibility is o
express an opinion on these general-purpose financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of the Clermont County Sewer District, which represents all of the assets and revenues
of the Enterprise Fund Type. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinion on the general-purpose financial statements, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for the Enterprise Fund Type, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An auditalso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In cur opinion, based on our audif and the reports of other auditors, the general-purpose financial statements
referred io above present fairly, in ail material respects, the financial position of Clermont County, as of
December 31, 1999, and the results of its operations and cash flows cf its proprietary fund types for the year
then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 28, 2000,
on our consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporiing and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purpose financial statements
of the Countly, taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements
and schedules listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not
a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general-purpose financial statementis taken as a
whole.

15



Clermont County
Report of Independent Accountants
Page 2

We did not audit the information included in the introductory and statistical section of this report and
therefore express no opinion thereon.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

April 28, 2000
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIC
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

DECEMBER 31, 1999

L3

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES PROPRIETARY
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Project Enterprise
Assets and other debits '
Assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents............. $15,387,958 $14,462,325 $239,946 $16,805,662 $7,679,223
Cash equivalents in segregated accounts......ceeee s _ -0 0 2,285 0 3,100,101
Investments in segregated accounts.......... ¢] 0 o . 0 54,286,614
Cash with fiscal and escrow agents.... S -0 0 .0 o L5 ¢
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectxbles) - -
Taxes......--- 9,728,843 4,735,152 0 3 208, 539 0
Special assessments.......... 0 , 0 4,555,244 0
Accounts, 61,396 232,708 0 125, 130 4,108,631
Interfund... £2,510 0 0 758,823
Accrued mteresL 752,765 31,530 0 ‘51, 131 0
Due from other funds . 388,866 254,688 13,869 141,723 4]
Due from primary government......cc.cmmrervrms 0 0 0 0 0
Intergovemnmental recaivable.....co e cccccrsevsreereeeeees 107,130 851,062 0 0 0
Inventory of sUpPIiEs at COSE....urrerreecece s venesaseeceas .0 0 o 0 214,506
Grants receivable............. 0 o0 0 0 224,988
Loans receivable -0, 200,021 0 0 880,760
Prepait 8XpenSes... ... e crmerssssvnssssemmeresrmerres - _0__ 0 0 0
Restricted Assets: '
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents........... 0 0 0 v 600
Held by trustee:
Cash equivalents in segregated accounts............ o . 0 0 0 719,729
Investments in segregated accounts .......cccerreue o 0 0 ) 0 14,655,200
Retainage acCoUmS ........oevvmeeecrmmmissmssmsnerarmeres 0 0 0 0 - B2,902
Accrued interest..... _ t] 0 0 0 295,653
Property, plant & equUipmMent. ... comermvermvmens 0 0 0 0 297,590,391
Accumulated depreciation..... 0 . 0 0 0 (107,968,579)
Construction in Progress..... s v cerrreerorssmsne —— 0 0 0 o ' 5,553,004
Unamoriized financing costs. ..o mmrermmanees 0 0 ¢ 4] 1,895,648
Other debits:
Amount available in Debt Service for Retirement of -
General Obligations.....v e e eermeerrseiesssomsersmmnrerrneas 4] 0 0 V] 0
Amount available in Debt Service for Retirement of
Special a55es5IMents. ..o rricrerecemermes. g o o ¢
Amount to be provided from General o '
Govermmental ReSQUICES....o.mermvisesesmerersereeneees 0 0 0 0 ) 0
Amount to be provided from Special )
Assessments ReSOUrCes ... iessieems S . 0 . o . 0 0 0
Amount to be provided from Component ,
Unit Resources........occerereeeermreeerrees 0. 0 -0 ) 0 B 0
Total assets and other debits.......c.oovrvveeececceeenrr. $26,490.468  $20,767,486 $4.811,344  $20,333,185 ‘$284 159,084
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FIDUCIARY Totals Totals
FUND TYPES _ FUND TYPE __ACCOUNT GROUPS _ {memarandum {memorandum
General General only) only)
Internal Fixed Long-Term Primary Component Reporting
Service Agency Assets Obligations Government Units Eptity
32,818,472 $9,479,245 $0 $0 $66,872,831 $7.544,261 574,417,092
o 1,103,854 0 0 4,206,280 13,781 4,220,061
4] 0 o 0 54,286,514 0 54,286,514
o 640,734 0 0 840,734 0 640,734
e} 145,272,516 ) 0 162,847,050 7,378,198 170,325,246
G g o 0 4,555,244 0 4,555,244
81,359 0 G Q 4,609,224 38,158 4,647,382
0 ¢ 0 g 821,333 a 821,333
o Q 0 0 835,426 0 835,426
g ¢ ¢ G 799,146 a 759,146
o 0 0 ) 0 227,136 227,136
0 568 0 0 958,760 502,596 1,461,356
o 0 0 0 214,508 1,692 216,198
o 0 0 0 224988 0 224,988
0 0 0 0 1,190,781 Q 1,190,781
0 0 0 0 0 308 308
0 0 0 0 600 0 600
0 0 0 0 719,729 4,572 724,301
0 0 o 0 14,658,200 0 14,656,200
0 G 0 0 52,902 0 52,802
0 0 0 0 295,653 - . 0 205,653 .
183,308 0 50,377,702 0 348,161,401 10,825,316 358,987,717
(55,512) 0 0 0 108,024,091} (38,956)  (108,063,047)
0 0 17,169,322 0 22,722,326 1,858,707 24,681,033
0 0 0 0 1,895,648 0 1,895,648
0 0 0 18,647 18,647 2,748 21,385
] 0 ¢ 161,136 161,138 0 161,136
0 D 0 35,915,157 35,915,157 0 35,915,157
0 ) 0 3,205,864 3,205,864 0 3,205,864
0 0 6 0 0 2,232,815 2,232,815
$3.037,627 3156406057 807,547,024 _530.300,804 _$602943.985 $30,602,330  _$653,636,318
{Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, CHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET R

Cantinued

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS -
AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
DECEMBER 31, 1999 ) o
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES PROPRIETARY
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Project Enterprise
Liabilities, equity and other credits ) o - B
Liabilities: . ..
Accounts payable..... $1,064,006 $3,011,362 . 30 $0 $584,784
Confracts payable.... - . D 0 G 687,249 ) 0
Accrued wages and benefits...... e orerrssermmessees 359,543 219,916 0 0 873,390
Compensated absences payable ... uoreeecnean 44,956 70,249 0 U : 0
Interfund payable........ 758,823 38,329 24,181 0 0
Intergovernmental payable...... 192,085 184,187 0 0 0
Due to other funds.. 44,665 0 0 0 0
Due to component units........... 0 0 0 o 0
Deferred revenue......... - 7,434,891 4,804,087 4,568,582 3,312,159 0
Other liabilities......... 0. 43,396 .0 .0 0
Claims payable ' - 0 o 0 "0 0
Matured special asessment bonds payable............. 0 0 26,000 "0 0
Matured interest payable........ .0 o - 12,708 K 0
Accrued interest payable.......... .0 0 0 10,750 0
Notes payable. 0 o 0 3,000,000 4]
Payable from Restricted Assets: B o
Accounts payable........ 0. 0 LI 0 248,367
Accrued interest payable...... ~ .0 0 0 0 417,210
Retainage payable.... -~ .0 0 0 0 52,902
Maintenance bond payable........cuevreiecceenes S - .0 0_ . 0 0 71,050
O.W.D.A. notes payable....... _ .0 o 0o - o 2,087,808
O.P.W.C loans.. . 0 o, 0. 0 " 3,156,502
General obligation bonds payable..........ceceeerrrensreen .0 0 ¢ - o ) 0
Revenue bonds payable........... Lo 0 o 0 " 94,285,000
Special assessment debt with govermmental o
commitment............ -0 0 0 0 0
Other long-term obligations........ 0 ” 0 "0 0 o
Total liabilities...... _ 9,898,969 8372426 4,631,561 7,010,168 101,777,018
Equity and Other Credits: - = R
Contributed capital...... a a. 0 0 168,359,020
Investment in general '
fixed assets...... .0 o 0 0 0
Retained eamings: C
Reserved for restricted assets 0] 0 0 e} 11,931,753
Unreserved........ - .0 } 0. 0 0 2,051,308
Fund balances: )
Reserved for: ) -
Encumbrances 848,829 1,244,774 o 10,607,373 0
Loans Receivable........ . 0 200,021 o .0 "0
Unreserved: - -
Designated for:
Debt SEMVICE ..oviirrirv e erreeer s smr s e sense et recsensnnn _ ... 0 - 0 179,783 0 0
Undesignated...........cueens 15,742,670 10,950,265 .0 | 2715644 0
Total equity and other credits.. 16,59‘1}1_'-'99'_” 12,395,060 ] 1?_9,783 13,323,017 182,382,081
Total liabilities, equity and other credits. . eeneens $26,490.463 $20.767.486  _$4.811344 $20,333,185 $284 159,094

See accompanying notes {o the general purpose financial statements
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FIDUCIARY Totals Totals
FUND TYPES _FUND TYPE ACCOUNT GROUPS {memarandum {memarandum
General General onhly) “only)
Internai Fixed Long-Term Primary Component Reporting
Service Agency Assets Obligations Government Units Entity
$258,030 $0 $0 $0 $4,918,182 $157,537 $5,075,719
o 0] o 0 687,249 0 687,249
5,200 0 0] 0 1,458,049 123,010 1,581,059
13,810 0 0 3,154,541 3,283,556 724,123 4,007,679
0 0 0 0 821,333 .0 821,333
18,725 151,863,813 0 954,283 153,214,073 210,668 153,424,741
o 754,481 o ] 799,146 0 7 799,146
0 227,136 ] 0 227,136 0 227,136
0 0 0 0 20,120,629 7.596,834 27,717,463
0 3,651,527 0 _ 0 3,694,923 18,485 3,711,408
471,453 0 0 0 471,453 0 471,453
0 o 0 0 26,000 0 26,000
0 a 0 a 12,798 0 12,798
0 o 0 0 10,730 0 10,750
0 0 0 0 3,000,000 "0 © 3,000,000
0 0 0 0 248,367 0 248,367
0 0 0 D 417,210 0 417,210
0 0 0 0 52,902 0 - 52,902
0 ] 0 0 71,050 0 71,050
0 0 0 0 2,087,808 e} 2,087,808
0 0 v} 0 3,156,502 0 3,156,502
0 0 o 31,825,000 31,825,000 0 31,825,000
0 0 0 0] 84,285,000 0 94,285,000
0 a ] 3,367,000 3,367.000 .0 3,367,000
0 0 0] 0 0 1,340,272 1,340,272
768,218 __ 156,496,957 0 __ 39300804 _ 328.256,116 _ 10,168,020 _ 338425045
556,414 0 0 0 168,415,434 0 168,415,434
0 0 67,547,024 0 B7.547,024 12,744,197 80,281,221
o 0 0 0 11,831,753 4,572 11,836,325
2,212,895 0 0 0 4,304,303 61,653 4,365,956
4] ¢] o 4] 12,700,876 285,630 12,986,566
\] 0 0. ¢ 200,021 0 200,021
0 0] 0 0 179,783 2,748 182,531
0 o] ) D 29,408,579 7,424 601 36,833,180
2,269.408 0 67,547,024 B 284,687,873 20,523 401 315,211,274
$3,037.627 _$156,496957 _$67,547,024 _$39,300.804 $622943983 _$30,692,330  $653.636,319
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
EQUITY - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Special Debt Capita)
General Revenue Service Project
Revenues: _ T
TaXes. . ccovvrreeeen $23,013,418 $5,737.677 30 $2,805,389
Licenses and permits........ - . 978,113 269,355 0 0
Intergovermnmmental....... 3,930,049 27,480,612 0 2,809,288
Charges for services..... 7,094,461 4,685,427 0 0
Special assessments. .0 17,151 422 857 0]
Investment eamnings...... ~. 35946814 157,187 2,285 273,723
Fines and forfeitures.......ccucecveesimcmcessnenseccccnnsne —— 1,284,884 551,250 0 0
Net decrease in fair value of investments........... (1,412,472) (58,345) 0 (39,277}
All other revenues .. 1,315,401 780,742 0 781,858
Total revenues . 39,798,468 39,601,056 425,142 5,630,979
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government: : -
Legislative and execufive........cveemverrerrees . 11,404,519 3,082,136 0 o
Judicial....... 5,770,843 817,575 0 1]
Public safety... 13,979,732 2,333,139 0 0
Public works...........—. o 0 7.369,289 C 0
Health........... - 192,636 600,178 0 0
Human services.....oveceecees — 529,415 22,624,542 0 0
Community development.......cocemeecirerercmcees 383,400 71,870 0 0
Transportation.......... .0 1,577,827 0 0
Intergovemmental....... . @ 1.081,659 0 7 o
Capital outlay....... 0 0 4] 9,684,993
Debt service: o
Principal retirement..... - 0 0 2,378,000 ..
Interest and fiscal charges......ooeeerccecmaeee. .0 ) 0 18615125 129,404
Total expendiiures. 32,260,545 35,358,215 3,993,125 9,814,397
Excess (deficiency) of revenues aver (under)
expenditures 7,537,923 242841  (3,567,983) {3,183,418)
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from sale of bonds....ccouververeesvmmome—ns - _. ¢ o ) 3} 7,190,000
Operating transfers in............. . 194,945 1,793,610 3,628,475 5,883,969
Operating transfers (Out).....ccoovecererriereesscreinen. {7,121,423) (1,286,325) C (2,743,251)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets.....cocccvvenr . ... 12,416 160,267 0 Q
Total other financing sources (USeS)..c.cccvvvecermremns_ (5,914,062) B67,552 3,528,475 10,330,718
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses....... . £23,881 910,393 (39,508) 7.147,300
Net (foss) from proprietary operations.........couwee- 0 0 _. 0 0
Restated fund equity at beginning of year ............ 15,867,638 11,484,667 219,291 6,175,717
Fund equity at end of Year....ccccevcccemerremecmmemn. . 516,591,498 $12,395,060 $179,783 $13,323,017

See accompanying nctes to the general purpose financial statements
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Totals Totals
{(Memorandum (Memorandum
only) only)
Primary Component Reporiing
Govemnment Units Entity
31,556,484 $6,803,324 $38,358,808
1,247,468 0 1,247,468
34,219,948 11,616,709 45,835,658
11,779,888 375,037 12,154,925
440,008 o 440,008
4,027,809 158 4,027 967
1,836,134 (el 1,836,134
(1,510,094) 4] (1,510,094)
2,857,999 708,337 3,567,336
86,455 645 19,504,565 105,960,210
14,486,655 g 14,486,655
6,388,418 0 6,385,418
16,312,871 g 16,312,871
7,369,289 | o 7,369,289
792,814 8,559,755 8,352,569
23,153,957 10,830,258 34,084,216
455,270 0 455,270
1,577,827 (] 1,577,827
1,081,659 0 1,081,659
9,684,993 1,329,864 11,014,857
2,378,000 76,315 2,454,315
1,744,528 84,100 1,828,629
85,426,282 20,880,293 106,406,575
1,029,363 {1.475,728) {446,365)
7,180,000 0 7,190,000
11,400,998 0 11,400,959
(11,150,999) 0 (11,150,999
172,683 351,820 524,503
7,612,683 351,820 7,964,503
8,642 046 (1,120,004} 7,522,042
8] (3,904) {3,904)
33,847,313 8,903,112 42,750,425
$42,489,359 $7.779,204 $50.,268 563




CLERMONT COUNTY, QHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES ~ BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1968

. anerai Fund

" Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
Revenuas: ‘ :
Taxes.... U - $20,281,200 $22,724,215 $2,443,0156
Licenses and PermitS. . rrrcrearseemrmnnmsasaearsas - 969,500 981,597 12,097
Intergovemmental......... e 3,154,883 3,905,601 150,718
Charges for services...... 5,413,472 7,108,774 693,302
Special assessments...... eee .. D Q0 0]
Investment earnings....cc o errrrvrmcosmsssnreess — 2,294,975 3,671,933 4,376,958
Fines and forfeitures...... . 1,075,273 1,278,298 203,026
Al other revenues... . 792,137 1,330,885 538,848
Total reVenUES.c.e e rereecsseccsrnm s s evsmeess s raronn & 35,581,440 40,999,404 5.417,964
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and executive........curca—sosceennee - 15,672,235 12,115,256 3,456,879
Judicial.......... eevenees _ 5,461,446 6,124,828 336,618
Public safety.......... 14,966,515 14,711,331 255,184
Public works......... 0 0 -0
Health....... . 347,987 345910 2,077
HUMAN SEIVICES.cvuseeresmraarcarescrsrsamssssmress 1,048,016~ 547,240 500,776
Community development.....cmeereeceeree -~ ..561,732 408,763 152,969
Transportation...... - 0 ' T o 0
Capital outlay........c.... _ 0 ' 0
Debt service: T o -
Principal retirement..... . 0 0 0
interest and fiscal charges. ... ceervimercenn . 0 ' 0 -0
Total expenditures........ 38 557,931 34,253,328 4,704,603
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditlies. ....cocveemossressrncee - ;_1376 491) 6,748,076 10,122,567
Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds of notes....ccvveenee .- 0 0 ¢]
Proceeds from sale of bonds. ... ) 0 0 ¢
Operating transfers in.......— —e 200,000 _ 185,453 {4,547)
Operating transfers (out) ......................... (10,597 005) (7,368,929} 3,228,076
AAVANCES 1M.iieeesresessesmssnesrars seerresarnnmsaneesenmserese ' 50,000 50,000
Advances (out) e - {118, 337) (118,337) - -0
Proceeds of sale of fixed assets... v w2000 12418 7,418
Total other financing sources (uses). e {10,510,342)  (7,229,387) 3,280,945
Excess {(deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other financing uses... (13,886,833) 7 (483,321} 13,403,512
Fund balance at beginning of vear....ccccceuecieenne. 13,623,928 = 13,523,929 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated............. .. 1,424 541 1,424,541 0
Fund balance at end of Year. ... wrr-ccreermrssemmmne.. $1,081,637 $14,465,148 $13,403,512
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Special Revenue

Debt Service

25

Variance: - Variance;
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Budget Actual _{Unfavorable)
$5,890,840 $5,749,4986 ($141,344) $0 $0 $0
262,140 270,179 8,039 0 0 0
28,224,885 27,048,129 (1,178,756) ] 0 0
4 269,802 4,462,936 193,134 0 0 0
13,400 17,151 3,751 472,616 421,201 (51,415)
172,614 166,343 (6,271} 0 0 g
482,600 562,977 80,377 0 0 0
690,877 1,025,429 334,552 ... 0 0 9]
40,007,158 39,302,640 {704,518) 472 618 421,201 {51,415)
3,899,257 3,510,281 389,006 0 0 0
617,959 554,034 63,925 0 0 0
2,848,657 2,586,592 262,085 0 0 0
8,558,045 8,355,326 202,718 0 0 o
721,659 677,845 43,814 0 0 0
24,251,825 22,425,786 1,826,039 0 o] 0
888,802 628,337 260,565 o} 0 0
1,897,740 1,929,854 67,886 0 0 0
0 0 0 o 0 0
0 0 o] 2,367,000 2,367,000 0
‘ 0 G o 1,649,019 1,613,757 35,262
43,784,044 40,668,025 ~ 3,118,019 4,016,018 3,980,757 35,262
. {3,776,886) {1,365,385) 2,411,501 {3,543,403) {3,559,556) {16,153)
0 0 0 0 0 0]
4] 4] 0 0 4] 4]
€,107,521 5,560,777 (548,744) 3,528,650 3,530,476 1,826
(5,320,148) (4,931,860) 388,288 0 0 0
150,000 88,329 {61,671) 0 24,181 24,181
{100,000) {50,000) 50,000 0} 0 0
45,060 160,267 115,207 -0 0 0
882,433 827,513 _(54,920) 3,628,650 3,554,657 1,826
(2,894,453) {537.,872) 2,356,581 {14,753) {4,899) (14,327)
9,110,221 9,110,221 0 244,843 244,843 0
3,078,111 3,078,111 0 D Q 0
$9,293,879 $11,650,460 $2.356,581 $230,090 $239,944 ($14,327)
(Continued)



CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES iN FUND

BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES

{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 - Coentinued

Capital Project

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: - - :

T BB s vrerrvrrrecrncerormnnsrmrnssonmnssnsnssssenseonannssrenmmnnns $2,735,969 $2,808,415 $72,446

Licenses and permits.. ..o e 0 0] 0.

Intergovermnmental......ccovne i s 4,327,820 1,302,065 (3,025,755)

Charges for ServiCes.........cocmuvimresimcssssss s mssssanes . 0 0 0

Special 8858SSMeNtS.. v i assrerrsersinesiees .0 _. . 0. 0

Investment eamings..........-. .209,490 259,833 50,343

Fines and forfeltures. ..o isnnnnaan - 0 0 0

All other revenues.......ccccve-vsiermermmeenmsrasnois 635,093 671,008 35913

Tolal FeVeNUES....ove e rsrcansscnit s ssvm s annsnne . 7,908,372 5,041,319 (2,867.,0563)
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Legistative and executive........ccaaeevnimreenns - 0 0 0
Judicial. o e 0 - o -0
PUDIIC SAELY.coenre i ess s i 0 0 0
PUBblC WOTKS..cvvemmneres e e srssnasisrsmecnes 0 0 .0
[ L= 1 U ¢ 0 G
HLUMEN SEIVICES.......crreeeceesrennmsrrrnees s rennsssasssns - 0 0 0
Community development..........oooiiiiinianans 0. 0 D
Transportation..........ooee i, Y 0 o
Capital OUHAY....ccvvvvrrerer e 22,910,144 19,207,525 3,702,618
Debt service:
Principal retirement.......cooereerisrinss .. 3,650,000 3,650,000 0
Interest and fiscal charges.....cccoeervncrrrecenans _. 126,000 . 123,755 2,245
Total eXpenditures... e 26,686,144 22,981,280 3,704,864
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures........c.cvivvmrcee. (18,777,772) {17,839,961) 837,811
QOther financing sources (uses). T

Proceeds of NOES.....vcccomi e 3,659,995 3,000,000 (659,995)

Proceeds from sale of bonds..... i, 5,688,000 7,145,335 1,457,335

Operating transfers iNu.....coccerves sl 8,803,371 5,883,969 (2,919,402)

Operating transfers (QUL)...c.oocvicinmrevirnennniiien (3,218,488) (2,743,252) 475,236

ADVANCES IMuernesceeerrnmrsrreemsestinareersaromsessmmnnnnmnrs 0 ) 0 0

Advances (OUE)...cimercoriennsrerim s e .0 0] 0

Proceeds of sale of fixed assets.......ccrverimmrneene 0 0 0

Total other financing sources (UsSes)..........cur... 14,932 878 13,286,052 (1,646.826)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources over . .

{under) expenditures and other financing uses..  -(3,844,8%4) (4,653,909) (809,015)
Fund balance at beginning of year............c........ . 8,334,985 . B,334,985 8]
Prior year encumbrances appropriated................___ 2,207,272 2,207,272 0
Fund balance at end of Year........cvccrvenneerensnnne_ 36,697,363 $5,888,348 {$809,015)

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements
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_ (Memorandum only}

Totals

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
$28,908,009 $31,282,126 $2,374,117
1,231,640 1,251,776 20,136
36,307,588 32,255,795 (4,051,793)
10,683,274 11,569,710 886,436
486,016 438,352 (47,664)
2,677,079 4,098,109 1,421,030
1,557,873 1,841,276 283,403
2,118,107 3,027,420 909,313
83,969,586 85,764,564 1,794,978
19,471,492 15,625,507 3,845,985
7,079,405 6,678,862 400,543
17,815,172 17,297,923 517,249
8,558,045 8,355,326 202,718
1,069,646 1,023,755 45,891
25,299,841 22,973,026 . 2,326,815
1,450,634 1,037,100 413,534
1,997,740 1,629,854 67,886
22,910,144 19,207,525 3,702,619
6,017,000 6,017,000 o
1,775,019 1,737,512 37,507
113,444 138 101,883,380 11,560,748
(26,474 552) {18,118,826) 13,355,726
3,658,995 3,000,000 (655,995)
5,688,000 7,145,335 1,457,335
18,639,542 15,170,675 (3,468,867)
(19,135,641) (15,044,041) 4,091,600
150,000 162,510 12,510
(218,337 (168,337) 50,000
50,060 172,683 122,623
8,833,619 10,438,825 1,605,206
(20,640,933) {5,680,001) 14,960,932
31,213,978 31,213,978 0
6,709,924 8,700,924 0
$17,282,969 $32,243,801 $14,936,751
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Totals
Internal (Memorandum
Enterprise Service only)
Operating revenues: : _ _
Charges for SEIVICES.......ceeuerererversrmerrrassnnnnsnsenes 524,981,752 $7.831,170 $32,812,922
New meters, services and reviews....«.vavveeen - 1,036,320 0 1,036,320
All gther revenues........... - . 219,171 186,030 405,201
Total operating revVenUES...o . ceccvervvesaes e 26,237,243 8,017,200 34,254 443
Operating expenses: - .
Personal services...... , . 5,504,215 508,654 6,012,869
Contractual Services......ccvvcveeerniciimanteeensrncoeas . 1,634,591 5,664,571 7,288,162
Maintenance and repairs.........ccoeecceraeeiescessravaes 604,478 205,840 810,318
Utilities...... 2,012,176 661,583 2,673,759
Materials and supplies ...................................... 1,827,987 573,383 2,401,370
Depreciation... 9,375,230 15,314 9,380,544
Other... cerrreeeettee e - 40,968 15,809 . .56 775
Total operat:ng expenses .......................... 20,999,643 7,645,154 28,644 797
Cperating income ...... . 5,237,600 372,046 5,609,646
Nongperating revenues (expenses) :
Investment income.. - rrrermnanees . 3,429,167 o 3,429,167
Net decrease in fair value of lnvestments ......... . {1,088,403) 0 (1,088,403}
Interest expense and fiscal charges.....vvevvrees (5,338,429} o {5,338,429)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)........ (2,997 665) 0 {2,997,665)
Income before operating transfers..........cavvvene 2,239,935 372,046 2,611,981
Operating transfers (OUt).......c.occcviiminicccccecsen - - 0L _ _ (250,000) _(250,000)
Net income.......oeeeee- - 2,239,935 122,046 2,361,981
Retained eamnings at beginning of year.............. 11,783,126 2,090,949 13,874,075
Retained eamings at end of year.......coorvevveeee . 14,023,061 2,212,985 16,236,056
Contributed Capital at beginning of year...: ......... 159,584,064 18,614 159,602,678
Contributions during the year: R .
Grant payments received and other................ 225,563 0 225,563
Contributed assets by developers....ccccemeevenes . 3,327,729 0 3,327,728
Contributed assets by govenmental funds........ 0 37.800 37,800
System capacity charges....cooveeevrernean e - 5,221,664 i 0 5.221,664
Contributed Capital at end of yaar.....c.o.ocevcveenne 168,359,020 56,414 168,415,434
Total Fund Equity at end of year.....ccccvvrrvvrerens $182,382,081 $2,269,409 $184,651,490

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 16899

Totals
Internal {(Memorandum
Enterprise Service oniyj
Cash flows from operating activities: ' ’
Operating income ....... $5,237.600 $372,048 $5,609,646
Adiustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided by operating activities: . .
Depreciation....... . 9,375,230 15,314 9,390,544
Change in allowance for uncollectibles.....cco oo — 8,643 0 8,643
Decrease {increase) in assets: .
Accounts receivable..... (180,751) 39,154 (141,597)
Inventory of supplies at cost 5,012 ° 1} 5,012
Prepaid expenses 88,860 0 88,960
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable..... . (111,840) (68,527) (180,367)
Accrued wages and benefits [(158,221) (10,369} {168,5290)
Compensated absences payable..... 0 13,810 - 13,810
intergovenmental payable... 0 9,723 9,723
Ciaims payabile...... 0 108,178 108,179
Net cash provided by operating activities......c.cecremvcne,__ 14,262 633 479,330 14,741,963
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Payments to other funds 0 {250,000) {250,000}

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities.......—

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

0 {250,000) (250.,000)

Principal paid on revenue bonds (2,605,000) 0 {2,605,000)
interest paid on revenue bonds  (5,120,008) 0 (5,120,008)
Principal paid on OWDA notes (108,063) 0 {108,063)
Interest paid on OWDA notes {147,109} 0 (117,109}
Principal paid on OPWC loan. —. {178,638) 0 {178,638)
Interest paid on OPWC ioan.... " - {28,207) 0 (28,207)
Construction of capital assets.. . (4,986,505) 0 {4,986,505)
Acquisition of capital assets .. .0 (31,8500 (31,850)
Retainage payments.... . (16,075) 0 {16,075}
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets....ccceeecemsammmeessmmes - 108,403 o] 108,403
System capacity charges e 5,221,664 0 5,221,664
Proceeds from special assessments.... 15,461 0 15,461
Payments of maintenance bonds 20,651 D 20,651
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities.., _(7,793,426) (31.850) (7,825,276)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments......—. _{62,598,584) 4] (62,599,584)
Proceeds from sale of investments. 51,505,101 0 51,505,101
Interest received on investments..... . 3,338,046 0 3.338.046_
Net cash used for investing activities.....ve e ccmsomveeree. (7,756,437) D _{7.756,437)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents...... {1,287,230) 197,480 (1,085,750}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.....cccecereeem.__ 12,838,785 2,620,992 15460777
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year....ccueecrereem weenn 511,562,555 $2 818 472 $14,371,027
Noncash transactions - Contributions from developers __$3,327,729 $0 $3,327.,729
Restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of year §773,231 30 $773,231

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET )
COMPONENT UNIT GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1899

Community County Board

Mental of Mental
Health Board _ Retardation Totals
Assets and other debits
Assets: B
Equity in pooled cash and cash equwa[ents .................. $2,411,373 $5,132,888 $7.544,261
Cash equivalents in segregated accounts................. - 0 13,781 13,781
Receivables {net of allowances for uncollectibles): 7
Taxes...... S S 994,913 6,383,283 7,378,196
ACCOUMS...cvrerreeeen ... 449 . 37,709 38,158
Due from primary government. ... .o eesemanerrmae 30,508 196,528 227,136
Intergovernmental receivable........ - 490,224 12,372 502,586
Inventory of supplies at cost... o 1,692 - 1,892
Prepaid expenses............. 0. 308 308
Restricted cash in segregated accounts ................... 0 o 4572 4,572
Property, plant and equipment......cerrmoenncen e 2,718,615 8,107,701 10,826,316
Accumulated depreciation.............. : 0 . (38,855) (38,856)
Construction in prograss......ceeee-. 0 1,858,707 1,958,707
Other debits:
Armount available in'Deht Service Fund for 2,748 0 2,748
Retirement of General Obligations......ceurreeees e .
Amount to be provided from Component
Unit RESOUIGES.......oouesremmesisnrens 1,367,875 864,940 2,232,815
Total assets..cvvecccccnane. _$8,016,805 $22,675,525 $30,692,330
Liabilities, equity and other credits
Liabilities: ]
Accounts payabie... _$73,551 $83,986 $157,537
Accrued wages and benefits......... 5,071 117,838 123,010
Compensated absences payable..........evevemerrenn- - -25,186 698,837 724,123
Intergovernmental payable.......... 8,991 ' 200,677 210,668
Defemred revenue......... 1,024,375 6,572,459 7,596,834
Other liabilities.......... - o 0 16,485 16,485
Other long-term obligations........... .. 1,340272 0 1,340,272
Totat liabilities.......... - 2478446 7,690,483 10,168,929
Equity and other credits: -
Investment in general fixed assels. ... vviecvemrsanes . 2,718,615 10,025,582 12,744,197
Retained eamings:
Reserved for restricted assets ..eereecriennn rreereeeane - - ¢ 4 572 4572
Unreserved...... 0 61,653 61,653
Fund balances: - :
Reserved for encumbrances........cwreeecreesrecersscere: 285,630 0 285,630
Unreserved:
Designated for debt Service.....m o rrrerrerrmcess 2,748 0 ) 2,748
Undesignated ........cceee. 2,531,366 4,893,235 7,424 601
Total equity and other credits...c..cooovvvereeeeecemnmenne S . 5,538,350 14,985,042 20,523 401
Tofal liabilities, equity and other credits........vmveeccee e $8,018,805 $22,675,525 $30,692,330

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENLUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES (N FUND

EQUITY - COMPONENT UNITS -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Community County Board
Mental of Mental

Health Board  Retardation Totals
Revenues: )

Taxes.......ccoveeerews N - - $917,318 - $5,886,008 $6,803,324

Charges for SErViCes........cvvarumsesanerisancrseen I .0 . 375037 375,037

Intergovernmentat ............ _ 6,136,292 5,480,417 11,616,709

Investment earnings....... _— I ¢ S 158 . 158

All other revenues.....co..ccerenennens } i 553,282 56,045 709,337
Total revenues....... . _7,706802 ~— 11,797,663 19,504,585
Expenditures:

Current: _

Health...... : 8,588,755 0 8,559,755
HUMAN SEIVICES. .. e rrorraes e srmrssrmemmarersas evrr et o 10,830,259 10,930,259

Capital outlay........... mreeenann - . 0 1,329,864 1,329,864

Debt Service: '

Principal refirement........ccc.ceene. ] 16,315 it - 76,315

interest and fiscal charges...... rensmmnrezenn e = 84,100 0 84,100
Total expenditures........ I % ;- T X ) 12,260,123 20,980,283
(Deficiency) of revenues (under) expendifures.............. . (1,013,268) (462,460) {1,475,728)
Other financing sources:

Proceeds of sale of fixed assetS. .v.veecver e cermmnisnns .. 350,000 1,820 351,820
Total other financing sources.......... , 350,000 1,820 351,820
(Deficiency) of revenues and other finapcing sources

(under) expenditures........ oo ceorvcecrssmsmameeneras . . (663,268) (456,7386) {1,120,004)
Net (loss) from proprietary operations......ccoemrmemernnees. o 0 (3.804) (3,904)
Fund equity at beginning of Year......cwccereeencemvarrmszeenes 3,483,012 5,420,100 8803112
Fund equity at end of year ............ i 55;‘%9,744 54,959,480 $7,779,204

See accompanying notes {o the general purpose financial statements
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Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

NOTE A - THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

Clermont County is a political subdivision of the State of Ohio. The County was formed by action of Arthur St.
Clair, the first governor of the Northwest Territory in 1800. The three member Board of County Commissioners
is the legisiative and executive body of the County. The County Auditor is the chief fiscal officer. In addition,
there are seven other elected administrative officials, each of whom is independent, as set forth in Ohio law.
These officials are the Clerk of Courts, Coroner, Engineer, Prosecuting Attorney, Recorder, Sheriff and Treasurer.
There are also five Common Pleas Court judges, (one of whom is Domestic Relations Court judge, and one of
whotn is judge of the Probate and Juvenile Courts) and two Municipal Court judges elected on a County-wide
basis to oversee the County's justice system.

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the financial statements present Clermont County (the
primary government) and its component units. The primary governtment includes ail departments for which the
County elected officials are financially accountable and are not legally separate from the County. The component
units (discussed below) are included in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of their
operational or financial relationships with the County.

NOTE B - INDIVIDUAL COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES

Discretely Presented Component Units: The component units column in the combined financial statements
include the financial data of the County's other component units. They are reported in a separate column to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the County. The following boards are included as legally separate,
discretely presented components of the County:

County Board Of Mental Retardation And Developmental Disabilities (MRDD Board): The MRDD
Board (including Clerco, Inc.} is responsible for providing educational and vocational services to mentally
retarded and developmentally disabled children and aduits. The County Commissioners appoint five
members of the seven member MRDD Board. The remaining two members are appointed by the
County Probate Court Judge. The County Commissioners approve the annual appropriations of the
MRDD Board. The MRDD Board can buy, sell, lease and mortgage property in its own name and can
sue or be sued in its own name. Clerco, Inc. is a not-for-profit organization which provides a complete
program of rehabilitation for individuals whose capacity has been impaired because of mental
retardation. The MRDD Board pays many of the expenses of Clerco, Inc. and the administrative and
supervisory staff of Clerco, Inc. are considered employees of the MRDD Board. ’

Community Mental Health Board {CMHB): The CMHB is responsible for a wide range of planning and
coordination of various types of mental health services for residents of Clermont County. The Board is
authorized to have eighteen members under the Ohio Revised Code, with ten appointed by the Board
of County Commissioners, four appointed by the Ohio Department of Mental Health, and four appointed
by the Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services. The CMHB can buy, sell, lease and
mortgage property in its own name and can sue or be sued in its own name. The County Commissioners
approve the annual appropriations of the CMHB.

Copies of the component unit financial reporis are on file at the Clermont County Auditor’'s Office, 101 E. Main
Street, Batavia, Ohio 45103-2861.
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Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTE C - RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

Clermont County officials are also responsible for appointing the members and/or act as members on the boards
of other organizations, but the County's accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making
the appointments or representing the following organizations:
Clermont County Law Library - The six member board of trustees are appointed by the Commion pleas
court judge. The iaw library can buy, sell, lease and mortgage property in its own name and can sue
or be sued in its own name.

Public Library Board - The seven member board of library trustees are appointed by County officials.
Three trustees are appointed by judges of the Court of Common Pleas, and four frustees are appointed
by the Board of County Commissioners. :

Metropolitan Housing Authority - Three of the five board members are appointed by County officials.
The Probate Court, Common Pleas Court and Board of County Commissioners appoints one board
member each.

Clermont County Visitors’ Bureau -~ The Board of County Commissioners appoinis six of its nine
directors.

Family and Children First Council - The operation of the Council is controlled by an advisory
committee and the Clermont County Department of Human Services. The County Commissioners and
the County Administrator are members of the cormmittee. ‘

Job Training Partnership Consortium - The Governor has designated Clermont and Warren counties
as a Service Delivery Area (SDA). During 1998, Warren County was designated by the Private industry
Coungcii (PIC), pursuant to Section 103 (b} (1) (B) of the Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA), to serve
as the grant recipient of all JTPA funds and any other federal, state or private funds which it is legally
empowered 1o accept on behaif of the PIC.

As the custodian of public funds, the County Treasurer invests all public montes held on deposit in the County
freasury. In the case of the separate agencies, boards and commissions listed below, the County serves as fiscal
agent, but is not financially accountable for their operations. Accordingly, the activity of the following districts are
presented as agency funds within the County’s financial statements.

Soil and Water Conservation District

Park District
Clermont County Health District
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Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTE D - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The County uses funds and account groups fo report on its financial position and the results of its operations.
Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating
transactions related to certain County functions or activities.

A fund is defined as a fiscal and accouniing entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and other
financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein,
which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance
with special regulations, restrictions or limitations. An account group is a financial reporting device designated
to provide accountability for certain assets and liabilities that are not recorded in the funds because they do not
directly affect net expendable available financial resources.

For financial statermnent presentation purposes, the various funds of the County are grouped into the following
generic fund types under the broad fund categories governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

The County uses the following fund types and account groups:

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES: Governmental funds are those through which most govemmental functions
of the County are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of the County's expendable financial resources
and the related current liabilities (except those accounted for in enterprise funds) are accounted for through
governmental funds. The following are the County's governmental-fund types:

General Fund: This fund accounts for the general operating revenues and expenditures of the County
not recorded elsewhere. The General Fund balance Is available to the County for any purpose provided
it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of Ohio.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for specific governmental revenues {other
than major capital projects) requiring separate accountmg because of legal or regulatory provisions
or administrative actlon.

Pebt Service Funds: These funds are used to account for servicing of the County's general long-term
debt.

Capital Project Funds; These funds are used to account for the acquisition or constructacn of capftal
assets. -

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES: Proprietary funds are used to account for the County's ongoing organizations
and activities which are similar to those often found in the private sector, The following are the County’s
proprietary fund types:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that provide services which are
financed primarily by user charges or activities where periodic measurement of income Is appropriate
for capital maintenance, public policy, management control or other purposes.

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for services provided by the County to other
County funds, departments and other governmental units, on a cosl-reimbursement basis.

FIDUCIARY FUND TYPE: Fiduciary funds are used o account for assets held by the County in a trustee
capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmeénts, and/or other funds. The
following is the County's fiduciary fund type: -
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Agency Funds: These funds are used to account for assets held by the County as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, or other intergovernmental resources which have been collected and
which will be distributed to other taxing districts located in Clermont County. These funds are purely
custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of results of operations.

ACCOUNT GROUPS: To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related to specific funds and those of
general government, and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those of a general nature, the
following account groups are used: —_

General Fixed Assets Account Group: This account group is used to present the general fixed assets
of the County utilized in its general operations, exciusive of those used in Enterprise funds and Internal
Service Funds. General fixed assets include land, buildings, building improvements and furniture,
fixtures and equipment owned by the County.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group: This account group is used to account for afl long-

term obiigations of the County not accounted for within the Enterprise and Internal Service funds.

COMPONENT UNITS: Component units are either legally separate organizations for which the elected officials
of the County are financially accountable, or legally separate organizations for which the nature and significance
of its relationship with the County is such that exclusion would cause the County's financia! statements to be
misleading or incomplete. Component unit disclosures represent a consolidation of the various fund types and
account groups. S ) -

NOTE E - SUMMARY OF THE SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the County have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-sefting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reperting principles.
The County also applied Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued
on or before November 30, 19889, fo its proprietary activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASE
pronouncements. The more significant accounting policies of the County are described below.

Basis of Accounting - Primary Government: All financial fransactions for Governmental and Agency funds
are reported on the modified accrual basis-of accounting. Under this accounting method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available to finance County operations. Revenues accrued at the end of the
year include charges for services, investment earnings, intergovernmental revenues, special assessments,
interfund amounts and property taxes. The measurement period used to recognize availability of revenue was
60 days to more closely correspond with the County's bill payment cycle. Property tax receivable recognition is
based on the statutory levy date.

Property tax receivables recognhized before the period for which they were infended to finance are offset by
deferred revenue. Governmental fund expendifures are recorded when the related fund fiability is incurred,
except interest on long-term debt, which is recorded when due. Proprietary fund financial transactions are
recorded on the accrual basis of accounting: revenues are recognized when eamed and measurable, and
expenses are recognized as incurred.
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Measurement Focus - Primary Government: All Governmental Funds are accounted for on a spending or
"financial flow" measurement focus. As such, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included
on their balance sheets. The reported fund balance (net current assets) is considered a measure of "available
spendable resources.” Governmental fund operating statements presentincreases (revenues and other financial
sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, it presents
a summary of sources and uses of "available spendable resources” during a period.

All Proprietary Funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance” measurement focus.
Therefore, all assets and all liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) associated with their activity are included
on their balance sheets. The reporied fund equity (net total assets) is segregated into coniributed capital and
retained eamings components. Proprietary Fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus - Discretely Presented Component Units: The CMHB uses
the modified accruai basis of accounting and the "financial flows"” measurement focus. The MRDD Board uses
both the modified accrual and accrual basis of accounting, and the "financial fliows™ and "capital maintenance”
measurement focus. The MRDD Boeard (including Clerco Inc.} is presented using the modified accrual format
based on the MRDD Board's principal activity. The rasulis of operations from the proprietary activity is presented
as a single line item "net loss from proprietary operations.” Component unit balance sheets present all assets,
liabilities, fund balances and retained earnings related to that organization.

Budgetary Data: The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the
preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major documents prepared are the tax
budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the appropriation resolution, alf of which are prepared on the
budgetary basis of accounting. The certificate of estimated resources and the appropriations resolution are
subject io amendment throughout the year with the legal resfriction that appropriations cannot exceed estimated
resources, as certified. All funds, other than agency funds, and the following Special Revenue Funds: Computer
Legal Research, Septic Tank Rehabilitation, Research and Computerization and Nevilie are required to be
budgeted and appropriated, however, only governmenta! funds are required to be reported. The primary level
of budgetary control is at the object level within each depariment. Any budgetary modifications at thls level may
only be made by resolution of the County Commissioners.

Tax Budget: A budget of estimated revenue and expenditures is submitted to the County Auditor, as
Secretary of the County Budget Commission, by July 20 of each year, for the peried January 1 o
December 31 of the following year.

Estimated Resources: The County Budget Commission determines if the budget substantiates a need
to levy all or part of previously authorized taxes and reviews estimated revenue. The Commission
certifies its actions to the County by September 1. As part of this certification, the County receives the
official certificate of esfimated resources, which states the projected revenue of each fund. FPrior to
December 31, the County must revise its budget so that the total contemplated expenditures from any
fund during the ensuing fiscal year will not exceed the amount available as stated in the certificate of
estimated resources. The revised budget then serves as the basis for the annual appropriation measure.
On or about January 1, the certificate of estimated resources is amerided to inciude any unencumbered
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balances from the preceding year. The certificate may be further amended during the year if the County
Auditor determines, and the Budget Commission agrees, that an estimate needs to be either increased
or decreased. The amounts reported on the budgetary statements reflect the amounts in the final
amended official certificate of estimated resources issued during 1998.

Appropriations: A temporary appropriation resolution to control expenditures may be passed on or
about January 1 of each year for the period of January 1 to March 31. An annual appropriation resolution
must be passed by April 1 of each year for the period January 1 to December 31. The appropriation
resolution fixes spending authority at the fund, department, and objectlevel. The appropriation resolution
may be amended during the year as new information becomes available, provided that total fund
appropriations do not exceed current estimated resources, as certified.

Modifications to the original budget within expenditure objects can be made by the Auditor's Office.
Modifications to the original budget beyond the object level require the approval of the Board of
Commissioners. During the year, several supplemental appropriation resolutions were legally enacted
by the County commissioners. Amendments to the original appropriation budget are described in Note
W. The budget figures which appear in the statements of budgetary comparisons represent the final
appropriation amounts including all amendments and modifications.

Encumbrances: As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are encumbered and recorded as the equivaient of
expenditures on the non-GAAP bhudgetary basis in order io reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation and to determine and maintain legal compliance. The Ohio Revised Code prohibits
encumbrances plus expenditures from exceeding appropriations at the fund, department and object level.

To establish befter comparisens, budgetary statements inciude current year appropriations, dishursements and
current year encumbrances. On the GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at year end are reported as
reservations of fund balances for subsequent-year expenditures for governmental funds and reported in the notes
to the financial statements for proprietary funds.

Lapsing of Appropriations: At the ciose of each year, the unencumbered balance of each
appropriation reverts to the respective fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future
appropriations. Encumbered appropriations are carried forward to the succeeding fiscal year and not
reappropriated.

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash resources of the majority of individual funds are combined
to form a pool of cash and investments which is managed by the County Treasurer. All investments are recorded
at their fair market value. Interest earned on investments is accrued as eamed and distributed to the General
Fund and other qualifying funds utilizing a formula based on the average month end balance of cash and cash
equivalents of all funds. During fiscal year 1999, investments were limited to treasury bills, treasury notes, U.S.
government backed securities, federal agency notes, mutual funds, STAR Ohio and repurchase agreements.
Invesiments are reporied at fair vaiue which is based on quoted market prices. Note | provides a detailed
disclosure regarding cash, cash equivalents and investments held by the County,

The County has invested in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) during 1899. STAR Ohio
is an investment pool managed by the State Treasurer's Office which allows governments within the State to pool
their funds for investment purposes. STAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as an investment company, but
does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in
STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohio's share price which is the fair value at December 31, 1999.
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Cash and Investments in Segregated Accounts: The County has segregated bank accounts fot monies held
separate from the County’s central bank account. These depository accounts are presented in the Combined
Balance Sheet as “Cash equivalents in segregated accounts” or “investments in segregated accounts”.

Statement of Cash Flows: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, equity in pocled cash and cash
equivalents and cash in segregated accounts (including restricted trustee and retainage accounts} with original
maturities of 3 months or less when purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

Cash and investments Held by Trustee: Certain monies for the Water and Sewer District are held and invested
by trustees. Certain component units also maintain separate bank accounts. These bank accounts and
investments are represented by the "Cash equivalents in segregated accounts”, and "Investments in segregated
accounts" restricted asset accounts. i

Inventories and Prepaid ltems: Inventory is reported in Enterprise funds and Compenent units and is valued
at cost using the first-in-first-out (FIFO} method. Inventory is expensed when consumed rather than when
purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items by using the consumption method.

Interfund Assets and Liabilities:

Due From/Due To Other Funds - During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between
funds for goods provided or services rendered. Also, various Agency funds hold taxes and interest which
are distributed fo other county funds at a |ater date. These receivables and payables are classified as
"Due from other funds” or "Due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

Interfund Receivable/Payable -Interfund loans (short-term and long-term) are classified as "Interfund
receivable” and "Interfund payable” on the balance sheet. Fund equity is_reserved for long-term loans
which are not expected 1o be repaid within a specific time frame of less than one year.

.Restricted Assets: Resiricied assets consist of cerfain trust accounts held by the Water and Sewer District
which include a bond account, bond reserve account, replacement and improvement account, and a construction
account. Cash and investments in the accounts are held by trustee financial institutions. The bond account is
used to accumulate periodic principal and interest payments. The bond reserve account is to be funded in an
amount equal to the maximum annual bond principal interest requirement. The replacement and improvement
account is to be maintained with a balance equal to the greater of five percent of the amount of bonds outstanding
or $2,000,000. The construction account is established to pay for project costs.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: All fixed assets which are acquired or constructed for general governmental
purposes are reported as expenditures in the fund that finances the asset acquisition and are capitalized at cost
in the General Fixed Assets Account Group if they meet the County’s capitalization criteria. Real properiy (excepf
for infrastructure assets) is recorded at actual cost or estimated historical cost based on an evaluation performed
in 1987. Infrastructure assets (public domain general fixed assets such as roads, bridges, sireets, sidewalks,
curbs and gutters, drainage systems, lighting systems and other assets that are immovable and of value only to
the county ) are not included in the financial statements as general fixed assets of the County. Property and
equipment acquired by Enterprise funds are reported in those funds at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated
fixed assetfs are recorded at their fair market value on the date donated to the County.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset
lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the
related fund fixed assets. Depreciation is not provided for in the General Fixed Assets Account Group.
Depreciation for the Enterprise funds is determined by allocating the cost of fixed assets over the estimated useful
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lives of the assets on a straight-line basis.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Autos and trucks - three to five years.
Furniture, fixtures and equipment - five to twenty years.
Buildings, structures and improvements - twenty to fifty vears.
Collecting and disfribution mains - fifty years.

Capitalization of Interest: The County's policy is to capitalize interest on Enterprise fund construction projects
until substantial completion of the project. Capitalized interest is amortized on the straight-line basis over the .
estimated useful life of the asset.

L.oans Receivable: Loans receivable represent Chio Public Works Commission (OPWC) loans where the Water
and Sewer District has entered into a loan agreement but has not drawn down ail loan proceeds due to the interim
status of the related construction project. The loan ferms require the Water and Sewer District {o initiate loan
payments even though the project is not completed and all loan proceeds have not been drawn down, In addition,
loans receivabile represent low-interest loans for septic system development projects granted to eligible County
residents under the Septic Systern Rehabilitation program.

Contributed Capital: Contributed capital represents resources from other funds, governments and private
sources provided to Enterprise funds and Intemal Service Funds that are not subject to repayment, and fees
charged to join the existing system (system capacity charges). Non-cash assets are recorded at their fair market
value on the date contributed, Depreciation on those assets acquired or constructed with contributed resources
is expensed and closed to unreserved retained earnings at year end.

Grants and Cther Intergovernmental Revenue: Local government fund revenues are recorded as receivables
and revenue when measurable and available. Other federal and state grants and assistance awards made on
the basis of entitiement are recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when entitlement occurs.
All other Federal and State reimbursement-type grants are recorded as receivables and revenues when the
related expenditures/expenses are incurred.

Long-term Obligations: Long-ierm obligations are recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due,
or when resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early in the following year. For
other long-term cobligations such as compensated absences and contractually required pension contributions, only
that portion expected to be financed from expendabie available financial resources is reported as a fund liability
of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is reported in the general long-term obligations
account group. Long-term liabilities expected to be financed from proprietary fund operations are accounted for
in those funds. e

Under Ohio law, a debt retirement fund must be created and used for the payment of all debt principal and
interest. Generally accepted accounting principles require the allocation of the debt liability among the
appropriate funds and the general long-term obligations account group, with principal and interest payments on
matured general obligation long-term debt being reported in the debt service fund. To comply with GAAP
reporting requirements, the County's debt retirement fund has been split among the appropriate funds and
account groups. Debt service fund resources used to pay both principal and interest have also been allocated
accordingly.
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Interfund Transactions: During the normmal course of operations, the County has numerous transactions
between funds. These transactions include charges for services provided by an Intemal Service fund to other
funds and operating transfers. Operating transfers represent transfers of resources which will be expended and
are recorded as other financing sources (uses} in Govemmental funds and as operation fransfers in Proprietary
funds. Residual equity transfers are nonrecurring or non-routine transfers of equity between funds which are
reflected as adjustments to beginning fund balance of govemmental funds, and as additions to contributed capital
for proprietary funds. During 1999, the County did not recognize any residual equity fransfers.

The infernal Service fund records charges for services fo County funds, depariments and other governmenta!
units as operating revenue. Both Govemnmental and Proprietary funds recorded these payments to the Internal
Service fund as operating expenditures/expenses.

Compensated Absences: Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the
employees' right to receive compensation are atiributable to services already rendered and itis probable that the
employer will compensate employees for the benefits through time off or some other means. Sick leave benefits
and personal leave benefits are accrued using the vesting method. The liability is based on the sick feave and
personalleave accumulated at December 31 by those employees who are currently eligible to receive termination
payments and by those emplioyees for whom it is probable they will become eligible to receive termination
benefits in the future. :

For govemnmental funds, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount expected to be paid
using expendable available resources. These amounts are recorded in the account "compensated absences
payable” in the fund from which the employses who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The remainder
is reported in the general iong-term obligations account group. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of
compensated absences is reported as a fund liabiiity. ‘

Ohio law requires that vacation time not be accumulated for more than three years. Employees with a minimum
of one year of service become vested in accumulated unpaid vacation time. Unused vacation is payable upon
termination of employment. Unused sick ime may be accumulated untll refirement. Employees eligible fo retire
under a county recognized retirement plan, with a minimum of ien years of service, are paid one-fourth of
accumulated sick time upon retirement, Such payment may not exceed the value of thirty days of accrued but
unused sick leave. However, if employees earned sick leave prior to January 23,1984, they are eligible for 100%
conversion of this amount. All sick, vacation and compensation payments are made at employees’ current wage
rates.

Self Insurance: The County is self-insured for employee health care benefits. The program is administered by
Anthem Blue Cross & Blue Shield, which provides claims review and processing services. Each County
department is charged for its proportionale share of covered empioyees. The County has recorded a liability for
incurred but not paid and for incurred but unreported claims at year end based on an actuarial estimate by
Anthem Biue Cross & Blue Shield.

Fund Equity: The County reserves portions of fund equity which are legally segregated for specific future uses
or which do not represent available, spendable resources and therefore are not appropriatable for expenditures.
Designations of fund equity are amounts that have been designated by management for a specific future use,
which are not legaily segregated. Undesignated fund equity represents that portion of fund equity which is not
reserved nor designated and may be appropriated in a future period,
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Accounting Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

Total Columns on the Combined Financial Statements: Amounts in the "Totals Memorandum Only -
Reporting Entity” columns in the combined financial statements represent a summation of the combined financial
statement line items of the fund types and account groups of the primary government and discretely presented
component units. Arnounts in the "Totals Memorandum Only - Primary Government” columns in the combined
financial statements represent a summation of the combined financial statement line items of the fund types and
account groups of the primary government only. These amounts are presented for anaiytical purposes only. The
summation includes fund types and account groups that use different bases of accounting, both restricted and
unrestricted amounts, and the caption "amount to be provided," which is not an asset in the usual sense.
Interfund transactions have not been eliminated. Consequently, amounts shown in the "Totals Memorandum
Only" columns are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available or total
revenues and expenditures/expenses of the County.

NOTE F - RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR FUND EQUITY

In prior years, the County reported the activity of the Special Revenue fund, Neville, as part of it's agency fund
presentation. The fund was established after agreements were entered into between County subdivisions and
the County in conjunction with Hazard Mitagation Grant, Community Development Block Grant and the Natural
Resources Conservation Services’ funds. These funds are in conjunction with entities affected by the 1997 flood
disaster. In addition, the Community Transportation fund's equity balance required an adjustment to properly
reflect a 1998 check which was voided in 1999. : . .

The change in the reporting of certain funds and changes in expenditures had the following effects on fund
balance as it was previously reported December 31, 1998.

Special
. Revenue
Previously stated Fund -
Equity at December 31, $11,059,506
1998
Fund reclassification 163,351
Expenditures/voided check 261,810
Restated Fund Equity at o i
December 31, 1998 $11.484 667
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The effect of the adjustments on the excess of revenues and other financing sources over (Under) expenditures
and other uses as previously reported for the year ended December 31, 1998 are as follows:

Special
Revenue

Excess as previously $614,050

reported
Fund reclassification (88,245)
Expenditures/voided check 261,810 _
Restated amounts at

December 31, 1998 §787161 5

NOTE G - ACGOUNTABILITY

The following funds have deficit fund balance/retained earnings as of December 31, 1899,

Deficit
Fund Equity

Special Revenue Funds:

Children’s Services ($377,1886)

Marriage Licenses (794)

Community Development Block

Grant (5.748)

Neville (30,087)
Capital Project Fund:

Road Assessment Projecis {451,068)
Enterprise Fund.

Sewer {8,325,150)
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The deficits in the above govemmentai funds resulted from operations and adjustments for accruals. The
General Fund is liable for any deficit in these funds, and provides operating transfers when cash is requ1red not
when accruals occur.

The deficit in the Sewer Fund was the result of an advance refunding in 1993. The refunding resulted in the
recognition of an accounting loss of $6,181,912. However, the sewer district in effect reduced its aggregate debt
setvice payments by $7.97 million and obtained an economic gain of $3.73 million,

NOTE H - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financial position, results of operations and changes in fund balance on the basis of generally
accepted accounting principles {(GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipis, disbursements and encumbrances. The Combined Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, Budget and Actual, All Governmental Fund Types
(Non - GAAP Budgetary Basis) are presented on the budgetary basis to provide a meaningful comparison of
actual results with the budget and to demonsirate compliance with state statute. The major differences between
the budget basis and the GAAP basis are:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual
(GAAP).

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when the liability is incurred
{GAAPR).

3. Encumbrances are treated as expenditures for all funds {budget) rather than as a reservation of fund

balance for governmental fund types (GAAP).

4, Proceeds from and principal payments on short-term note obligations are reported on the operating
statement (budget) rather than on the balance sheet (GAAP).

5. Advances in and advances out are operating transactions (budget) as opposed to balance sheet
transactions (GAAP).

Adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations at the end of the year on the Budget basis to the
GAAP basis are as follows: o
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Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
All Governmental Fund Types

Special Debt Capital

Description General Revenue Service Project
GAAP Basis $623,861 $910,393 ($39,508) $7,147.,300
Increase {decrease) due to:
Revenue Accruals 1,217,610 138,854 (3,941) {1,585,661)
Expenditure Accruals (647,928) 255,604 1,368 (2,239,084)
Principal Retirement -0- -0- 11,000 - -0-
Transfers (246,998) 121,832 2,001 -0-
Advances (68,337) 38,329 24,181 -0-
Bond Proceeds -0- -0- -0- (44,665)
Note Proceeds . -0- -0- -0- 3,000,000
Excess of Revenues R

Over{Under)

Expenditures

for Non-Budgeted _

Funds {15,632) 196,476 0- -0-
Encumbrances {1,345,807) {2.1998,160) -0- (10.927.799)
Budget Basis 5&83!321 ) !§§§7!872g {54 ,899) ‘ﬁ!853£909l

NOTE | - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The County maintains a cash and investment pool used by all funds except the trustee held monies in Water
and Sewer Funds and monies held by certain county departments in the Agency funds. Each fund type's portion
of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as {"Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents").

Monies held by the County are classified by State Statute into two categories. Active monies are public monies
determined to be necessary to meet current demand upon the County treasury. Active monies must be
maintained either as cash in the County treasury, in commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand,
including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.
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Ohio Law permits inactive monies to be deposited or invested in the following:

1.

10.

United States Treasury notes, bills, bonds, er any other ¢bligation or security issued by the United
States Treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal or interest by the United States;

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal government
agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the federal national mortgage association, federal
home loan bank, federal farm credit bank, federal home [oan morigage corperation, government
national mortgage association, and student ioan marketing association. All federal agency securities
shall be direct issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities;

Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value of the
securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal value of the agreement by
at [east two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed
thirty days;

Bond and other cbligations of the State of Chio or its political subdivision, provided that such political
subdivisions are located wholly or partly within the County;

Time certificates of deposit or savings or deposit accounts, including, but not limited to, passbook
accountis;

No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division (1} or
(2) and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that investments in securities
described in this division are made only through eligible institutions;

The State Treasurer's investment pool{STAR Ohio);

Securities lending agreements in which the County lends securities and the eligible institution agrees
to exchange either securittes described In division (1) or (2) or cash or both securitles and cash, equal
value for equal value;

High grade commercial paper in an amount not to exceed five percent of the County's total average
portfolio;

Bankers acceptances for a period not to exceed 270 days and in an amount not to exceed ten percent
of the County's total average portfolio.

Protection of the County's deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, by eligible
securities pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with
the treasurer by the financial institution or by a single collateral pool established by the financial institution to
secure the repayment of all public moneys deposited with the institution.
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Investmenis in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives are
prohibited. The issuance of taxablie notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling are
also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase uniess matched to a
specific obligation or debt of the County, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to
maturity.

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for investments may be
made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the treasurer or, If the securities are
not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

At fiscal year end, the County had $5,000 in undeposited cash on hand which is included on the balance sheet
of the County as part of "equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents”.

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk as defined in GASB
Statement 3, "Deposits with Financial institutions, Investments and Reverse Repurchase Agreements”.

Deposits: At fiscal year end, the carrying amount of the County's deposits was $6,365,948 which was made up
of $6,347,595 from the primary government and $18,353 from component units. The bank balance of the
County was $9,395,791. Of the bank balance, $1,876,453 was covered by federal depository insurance and
$7,519,338 was collateralized by securities pledged by depository banks with federal revenue bonds in the
County's name. Although the securities serving as collateral were held by the pledging financial institution's trust
depariment in the County's name and all State statutory requirements for the deposit of money had been
followed, non-compliance with federa! requirements by the depository would potentially subject the County to
a successful claim by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

investments: The County's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed
by the County at fiscal year end. Category 1 inciudes investments that are insured or registered or for which
the securities are held by the County or its agent in the County's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investrnents which are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the County's name.
Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are heid by the
counierparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the County’s name. The Couniy's investmenis in
mutual funds and STAR Ohio, an investment pool operated by the Ohio State Treasurer, are unclassified
investments since {hey are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.
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Clermont County, Ohio
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December 31, 1999

NOTE | - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS - Continued
Category 2 Fair Value B

Primary Government:

Treasury Bills $53,340,242  $53,340,242
Treasury Notes 32,279,733 32,279,733
U.S. Gov't Backed :

Securities . 25,904,519 25,904,518
Federal Agency Notes 2,763,690 2,763,690
Mutual Funds ~0- 3,819,830
STAR Ohio ~0- 16,400,000
Repurchase Agreements 575,181 575,181
Component Units:

Treasury Notes 7,544,261 . 1.244.261

Total

$122.407.626 $142.627 456

The classification of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the combined financial statements is based
on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9. A reconciliation between the classifications of cash and
investments on the combined financial statements and the classification per GASB Statement No. 3 is as

follows:

Cash & Cash .
Equivalents Investments
GASB Statement No. 9 $80,055,680 $68,942,714
Cash on Hand {5,000}
Treasury Bills {11,669,890) 11,669,980
Treasury Notes (12,5651,532) 12,551,532
U.S. Gov't Backed
Securities (25,904,519) 25,804,519
Federai Agency Notes {2,763,690) 2,763,690
Mutual Funds {3,819,830} 3,819,830
STAR Chio (16,400,000} 16,400,000
Repurchase Requirements (575,181} _ 575,181
GASB Statement No. 3 $6,365,948 - $142.627.456
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NOTE J - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

Individual fund interfund assets/liabilities balances as of December 31, 1889, related to the primary government

were as follows:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:

General

Special Revenue Funds:
Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax
Mairiage Licenses

Senior Services Levy
Childrens' Services Levy
Employment Training Center
County {odging

Child Support Enforcement

Cormmunity Development Block Grant

Economic Development Loan
Narcotics Unit
Septic Tank Rehabilitation
Indigent Guardianship
Research & Compulerization
Debt Service Funds:
Special Assessment
Capital Projects Funds:
Adult Detention
Medical/Social Services
Communications Center
County Capital Improvements
Road Assessment Projects
Enterprise Funds:
VWater
Sewer
Agency Funds:
Undivided Tax
Clermont County Court System
Undivided Interest
General County Agehcy
TOTAL

ASSET

Bue Fro;

Interfund her _Fun‘c'ln
Receivabie eceivable

$62,510 $388,866

6,881
1,308
84,411
56,941
192
43,396
58,169

22
489
16
1,240
1,622

13,869

4,818
259
37,965
91,941
6,700

257,814
501,009

$821.333 799,146
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LIABILITY

Due
Interfund Oth éo
nPa!alI:}e (Pﬂeraﬁglds

$758,823 544,665
38,329
24,181

483,636

15,583

196,731

$821,333 $799.148



Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTE J - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES - Continued

individual fund interfund receivables/payables as of December 31, 1999, related to component units were as
follows:

Pue To

Due From Primary Combaonent
Government nits
COMPONENT UNITS: {Receivable) {Payable)
Community Mental Health Board , $30,608 $-0-
Board of Mental Retardation 196,528 «0-
Undivided Tax -0- $227.136
TOTAL $227.138 $227.136
NOTE K - FIXED ASSETS
A summary of changes in the Primary Government’s general fixed assets follows:
Balance e . Balance
Jan 1, 1999 _ Additions  Disposals = Dec 31,1999
Land $1,403,698 $-0- : $-0- $1,403,698
Buildings, Structures
and Invprovements 31,430,827 439,350 650 31,869,627
Furniture, Fixtures . : -
and Equipment 16,880,733 1,318,300 1,094,656 17,104,377
Construction in
Progress 12.274 652 4,894,670 -¢- 17,168,322
TOTALS $61,990,010 $6,652.320 $1,095.306 $67.547.024
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Clermont County, Ohio

Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued

December 31, 1999

NOTE K - FIXED ASSETS - Continued

A summary of changes in the Component Units general fixed assets follows:

Land

Buildings, Structures and
improvements

Furnjture, Fixtures and
Equipment

Construction in Progress

TOTALS

Balance .
Jan 1, 1999 Additions
$539,131 $-0-
8,251,648 ;‘350.596
2,014,980 104,531
1.005.824 052,883
$11,811.483 $1.408.010

. Balance
Disposals  Dec 31,1999
$-0- $ 539,131
344,565 8,257 579
89,905 2,029,606
-0- 1,958,707
$434 470 $12,785.023

Fixed assets for the Primary Government's proprietary funds at December 31, 1999, were as follows:

Land

Structures

Machinery and Equipment
Furniture

Autos and Trucks
Construction In Progress
Accumulated Depreciation

Net Fixed Assets

Enterprise Funds

$3,235,886
78,249,850
212,724,464
1,130,334
2,249 857
5,553,004
(107 .968.579)
$195.174.816
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Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTE L - LONG-TERM DEBT AND OBLIGATIONS
Long-term debt and other obligations of the County at December 31,1989 were as follows:
GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

General obligation bonds

41992 Comrrectional
Faciiit%%

Iimprov & Hefunaing

1993 Building Const
& enol\lflaﬁlog ©

1994 Enginser Capital
Equipment Bonds

1999 Communications Center

SRl ESNos

3peciai Asgsessment Bonds With
overnmental Commitment:

1985 Water Line Extension
1990 Water Line Extension
1979 Lower East Fork Bonds
1981 Temrrace View Bonds
1982 Jannie Lane Bonds
1983 Nine Mile Sewer Bonds
1983 Nine Mile Bonds

1984 Elick Lane Bonds

1884 O'Bannonvilie Bonds

1960 Peggy Drive

1892 Waterline Extension

1953 Murle Lane Sewer

1993 Murle Lane System Capacity

1986 Mt. Zlop Rd.
Water Ma'lzn Ext.

Middle East Fork Sewer

Bells Lane Road Improvement
Ohio Water Project

1959 Woods Point Drive Road
TQTAL SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
B%NDLS

"ATES
3.06.0%
2.5-5.6%

3.0-5.15%

3.1-4.0%
4,0-5.125

7.25-7.37%
7.25%
8.25%
13.00%
12.50%
10.25%
9.50%
9.875%
5.00%

L TA2%
5.875%
5.5%
5.25%

'5.875%

4.75-5.25%

4.50 %,

4.90 %
4.05-5.20

MATURITY

2009
2014
2005

1999
2009

2009
2010

2001
2002
2003
2003

1999

2004
2010
2012
2013

2003
2018

2017
2008
2018
2009

52

o pge

$5,400,000

14,036,000
7,870,000

100,000
£

27.405.000

52,000
130,000
35,000
4,000
4,000
10,000
150,000
10,000

. 565,000
64,000
70,000
74,000

12,000

100,000

1,105,000
405,000
185,000

[}

2975000

ADDITIONS

$-0-

6.500.000

6,500,000

90,000

(e}
[T
(]
[ d
)
(w1

DELETIONS
$370,000
635,000

T 975,000

100,000

4,000
5,000
35,000
1,000
1,000
- 2,000

30,000

10,000

90,000

4,000
5,000
4,000
2,000

5,000

60,000
35,000 V
5,000

D

298,000

BN
$5,030,000
13,400,000

6,885,000

D-
6,500,000

31,825,000

48,000
125,000
-

3,000
3,000
8,000
120,000
e
475,000
60,000
65,000
70,000
10,000

95,000

1,045,000
370,000
180,000

. 890,000

3,367,000



Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTE L - LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS- Continued

Compensated Absences

Pension Obligation
(lﬁte%,ovem;%gn?aispayable)

R GRIEEAL LovoTeRM

ENTERPRISE FUND
Sewer

1884 O'Bannanville Revenue
Bonds

993 Sewer Systemn Refundin
evenue canv:q’5 ¢

Total Sewer Revenue Bonds

Ohio Water Development
Auz‘hom?l hfo S P

QOPWC Loans
Total Sewer
Water

993 Wat r S stem Refunding
Evenue B

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

INTEREST
NRTE %

5.00%

2.6-52%

§.2-8.5%

2.00%

2.6-5.8%

2005

2012

2014

2018

2018

MATURITY

33

BALANCE
171198 ADDITIONS
$2,876,817 $277,724
918,141 954,263
$34174958  $8,421.987
$5,025,000 $-0-
42,835,000 0
47,860,000 -0-
2,195,871 -0-
2,344,380 990,760
52400251  990.760
49,030,000 Q-

3101430251

DELETIONS
$-0-
918,141

06,141

$100,000
1,060,000
1,160,000

108,063

178,638

1,445,?:01 .

1,445,000

§2,891!?;01

$4,925,000

41,775,000

46,700,000
72,087,808

3,156,502
51,044,310

47 585,000



Clermont County, Ohio

December 31, 1999

Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued

NOTE L- LONG TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS- Continued

Annual debt service requirements for the County’s long-term debt are as follows:

YEAR
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004

- - Thereafter

TOTAL

YEAR
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004

Thereafier

TOTAL

YEAR
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004

Thereafter

TOTAL

GENERAL OBLIGATION
BONDS
PRINCIPAL INTEREST
$2,595,000 $1,707,046
2,715,000 1,535,393
2,845,000 1,405,386 -
2,985,000 1,263,911
3,140,000 1,411,570
17.545,000 4182792
$31,825.000 $11,206,098

SEWER REVENUE BONDS

PRINCIPAL INTEREST
$324,000 $173,658
335,000 157,351
335,000 140,220
350,000 122,466
320,000 104,479
1,703,000 | 460,489
$3,367.000 $1,158.663
WATER REVENUE BONDS
PRINGIPAL INTEREST
$1,510,000 $ 2,647,382
1,5_80,006 2,576,413
1,860,000 2,498,992
1,740,000 2,415,993
1 830,000 2327252
39,265,000 18,934,063 i
$47,585,000 §31,400.005
OPWC LOANS
PRINGIPAL INTEREST
$169,874 $17,273
170,891 18,256
171,930 15,217
172,989 "14',;53
174,068 13,078
2,296,749 66,350
" $3.156.502 $142342

PRINCIPAL INTEREST
$1,210,000 $ 2,359,140
1,260,000 2,307,480
1,315,000 2,252,530
1,370,000 2,193,980
1,435,000 2,131,730
40,110,000 21561750
$45,700,000 $32,806,610
OWDA NOTES
PRINCIPAL INTEREST
$113,929 $111,243
120,116 105,056
126,639 98,533
133,518 91,653
140,776 84,396
1,452,829 362,606
$2.087.808 $853.487
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Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTEL - LONG-TERM DEBET AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS- Continued

Long-Term Bonds and Loans: Alllong-term debt issued for governmental purposes of the County is refired from
the Debt Service fund. Self-supporting, special assessment bends are relired from a Debt Service Fund.
Revenue bonds are retired from the related Enterprise fund. General obligation bonds and notes are secured by
the County's ehility to levy a voted or unvoted property tax within limitations of Ohio law. Self-supporting bonds
are secured by an unvoted property tax levy (special assessments}). However, each appropriate bond indenture
provides for principal and interest to be paid from user charges. Fulure funding requirements for bond anticipation
notes are determinable upon the cenversion of the notes to honds. The Ohio Water Development Authority
(OWDA) and the Ohio Public Works Commission (OPWC) loans will be paid from revenues derived by the County
from the operation of the water and sewer systems. ,

Under the Uniform Bond Act of the Ohio Revised Code, the County has the capacity to issue $18,707,569 of
additional unvoted general obligation debt.

Defeased Debt: In prior years, the County defeased certain general obligation and enterprise fund bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the
old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the
County’s financial statements. On December 31, 1998, $10,990,000 general obltgaﬂon bonds and $40,580,000
of enterprise fund bonds are considered defeased.

Vacation, Personal, Sick and Compensatory Time: AtDecember 31, 1999, a liability for total unpaid vacation,
sick and compensatory time of $3,154,541 was recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.
Unpaid dollars ai December 31, 1999, representing this liability for all governmental funds are as follows:

Vacation, Personal & Compensatory Time ' $ 1,432,689
Sick Time ' 1,721,852
TOTAL 154.541

Pension Obligations: The County records the portion of the pension payments which are paid from
govemnmental funds outside of the available period as a long-term liability of the General Long-Term Obligations
account group. At December 31, 1999 the Iong—term portlon of the county's primary govemment pension
obligation was $954,263. .

Leases: The County had no material capital of operating leases for the year ended December 31, 1999.

Revenue Bond Coverage: The County Water and Sewer funds are required under Revenue Bond Trust
Indentures to maintain minimum debt service coverage ratios. For the 1999 fiscal year, the Water Fund and
Sewer Fund were required to maintain 110% coverage ratios. The coverage ratios for 1899, based on operating
income, system capacity charges and investment income and excluding depreciation for the Water Fund and
Sewer Fund, were 240% and 338% respectively, which both met their legal requirements.

Component Units: The Community Mental Health Board {CMHB) and Board of Mental Retardation and

Developmental Disabilities (MRDD, including Clerco Inc.) are liable for the following long-term obligations. The
CMHB loans are payable from debt service funds included in the component unit financial statements.
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NOTE L - LONG TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS- Continued

GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

1987 Community Mental
Health Board FHA Loan

1991 Community Mental
Health Board FHA Loan

19983 Community Mental
Health Board FHA Loan

1996 Community Mental
Healih Board FHA Loan

TOTAL OTHER LONG-TERM

OBLIGATIONS

Interest
Rate Maturity
7.875% 2019
7.0% 2018
6.125% 2022
B5.75% 2025

Community Mental Health Board:

Compensated
Absences

Pension Obligations

Board of Menta! Health, Retardation &

Developmental Disabilities:

Compensated
Ahsences

Pension Obligations

TOTAL GENERAL LONG-

TERM OBLIGATIONS

56

Balance
1/1/99 Additions
$50,450 $-0-
$204,581 I
~B57,739 -0-
_§03.817 e0e
1,416,587 -0-
15,731 N 5,001
8,996 9,619
601,015 86,933
147,509 178992
§2!189!838 $278.545

.. 9838

Deletions

$50,450

5572

10,457

76,315

-0-

. 147,509

$232.820

Balance
12131/99

$-0-
199,009

547,282

583.981

1340272

20,732
- 9,819

687,948
178,992

$2.235 563



Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTE L. - LONG-TERM DEBT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS- Continued

Debt service requiremnents for cornponent unit long-ierm debt are as follows:

CMHB Loan
BONDS PRINCIPAL - INTEREST
2000 N ‘2?,506_ ) o i8_0878 _
2001 , 29,254 N 79,130
2002 - ~ 31,113 77,271
2003 ) 33,091 75,293
2004 ) 35194 o 73,190
Thereatter 1,184,114 o 792215
TOTALS $1,340.272 §1 77,977

NOTE M - SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS

A summary of the short ferm note transactions for the year ended December 31, 1999 follows:

Balance . Balance
Janyary 1,1989 Increage Decrease Pecember 31, 1999
Fund Type o .
Capital Projects $3,650,000 $3,000,000 - $3,650,000 7 $3,000,000

Short-term notes outstanding at year end consisted of the following issues:

Issues Principal Ouistanding Annuzlized Rate ~ Date of Maturity
Bond Anticipation Notes $3,000,000 - 4.3% December 14, 2000

NOTE N - CONDUIT DEET OBLIGATION

The County did not issue Industrial Development Revenue Bonds during 1998. The proceeds of such issues are
used to acquire, construct, improve, expand, and equip facilities associated with the local industries. Trustees
make the principal and interest payments on the ocutstanding bonds, The issued bonds do not constitute a general
obligation, debt or bonded indebtedness of the County. Neither is the full faith and credit or taxing power of the
County pledged to make repayment. As of Decernber 31, 19989, it is estimated that $216,655,300 was still
outstanding of previously issued bonds.
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NOTE 0 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
Public Employees Retirement System:

All County full-time employees, other than teachers, participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of
Ohio {(PERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan public employee retirement system
created by the State of Chio. PERS, who administers the plan, provides basic retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish
and amend benefits is provided by state statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. PERS issues a stand-
alone financial report which may be obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East
Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642, . . .

The Chio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer contributions. The employee
contribution rate for 1999 was 8.5 percent for employees other than law enforcement. Law enforcement
employees contribute 9.0 percent of covered salary. The employer confribution rate was 13.55 percent of covered
payroli; 3.44 was the portion used to fund pension obligations for 1999. The law enforcement employer rate was
16.70 percent of covered payroll and 9.35 percent was the portion used to fund pension obligations for 1899. The
County's contributions for pension obligations to PERS for the years ended December 31, 1989, 1998, and 1997
were $9,018,106, $8,665,993 and $8,632,252 respectively; 84 percent has been contributed for 1999 and 100
percent for 1998 and 1997. $ 1,423,646 representing the unpaid contribution for 1989, is recorded as a liability
within the respective funds (and the general long-term obligations account group).

State Teachers Retirement System

Certified teachers employed by the school for the Mental Retarded/Developmentally Disabled participate in the
State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS), a cost-sharing multiple employer public employee retirement
system administered by the State Teachers Retirement Board. §TRS provides basic retirement benefits, disability,
survivor, and health care benefits based on eligible service credit to members and beneficiaries. Benefits are
established by Chapler 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for STRS. That report may be obtained by
writing to the State Teachers Retirement Systemn, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3771.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.3 percent of their annual covered salary and the County is required to
contribute 14 percent; 6 percent was the portion used to fund pension obligations. Contribution rates are
established by STRS, upon recommendation of its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates of
10 percent for membets and 14 percent for employers. The County's contributions for pension obligations to
STRS for the years ended December 31, 1989, 1998, and 1997 were $303,706, $295,100 and $311,278
respectively; 93 percent has been contributed for 1999 and 100 percent for the years 1998 and 1997. §21,165
representing the unpaid contribution for 1899, is recorded as a liability within the respective funds.

NOTE P - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS

The Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio {(PERS) provides postretirement health care coverage to age
and service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying Ohio service credit. Health care coverage provided by
the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPER) as described in GASB Statement
No. 12. A portion of each employer's contribution to PERS is set aside for the funding of post-retirement health
care based on authority granted by state statute. The 1998 employer contribution rate was 13.55 percent of
covered payroll for employees not engaged in law enforcement, 4.2 percent was the portion that was used to fund
health care for 1998, For law enforcement employees, the employer contribution rate was 16.7 percent of which
4.2 percent was used to fund health care.
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Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTE P - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS - Continued

For 1899, benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority
recuiring public employees to fund post-retirement health care through their contributions to PERS. OPEB are
financed through employer contributions and investment eamings. The contributions allocated to retiree health
care, along with investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustiments in health care provisions, are
expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely. During 1898, OPEB expenditures made by PERS
were $ 523 million. As of December 31, 1999, the unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB were
$9,870 million. At December 31, 1989, the total number of benefit recipients eligible for OPEB through PERS was
118,062. The County’s actual contributions for 1999 which were used to fund OPEB were $1,5644,138.

Comprehensive health care benefits are provided to refired teachers and their dependents through the State
Teachers Retirement System (STRS). Benefits include hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs and
reimbursement of monthly Medicare premiums. All benefit recipients and sponsored dependents are eligible for
health care coverage. The State Teachers Retirement Board has statutory authority over how much, if any, of
the health care costs will be absorbed by STRS,

All benefit recipients are required fo pay a portion of the health care cost in the form of a monthly premium. By
Ohio law, the cost of coverage paid from STRS funds shall be included in the employer contributions. Through
June 30, 1898, the board allocated employer contributions equal {o 3.5 percent of covered payroll to the Health
Care Reserve Fund. Beginning July 1, 1988, this allocation was increased to 8.0 percent. For 1998 this amount
equaled $72,792. As of July 1, 1998, eligible benefits recipients totaled 91,998. For the year ended June 30, 1998,
net health care costs paid by STRS were $219,224,000.

NOTE Q - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

County employees have the option of participating in three state-wide deferred compensation plans created in
accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under this program, employees elect to have a portion
of their pay deferred until a future time. According to this plan, the deferred compensation is not available to
employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The deferred pay and any income
eamed thereon is not subject to income tax until actually received by the employee. All amounis of compensation
deferred under the plan, ali property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income atiributable to those
amounts, property or rights (until paid or made availahle fo the employee or other beneficiary} must be held in a
trust, custodial account, or annuity contract for the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries.
Deferred amounts from the plan are not considered “made availabie” just because a trust, custodial account or
annuity contract hoids these amounts. The Plan Agreement states that the County and the plan administrators
have no liahility for losses under the plan with the exception of fraud or wrongful taking.

59



Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTE R - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction Commitments: As of December 31, 1889, the County had contractual commitments for
construction projects as foliows:

TCTAL

CONTRACTS COMPLETED COMMITMENT

PROJECT FUND COUTSTANDING TO DATE REMAINING
800 Mega Heriz Radio Tower Communications Fund $11,426,274 $4,284,101 $7,142,173
Courthouse Window replacement  Court House . i ‘
Construction 128,300 4,333 . 124,867
Water System Water Fund 3,083,128 1,371,118 1,712,008
Sewer System Sewer Fund - 4938430 2545048 o 2,383,382
TOTALS $19.577. 132 58,204 601 $11.372 531

Consent Order Dated November 7, 1989. The Office of the Ohio Attorney General has brought suit on behalf
of the Environmenial Protection Agency relating to violations of the NPDES permits issued to the County. A
consent order was placed on record on November 7, 1989 establishing certain time frames for construction of
improvements to the facilities and establishing certain landmark dates for the completion of interim work.
Management believes that the County is currently in compliance with the consent order.

Other Civil Claims: The County is a defendant in a number of claims and lawsuits which may be classified as
routine litigation in which minimal nonmaterial damages are being sought. In addition, the County is a defendant
in numerous other claims and lawsuits in which the County believes either they will prevail in the litigation or the
amounts claimed are overstated and not fair estimates of the ultimate settlements, if any, of these claims.
Amounts paid by the County in 1999 for litigation settled were not material. There are no liabilities associated with
any contingencies carried in the accompanying financial statements based upon the information disclosed in the
above paragraph.

The County participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs. The significant programs are:
FEMA, Job Training Partnership Act grants, Community Development Block grants, Food Stamp Program,
Highway planning construction, Transportation grants, Mental Health and Mental Disability grants. These
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by the Auditor of State under the Single Audit Act of 1984,
OMB Circular A-133. At June 30,1999 the audits of certain programs have been completed. Accordingly, the
County's compliance with applicable grant regulations do not have a material adverse effect on the County's
financial position.

NOTE S - PROPERTY TAX REVENUES

Property taxes include amounts levied against real, public utility and tangible personal (business) property. The
assessed value, by property classification, upon which taxes collected in 1999 were based, are as follows:

Real Property $2,254 672970
Public Utility and Tangible Personal Property $816,993,880
Total Assessed Property Value §3i071 I67’2!850
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Clermont County, Ohio
Notes To The Combined Financial Statements - Continued
December 31, 1999

NOTE S - PROPERTY TAX REVENUES - Confinued

Real property taxes collected in 1899 were levied after October 1, 1988 on ihe assessed values of the preceding
January 1, fhe lien date. Assessed values are estabfished by the County Auditor at 35% of appraised market
value, A revaluaiion of real property is required o be completed no less than every six years, with a statistical
updale every third year. The most recent revaluation was completed in tax year 1997. Tangible personal property
lax is assessed on equipment and inventory held by businesses. Tangible property is assessed at 25% of frue
value. In 1989, each business was eligible to receive a $10,000 exemption in assessed value which was
reimbursed by the State. Real property taxes are payable annually or semi-annually. In 1999, if paid annually,
payment was due by February 10, 1999. If paid semi-annually, the first payment (af least 1/2 of amount billed)
was due February 10, 1999 with the remainder due July 14, 1999,

The County Auditor remits portions of the taxes collected to all taxing districts with periodic settlements of Real
and Public Utility property taxes in February and August and Tangible Personal Property taxes in June and
October for the first and second halves of the year, respectively. The County accrues billed but uncollected
property taxes as receivables af their estimated net realizable value. The delinquent taxes outstanding and
available to the County within the first 60 days of 2000 were recorded as 1899 revenue, the remaining taxes
receivable are offset by a credit to deferred revenue. Ohio law prohibits taxation of properfy from all taxing
authorities in excess of 10 mills without a vote of the people. For 1899 collections, the County levied 2.10 mills
of its 10 mill limit for the General Fund. The County also levied 1.0 mill for the County Capital Fund and .10 for
the Park fund. in addition fo the 3.20 mills, 5.55 mills have been levied for voted miliage.

A summary of voted millage follows:
Rate Levied for

Current Year
Voter Collection {b) Final
Authorized Agriculturalf Collection
Rate (a} Residential Other Year
Board of Mental - Lo '
Retardation 3.25 _ 1.54 1.87 CONT
Community Mental Health 50 24 .30 2001
Senior Citizens 1.00 .88 .80 2001
Chiidrens' Services .80 52 98 2001
TOTAL 555 XL 365

{a) dollars per 1,000 of assessed valuation.
{b)} Ohio law provides for a reduction of certain voted levies to offset inflation in the value of real property. The
levies are subject to this credit.
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NOTE T - ENTERPRISE FUND INFORMATION

The County maintains two Enterprise funds which provide sanitary sewer, water distribution and waste water
treatment services. Segment information for the year ended December 31, 1999 follows:

Segment Information Water Sewer Total
Operating Revenues $12,215,470 $14,021,773 $26,237,243
Operating gaﬁ)enses before _
epreciatio 5,462,628 6,161,785 11,624,413

Depreciation 3,228,240 6,146,980 9,375,230
Cperating income 3,524,602 1,712,998 5,237,600
Net income 1,985,618 244 317 2,239,935
Property, plant and equip-

ent Nadiiong - CaUP 3,049,424 . 3,383,653 6,433,077
Increase in current capital

contributions 3,463,343 5,311,613 8,774,956
Net working capital 28,044,170 39,886,631 67,930,801
Total Assets 115,007,985 169,151,109 284,159,004
Long-Term Debt payable (net

of current portion) 46,075,000 50,450,508 86,525,508
Total Fund Equity - $66,499,105 $115,882,976 $182,382,081

Contributed Capital

A reconciliation of contributed capital follows:

Water Sewer Total
Grant Payments Received $15,461 $210,102 $225,563
Contribuiions from Developers 1,451,797 1,875,932 3,327,729
Systern Capacity Charges ' ' 1,996,085 3,225,579 5,221,664
Contributed Capital at January 1 40,687 551 118,896,513  __159.584.064
Contributed Capital at December 31 $44.150,894 $124,208 126 $168,359.020

NOTE U ~- RECEIVABLES

Receivabies at December 31,1999, consisted of faxXes, special assessments, accrued interest, accounts (billings
for user charged services, including unbilled utility services, and rental payments), interfund and intergévernmental
receivables arising from grants, entitfements and shared revenues. All receivables are considered collectablie in
full, including accounts receivable which, if delinquent, may be certified and collecied as a special assessment,
subject to foreclosure for nonpayment.
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NOTE U - RECEIVABLES - Continued

A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows:

Primary Govermnment _ Amount
General Fund. o
IV-D Contract $ 18,123
Public Defender 1,255
Detention Subsidy 87,752
Total General Fund 107.130

Special Revenue Funds: N

Motor Vehicle and Gas Reimbursement 320,652
Youth Services Subgidy 119,887
Public Assistance Subsidy ‘ 40,573
Emergency Management Reimbursement 990
Community Transportation Grant - 265,753
CSEA Incentive 42,884
Community Development Block Grant 70,323
Total Special Revenue Funds - 851.062
Agency Funds: . o 7 7 |
Undivided interest from Park District 568
Total Primary Government $958,760

Component Lnits:

Community Mental Health Board : § 490,224

County Board of Mental Retardation 12,372
Total Component Units $202.596
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NOTE V - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A summary of operating transfers by fund type follows:

- TRANSFERTO
Special Debt Ca;::ai-ta! - mtema:lir ) Cé}ﬁbbneni -
Transfer From General ) Rg\{gnge _§__e_nfice Projects gg_g_l(a - _y__n_lt_ ~ Tota_tlr
General § -0 $1,786,610 ]$882.150T- $4,452.663 | s -0 "-:S | -0- o ﬁ,121,423
Special Revenue -0- -0~ 1,286,325 -0- Q- -0- 1 288,325
Capital Projects 84,945 7,000 1,360,000 1,281,306 -0- -{- 2,743,251
Intemai Service 100,000 - - 0 150000 - S0 250,000
Component Units -0- = - ] -Ofr,,, Q- 811,918 611,018
TOTALS 194,945 793610  $3.528475 gg!aés,s); o 7;611"!9‘13':' $12.012.917

NOTE W - AMENDMENTS TO ORIGINAL APPROPRIATIONS BUDGET

Amendments beyond the object level must be approved by the Board of County Commissioners. In 1999, the
original appropriation measure was increased and decreased by the Commissioners with the net effect as follows:
General Fund, $11,085,171; Special Revenue Funds, $4,361,967; Capital Project Funds, $14,427,840; and Debt
Service Funds, $93,935.

NOTE X - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of [oss related fo torts; theft or damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries fo employees; and natural disasters. ArthurJ. Gallagher & Co. administers all County reai
and personal property, comprehensive generaliiability including faw enforcement liability, blanket crime coverage,
public officials liability insurance, fleet insurance, and a comprehensive boiler and machinery coverage.

Real and personal property, general liability, including law enforcement llability and public officials liability, are
coverages that fall under the County's Protected Self-insurance program. American National Fire insurance
Company covers up to a lirnit of $1,000,000 for comprehensive general liabllity including law enforcement
activities, and $214,154,300 for real and personal property coverage. Guarenty National Insurance Company
provides a $9,000,000 limit excess of all primary liability policies. Coregis Insurance Company covers up to
$1,000,000 for public officials liability.

All coverages in the program are subiect to the following per occurrence retentions: Property - $25,000; Liability -
$100,000; and a Combined maximum - $100,000.

The American National Fire Insurance Company provides fleet insurance coverage with liability limits of
$1,000,000 for uninsured or underinsured motorists with deductibles of $500 (collision), $250 (comprehensive),
and $1,000 (property damage liability). The Travelers Indemnity insurance Company provides the County’s hoiler
and machinery coverage with limits up to $50,000,000 subject to a $10,000 deductible. The American Motorist's
Insurance Company provides the County’s crime insurance. The County is insured up to $250,000 for dishonest
acts of empioyees, theft or destruction of liquid assets, and $75,000 money and security limits. Deductibies
include $250 (employee dishonesty) and $1,000 (money and securities) for the County’s crime insurance. Settied
claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past five years. There have been no significant
reductions in coverage from last year.
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NOTE X - RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued

The County pays the State Workers' Compensation System a premium based on a rate per $100 of salaries. This
rate is calculated based on accident history and adminisitative costs. The county has elected to provide
empioyees major medical, vision and hospitalization through a self-insured program. The county mainiains a self-
insurance intemal service fund to account for and finance its uninsured risks of lass in this program. A third party
administrator, Anthem Blue Cross and Blue Shield and Dental Care Plus Insurance Companies, reviews all claims
which are then paid by the County. The County purchases stop-loss coverage of $100,000 per employee and an
aggregate fimit of $1,000,000. The County pays into the self-insurance infernal service fund $448.98 for family
coverage and $184.84 for individual coverage per employee per month which represents the entire premium
required. The premium is paid by the fund that pays the salary for the employee and is based on historic cost
information. The claims liability of $471,453 reported in the fund at December 31, 1989 is based on the
requirements of Govemment Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10 which requires that a liability for
unpaid claims costs, including estimates of costs relating fo incurred but not reported claims, be reported.
Changes in the fund's claims liability amount in 1999 were:

Curmrent Year
Claims and
Claims Balance  Changes in Claims Claims Balance at
Beginning of Year _____Estimate . Claims Paymenis Year End
1988 $518,603 $4,728,110 {$4,884,439) $363,2;f4
1999 363,274 4,643,890 (4,535,711) 471,453

NOTE Y - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On February 10, 2000, the Board of County Commissioners approved contracts with OMi and EarthTech for the
operations of both water and sewer systems. On March 1, 2000, the vendors assumed responsibility for the daily
operations of treatment plants and distribution/collection systemns as well as customer billing and collections. The
vendors will collect operating revenues on behalf of the County and will be paid a monthiy lump sum amount in
accordance with their respective contractual agreements.
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

This fund accounts for all financial resources not accounted for in ancther fund. The major revenue sources are
sales tax, property tax, investment earnings and state and local government fund receipts. Itis the operating fund
of the County.
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Expenditures: —__ Budget Actual {Unfavorablg)
Current:
General Government
Legisiative and executive
Commissioners
Personal SBNACES. v cossersrsesrassenes - $587,220 $566,366 $20 854
Purchased Servites.. ... uamsrrerssmmermmrre- 181,067 187,090 3,977
Materials and supplies........ccverrecrnsnersnnes . 11,578 8,293 3,286
Maintenance and repair..........c.coveeeeeeeen 9,747 8,855 892
Utilities......cc..- . 15320 12,196 . 3,124
Total ComMmISSIONETS. ..corrrerveserrirsrsmrsssmemees .- B14, 782 500 ki< T

Department of Personnel

Personal services.....c.o v mvvrreneremrrrseene ... 192,580
Purchased services - - - ... ,37.768
Materials and supplies........corcrmmrrrercceenes . 9,777
Maintenance and repair............ 8,146

UtIES oo e %:en
Total Department of Personnel.........ccce e

189,034 3,556
32,880 . 4,878
8,876 801
7,608 537

el 0

Department of Management & Budget
Personal SEMVICEeS.....cxrrrrrrcrvrerrmsmsrsersaneer 298,011

Purchased services....... - 368,647
Materials and supplies... e -~ 11,089
Maintenance and repair.............ccoeeirreeens 10,035
Utilities... o 942
Other Expendltures S - 400

Total Dept. of Management & Budget BO7 344

250,906 - 47,105
352,568 16,079
5,746 5,343
6,841 3,194
4,235 4,907
400

: -

Facilities Maintenance

Personal services..... sxesnmmenreey 611,666 585,276 26,380
Purchased sernvices..........ccurcreereeeceenee 444 493 417,394 27,099
Materials and sSUPPIES......occerviceeeerrerevsen - 150,500 145,849 4,651
Maintenance and repair................. crrerevrenn . 89,249 80,131 8,118
Utilities......ccoreens 932,222 . 872237 58,885
. Capital outlay O — - 15000 13,582 1,418
Total Facilities Maintenance............... - 2,243 21744649 128 661
Auditor - General Office ) . A
Personal services.. ..o eerecee e ceimecamas . 752,861 716,612 36,249
Purchased services.... N 21,826 T 21,108 518
Materials and supplies... 31,919 31,889 30
Maintenance and repail.......coccerervrereeeeree 3,779 3,689 90
Utilities... - 10,129 9,230 899
Total Aud:tor General OffiCR.. e - 820,314 TB2 028 37,786

Auditor - Personal Property : -
Personal services... FE—— - 43,904

43 094 810

Purchased services......... 4,660 4,350 310
Materials and supplies...... 4,539 4,535 3
Maintenance and repair.... 450 450 o
LB 111 R . 568 518 52
Total Auditor-Personal Property 54,121 52,546 1,175
“(Continued}
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

- continued - Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget ) Actual _{(Unfaverable)
Information Systems T
Personal SerViCES........c oo ruvwresermsssasases . 809,626 790,370 19,258
Purchased services...... S . 402,907 401,574 1,333
Materials and suppligs..... i - 18,637 14,387 ) 2,240
Maintenance and repair...... v comvrreemem - — .. 231,357 224,495 8,862

Utifities.......... 74,579 68,833 _ 5,746

Total Information SyStems..c......ecenet 1535108 T AT5.668

Records Retention

s

Personal services... : 60,514 58,154 1,380
Purchased Services. .......ccermrrrmrmersarmsaas 2,840 _.. 2749 91
Materials ang supplies..... . 6,680 ’ 6,425 255
Maintenance and MEPaiT.. oo v wreeeeoreecem . 560 268 2092
Utifities. .. . 4,300 4284 6
Total infom‘latmn Systems ........................ ] 74 554 = v B0l T 04
Budget Commission
Purchased services........cccvemeveans. - 275 275 0
Materials and supplies..... . L .1.350 1,350 D
Total Budget CommiSsion. .o .o~ o, " 1,625 ]
Board of Revision
Purchased SErviCeS....ccocveceeeeviceeeeeens. 2,600 088 . 1,602
Materials and supplies........ccremvmnccaeen o 2,000 1,300 700
Total Board of ReViSion.......co..crererreeermmenas 4 500 ~ 2288 2,302
Bureau of Inspection -
Purchased ServiCes........ocvevervemmvrmmemesnenens . 82.500 80,336 2,164
Utilities... o 585 585 0
Total Board of fnspectlon ................. — 83,085 ’ 0,027 T8+
Auditor - Tax Map
Personal services........ e eertremmneneeeasommarassns . 100,998 98,404 2,582
Purchased services..... SRS 2,900 0 2,900
Materials and supplies.... . 9,854 §,B28 . ..=28
Maintenance and repair...........cccorveeeeene . 10,000 7,520 . 2,480
Ufilities........ce...... _ 2? 011 1.011 ) 1,000
Total Auditor - Tax Map.....cccervmrmmrmrarene _ D B T8, 764 3557
Treasurar
Parsonal services..... . . 445 654 433,610 5,044
Purchased ServiCES.......ccveeeeeerercvemeorenens 10,086 T 9883 223
Materials and supplies.... _45817 T 45495 322
Maintenance and repair........cccrevemmemaees - 25,136 i 23,981 1,165
Utilities.......ccoeee ) o 0430 . 8,128 C 2,00
Total TreasUurer. ....cccovceeeecopcaeseeeses s j _3§§_,_ 853 _ 527 ’ 3 ]
Prosecuting Attorney
Personal services........ = oo 1,851,083 1,823,481 27612
Purchased services..... - . 55,498 54,434 - 1,082
Materials and SUPPHES. ..o rerriccercmrns .. .25185 25,161 24
Maintenance and repair.. i 12,498 12,39 107
LJHIEES. oo et ccec s e e e - 16,474 16,474
Total Prosecuting AOmMeY.......ooreevremmeeene 1580,735 RS IEES §3’| EE EﬁE

(Contmued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1889

- continued Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Beard of Elections . - B
Personal ServiCes. ... smmrmmmmreere 408,873 _ 395,124 13,749
FPurchased services............. __228,335 156,368 71.967
Materials and supplies....,.m.‘..........,.,m: 91 405 45912 45,493
Maintenance and repair.........ccoecsrvrmsriseens - 17,128 13,650 3,478
Utilities...ccooeenee 5,200 5,098 102 .
Capital outlay... e e 437 378 59
Total Board of Electlons ............................ \ 616,540 _ 154,848
Recorder ) i
Personal ServiGes........ccrrvnreererssmnmmneens 347,784 341,837 5,847
Purchased services....... 7,622 " 6,183 1,439
Materials and supplies...... 17,015 13,348, 3,669
Maintenance and repair.... 2,000 133 1,867
ULiltes. .oereereevrnececennes . —.—— 5,800 5112 6538
Total ReCOrder. .. e ececen s isnanne 380,221 366,711 13,510
Insurance, Health and Judgemenis
Personal services...... 10,161 0 - 10,161
Purchased services . . 400,080 337,643 . 82447
Total insurance, Health and Judgemenis... ) kkyflTk] j 7%32%
Legislative and Executive Grants - o
Purchased services... 363,595 200,800 162,795
L8311 T, . 15,000 .. 0 _... 15000
Total Legislative and Execufice Grants...... 378,595 200,800 A7, 15
Capitai Purchases
Capital outlay.........coovre s rerssrensen 4,448,371 1,765,865 2,682,506
Total legislative and executive.....oermveceeee 15,572,235 12,415256 . . _ 3,458,979
Judicial
Court of Appeals )
Purchased SernviCes...c....rrrremrremssirrrssnienes 75,000 74,583 ) __ 417
Common Pleas Court
Personatl services 430,951 419,426 11,525
Purchased Semnvices..........cccrmrmasiverssrens sor 233,429 232615 814
Materials and supplies...... 21,741 17,931 3,810
Maintenance and repair.... N 6,874 243
Utilities... - - 17,498 17,099 399
Total Common Pleas CourL..... eam e, " ﬁ:?ﬁﬁ §§§ 545 18,701
Jury Commission
Personal SErVICes. ... e e ecereremrmmsrrornnr o . 142,991 131,683 11,308
Purchased Services..........cccvevcmes 24,045 23,233 812
Materials and supplies..... 6,000 5,835 165
Maintenance and repair... 1,715 349 1,366
LHilities. ...t cvrer v 2,600 2,519 g1
Total Jury Commission........ccoormcomerinnns 177,357 163819 15,752
(Continued)
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- continued Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Law Library
Personal services.......... .. 109,572 108,435 1,137
Purchased SeIVites.......ivamervrrersmmerenerscrns - . 1,020 0 1,020
UHHES. . coee e ceensreere v nnsres o cnnmrermmnns ereemerrerenen ... Boo 681 119
Total Law Library.......cueiereeceeceamsarssccesmsmcsen 711,382 ~ 108,116 2,279
Domestic Relations Court - -
Personal SEMVICES. ......ccummoresrsrrsrers rssensmseres . 162,188 707.937 . 54,249
Purchased services..... S 125,775 30,732 95,043
Matetials and SUPPHES..... cwsrecoeeremmmrrrm e . L2TB00° 20,734 6,766
Maintenance and repair........ocemrrremrerreseres 5,617 - 5122 495
Utilities........cccru.e 10,000 .. 9,808 7
Capital outlay........ 58,200 22,100 38,100

Total Domestic Refations Court.....oorvcieemene 989,2'?& ?§7 E,ZV k] ~ 182 BdE

Juvenile Court
Personal Servicas.....c..ciovemeeeceiinescsences e 319,176 812,740 6,436
Purchased Services... ... rseirnreersinenas 136,214 136,065 - 149
Materials and supplies..... 33,775 30,645 3,130

Maintenance and repaif.........coeeersresmreommsnens 6,360 4,431 ) 1,929
Utilities........... .. 15,984 14,832 1,052
Capital outiay.............. N ,23@[]0' . . 22,085 B 815
Total Juvenile Court.......comveemrmeseeorcsenmmrrsssens . 1,034 1,020,888 13811
Probate Court
Personal S8rvi0aS. ....cociniveemrecsvesresrame rovrassssas . 252,027 . 248475 3.552
Purchased services 23.384 . 20,535 2,848
Materials and supplies............... 9,432 8,145 1,287
Maintenance and repair..........ccceeee . 3,000 ‘ 2,962 38
UHHHES. oo cem e aeene . 4482 3,738 743
Total Probate Court. .o e . m PR ) 8,468
Clerk of Courts .
Parsonal Services.........ccceeeieerasercemsvarsnsaves - 856,856 638,580 17,876
Purchased services 94,914 24,912 o2
Materials and supplies.........cccccrrremsenerenmenss 593,866 59,845 ] !
Maintenance and repair.............crereommme 6,100 5,550 B850
Utifities.......... .. 10,435 10,435 0
Other expendifUres. ... rwveressorrreasnae N _ 258 255 _ 0
Total Clerk of Courts. ... crerereccmut e K BIGAT? 18,448
Clerk - Municipal Court
Personal SenviCes........vvereremsemmeneees T34, 271 C .. T8 720 . 17,851
Purchased services......... 23,933 23,608 T 324
Materials and supplies.... . 72,982 . 71,864 - 1,118
Maintenance and repail.......c.ceeeceervrre J— 3913 2,851 . . 1062
Utilities.....coeveeen. . 17,691, _ . 11,342 6,349
Total Clerk - Municipal Court......ooeereiins 852,780 . i 25,404
{Continued)
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

o_. .

- continued Variance:
Revised B Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Public Defender
Personal services........ . 654217 651,507 2710
Purchased Services.......oueve e eeeseeessesssmeens . 38,215 34,493 4,722
Materials and supplies...... trat b s 5,672 5,647 25
Maintenance and repair.......v. oo cmmmmanscsie:. ———2, 131 1,612 519
UltiES. ..o .. . BBT2 5544 1,128
Total Public Defender.........cvineeecanaeeer. - — 7,907 698,803 9,104
Municipal Court
Personal Semvices......cco. v veeceeseseceraceconnn - - 518,142 591,081 27,0861
Purchased services....... . 24,454 19,870 4,584
Materials and supplies...... 13,933 12,724 1,209
Maintenance and repair.........c.ooeecssssniane =5,167 5,150 17
Litilities 10193,@ S 8_&38? _1‘649
Total Municipal Court.......cccnviieresriecsssee . B 1,732 637,212 34,520
Total judicial ... 5,461 446 8,124,828 336618
Public safety
Communications Center . 7 .
Personal SenViCes. .ot ceees st et ceeeies 1,013,965 978,472 35,493
Purchased services 139,498 138,632 866
Materials and supplies..........oevieeeeeeeccceeeees 20,028 15,185 4 843
Maintenance and repair.............cocoo oo 92,341 89,115 3,226
Utilities... - 43451 43,451 .
Total Commumcattons Center....mcicanancee . 1,3 1,264 855 44 428
Building InspectloniPenmt Central —
Personal services.......... wonmrmmimrenen-— - 101,454 725,028 26,466
Purchased serwces ....... R 16,400 5211 11,188
Matertals and supplies.........c.cceeee.e. PRSI 23,700 20,072 3,628
Maintenance and repair...........ccccocoomereennees 14,5582 12,258 2,334
Utilities., . 12,117 10,085 2,032
Other expenditures.... e - 2,000 _ 1,680 . 320
Total Building Inspection.......cviceversneressme— . 820,303 d 14,334 45 968
County Caoroner
Personal services.. 101,843 D4 842 7.001
Purchased services.......... 79,768 - 79,087 671
Materials and supplies...... 4,449 4,440} 8
Maintenance and repair........cccooevme e . - 2,500 2,237 263
Utilities.....oc.. 2,234 2144 80
Total County Coronela e R TED. 760 8,034
(Continued)
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CLERMONT COURNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES

- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

- continued Variance:
Revised Faverable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Aduit Probation )
Personal ServiCes....c. e eevressssnssssane 440,606 398,159 - 42,447
Purchased services........ 186,620 . 14,018 2,602
Materials and supplies....... 15,236 6,119 9,117
Maintenance and repair..... 6,242 4 985 1,257
LB -1 SO e Q‘H!_?‘12 ) 10,421 1,291
Total Adult Probation ...........ceseeeeervense- . 480,416 433,702 58714
Juvenile Detention , :
Personal ServiCes. ..o iveeeeecereeecesmnssstenennne - 837,046 813,497 23,549
Purchased services reereaenr 6,085 4,495 1,580
Materials and supplies... e emrermbenanes 56,814 56,446 368
Maintenance and repair............cccccvvrvvnrrrrmcnes 14,289 14,046 i 243
Utilities............. . 4,583 4582 N
Total Juvenile Detention..............cormrrasmrenas 718,827 555,076 ;
Juvenile Probation
Personal $ervices. ....cco memmameerer 278,568 260,106 18,462
Purchased services....... . 3,109 _.1.847 1462 -
Materials and supplies... - . 8,077 6,292 1,785
Maintenance and repair..........c...oeeeerecermm o 4,393 2,454 1,838
Utilities. ...... 4,298 . 4,286 0
Total Juvenile Probation............ocecvvivcevevire . 288,44 274785 T IEEAE
Sheriff
Personal SErVICES. ... eiireee v reererrrremmomrrines 4,953,728 4,948,195 5,833
Purchased services....... - -230,349 . 228,364 1,885
Materials and supplies......ccceeerrerenirrreaee 191,536 181,070 466
Maintenance and repail...........omrreeremsrrrenne 152,311 142,658 9,653 -
UtilHies. .ccvrevrrrenns S -. 61,528 _ 60,085 1,441
Capital outlay.........co.rnm . 3,182 Q
Total Shedff.......ccorerrreecorannn B 57a,.564
Aduit Detantion . )
Personal serviCes. ..o s rrsemrrrremrane 3,766,048 3,781,985 4,053
Purchased ServiCes. ....curerceerrosmmners S 858,268 859,245 23
Materials and supplies...... e rrrree e 476,874 485,643 11.331
Maintenance and repair........cocveceesecerreres 26,971 25,068 1,803
UHtilifies.......oonreeene 18,567 18,255 312
Capital outlay.........co e crsrrreesrerneca -. 9,588 8,599 a
Total Adult Detention. ... oo rrrrerrrrrceresememnes 5157 437 5,135,805 17,622
Municipal Court Adult Probation
Personal servicas.....cc e 363,980 352,022 11,858
Purchased services.... e . 4875 4 656 . 19
Materials and sUPPES......ccccoecrnerrrrenvssrerasens 10,1869 8465 = 1,704
Maintenance and repair.............ccovverrseermrenens _.3.953 3,868 85
Utilifies........cccemvrerees e .._ DE03 5,429 174
Total Municipal Court Adult Probation............. . 374 440 13,540
Total public safety 14,866,515 14,711,331 255,184
ST (Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

- continued \ariance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabie)
Health :
Tuberculosis Clinic . .
Purchased Semvices......comreieriiarererer e - . 43700 43,700 8]
Other Health
Purchased SeIVICES..cc.ciicmisarnrsrari errsrammnn .300,018 298,135 1,880
Utilities... 4272 4,075 197
Total Other Health reervenerestrare e e em e ——— 304,287 302,210 \
Total health . 347,887 345,910 2,077
Human services
Veterans Service Commission
Personal SErVICES. ... reervrsssosmsramnrs ronmrsnces _ . 270,478 221,851 48,627
Purchased services........ o = . BI1TTTI 232,632 439,141
Materials and supplies....... 12,080 10,417 1,663
Maintenance and repair ..... 10,000 5,248 4,754
1] 1 T RO 5,000 4,244 . 756
Capital outlay... . - 41,127 35,292 5,835
Total Veterans Serwoe Commnss:nn 010, ) ] 500,776 N
Human Servicas Granis .
Purchased SemVICes.c..o.. e encnensn -.37,558 37,558 o
Total human services. 1,048,016 547,240 500,776
Community development
Community Planning & Development
Personal services.. . __ 332392 .. _243,756 88,636
Purchased services..........ccoceeceeeevvcecvverennvenons 212,145 149,078 63,067
Materials and sUpPleS......cooeevvcesr s 8,179 8,168 11
Maintenance and repatr., 3117 2,510 607
Utilities... - - 4,382 4,086 286
Other expendltures s e e 25 25 .0
Total Planning & Development 407,623 152617
Planning Commission -
Purchased Services. ... 1,492 1,140 352
Total community development.........ccoecscnianes 561,732 408,763 152 869
Total expenditures............ceeeccvmiees e sommmnimmeee 998,957,931 $34,253,328 $4,704,603
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

These are funds used to account for specific governmental revenues {other than major capital projects) requiring
separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action.

Dog and Kennel
The shelter provides animal control administration to and on behalf of the citizens of Clermont County.

Public Assistance
The Public Assistance Fund administers human service programs under state and federal regutation. These
programs encompass Aid to Dependent Children (ADC), Medicaid, Food Stamps and Social Services.

Real Estate Assessment -
Monies are coliected from the tax settlement to finance the appraisal of reat property in Clermont County.

Motor Vehicle and Gas Tax
This fund accounts for monies received from state taxes and fees that are used for the operahon of the
County engineering department.

Youth Service Subsidy
This fund supports programs that enable youths to remain in the community rather than being placed in state
institutions. These programs include a summer work program, foster care program and others.

Chiidren Services and Children Services Levy
This county agency is responsible by law for investigation of all reports of child abuse, neglect or
dependency. Services include family counseling, foster care, adoption services and ciinical services.

Senior Services Levy ‘
This fund supports programs to provide and maintain senior services and facilities.

Employment Training Center
The Job Training and Partnership Act provides services io economically disadvantaged county residents in
the areas of vocational classroom training, self-directed job search, work experience, and on-the-job training.

County Lodging
Monies collected from the lodging excise tax used to fund the Convention and Visitors' Bureau in
Clermont County.

Chitd Support Enforcement
This fund is used to account for funds received under Title VD of the Social Security Act and fees collected
on suppaort payments. [t is used for the collection of payments due under support orders.

Community Development Block Grant
This fund is used to account for revenues from the Federal Government and expenditures (primarily to local
governments) as prescribed under the program regulations.
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Delinquent Tax and Assessment

Monies collected from {ax settlements {o finance the collection of delinquent taxes in Clermont County.

Other small programs operated by the County that are subsidized by county, state and federal momes and

miscellaneous contributions. These funds include:

Marriage Licenses
Emergency Management
Environmental Reserve

Solid Waste Management
Community Transportation
Advocate Project

Mediation

Economic Development Loan
Narcotics Unit

Septic Tank Rehabilitation®
Enforcement and Education
Indigent Guardianship

Pilot Probation

interest Prepayment
indigent Driver Alcohol Treatment
. Comrnunity Oriented Policing

* non-budgeted funds
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Computer Legal Research*
Treatment Alternative to Street Crime
Certificate of Title Administration
Recorder Supplemental

Research and Computerization®*
Municipal Court Computerization
Common Pleas Court Computerization
Ditch Maintenance

Juvenile Court Computerization
Facilities Approval Service
Community Corrections

Municipal Court Intensive Probation
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant
FEMA

Municipal Court Probation Service
Administration in Justice

Neville*




CLERMONT COUNTY, QHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 1988

Motor
Dog and Public Real Estate  Vehicle and
Assets Kennel Assistance Assessment Gas Tax
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents............c.cecene. $21,034 $2,067,580 $1,396,010 $2,715,299
Receivables (net allowances ' : - Co
for uncollectibles)
=) T -0 0 0 87,225
Fi¥elota1 1] )| £ USRI 0 0 g 144,161
Accrued interest........ccccccreecccirresnanns ol 0 v} 28,149
Due from other funds..........c........ - 0 0 0 8,881
Loans receivable.........eceeceivernvmmreccrccccceee 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental receivable.......... ... 0 0 0 320,652
Total @5SEtS.....cvvvvcei i e e $21,034 $2,067,590 $1,396,010 $3,302,367
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities: :
ACCOUNES payable..... oo crerrerrm e eeeeer s - 92,79 $816,534 $60,682 $403,231
Accrued wages & benefits.......cccccvecmreseeenvenneennnen -.-0 86,480 11,441 40,952
Compensated absences payable..............._... ] 31,953 3,838 11,524
Interfund payable..............ccccccsiiemreri s -0 - 0 0 0
Intergovernmental payable.........ccoor s 1,701 8479 258 994
Deferred revenue..........ccuveceeeeenn. , S ¢ 0 0 19,036
Other abilities. ..cccce i vrsrtises s s s : 0 0 0 0
Total Habilifies.......ccovvvicieecere s 4 491 843,446 76,227 475,737
Fund balances
Reserved for encumbrances......ooovvocroe e 0 167,830 116,816 489,330
Reserved for loans receivable..........cccceeevvveccnnnnns 0 0. 0 D
Unreserved/undesignated (deficit).................... s 16,543 956,314 1,202,967 2,337,300
Total fund balances {deficit)......... . rercccrvrrenns 16,543 © 1,124,144 1,319,783 2,826,630
Total liabilities and fund balances...........coccoveevi e $21,034 $2,067,590 $1,396,010 $3,302,267
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Youth Senior Children
Service Children Marriage Emergency Services Services Environmental
Subsidy Services Licenses Management Levy _Levy Reserve
$729.539  $430,720 $24 535 $74,904 $284,374 $13168  $146,049
0 0 0 0 2783437 1,864,490 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 1,309 0 84.411 56,941 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
119,887 40,573 0 090 0 0 0
$840,426  $471,293 525644 $75.804 53153222 $1.934599 $146,049
$9.013  $848,479 $26.638 $18,956 $281,873 $0 $7,171
8.754 0 0 1,869 0 0 0
3.246 0 0 593 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
257 0 0 304 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 2,864,670 1,919,293 0
0 0 0 a 0 0 0
51270 848,479 2658 21722 _ 348543 _ 1019293 7171
1,811 37,563 0 3427 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
826,345 (414,749 (794) 50,745 5,679 15,306 138,878
325,156 '(3'77_,18_16)' (794) 54,172 5670 15306 __ 138878
$849.426  $471.293 $25,844 $75,894  $3152.222  $1034599  $146.049
{Continued)



CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1999 - (Continued)

Employment
Training Sofid Waste Community Advocate
Assets Center Management Transportation Project
Equity in pooled cash and '
cash equivalents.... S UUUVOVVUONUUUR-.¥ 7 3 }+ 11 $486,999 $153,153 $27,945
Receivables {net al[owances
for uncollectibles)
TAXES.ceeirirrreeeerrumresereraemmmesenans . 0 0 0 0
AcCoUNS.....ccoeiiemmnreremneeeee. : 0 39,573 6,840 o
Accrued interest..........oooeeeom e — 785 0 0 0.
Due from ofther funds.........c.eveeenicee e ; 182 0 o] 0
Loans receivable... trarrersamsserensensseravenenres . D .0 . 0 )
Intergovernmental recewab[e .................................... - o _ 0 255,753 0
Total ASSOLS...cceveuieirrireerenreeeeemcececremen e mmenrerereas . $75,127 ~ $526572 $415,746 $27.,945
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable.........ccccirime e rrens $49,098 $50,907 $8,871 $410
Accrued wages & benefits.......cvoeeiiieiceeneeee 2,442 1,434 9,504 0]
Compensated absences payable....ccerceeee. —- 8942, 207 2,490 0
Interfund pavyabie.............. heaessussrensaserreseesrernaeraran - ] 0 -0 o
Intergovernmental payable........coocoieeierieecccicnins 14,458 39,620 175 0
Deferred revenUe......... e ee e 531 } 0 0 0
Other Babilities...........ccoovvimmmiiin e = D -0 0 . 0
Total liabilities. ... . 67,471 92,168 21,040 410
Fund balances
Reserved for encumbrances............. e v 11,150 48,133 32,938 65
Reserved for loans receivable.........cooerceeecvvieeceee ; 0 -0 0 . . @
Unreserved/undesignated (deficit)......c.evrcrcrvcccee. . (3,484) 386,271 361,768 27,470
Total fund balances (deficif)......cvvomoce e 7,656 434,404 394,706 27,535
Total liabilities and fund balances............. S "$75,127 $526,572 " $415,746 $27.945
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Septic

Child Community Economic Tank
County Support Development Development Narcotics Rehabilita-

Mediation Lodging  Enforcement Block Grant Loan Unit tion
$28,262 $0 $2,466,036 . $76,675 $8,534 $412,839 $6,578
W] 0 0 0 0 0 0
15 1] 0 0 o 38,232 g
o 0 0 0 80 2,000 65
0 43,396 58,169 0 22 - 489 18
0 0 0 0 0 0 200,021
0 0 42 884 70,323 0 0 , 0
$28,277 $43,386  $2,567,089 $146,998 $8.646 $453,560 $206,680
$452 50 $57,905 $25,417 $0 $3,391 $0
3,443 0 33,366 . 0 0 2,757 0
1,824 0 11,159 0 0 108 0
0 0 0 38,329 0 0 0
99 0 659 89,000 0 2417 0
0 0] 0 0 51 1,362 44
0 43,396 0 0 0 0 0
5,818 43,396 103,089 152,746 61 10,026 44
116 0 76,152 36,833 0 4,195 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 200.021
22,343 0 2,387,848 (42,681) 8,585 439,339 6,615
22,459 0 2,464,000 (5,748) 8,585 443,534 206,636
$28,277 $43,396 52,567,089 $146,998 $8,646  $453,560 $208,680
{Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1999 - (Continued)

Deifinguent
Tax and Indigent Pilot Interest
Assets Assessment Guardianship Probation Prepayment
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalemMs.........ccccvvecciirrem e $406,967 - $9,203 $33,385 . $15,259
Recelvables (net allowances
for uncollectibles)
X = T, . 0 - 0 0 0
Accounts.......... U S 0 0 0
Accrued interest......... 0 o 0 441
Due from other funds....cccociceceresrrce e rvcrrr e raene 0 1,240 0 0
Loans receivable ... 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental receivable.........eeevorer e ceieeieias 0 .0 .0 ‘ 0]
Total assets.......ccoveereevirrererens _$406,967 $10,443 $33,365 $15,700
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities: )
Accounis payable..........ccvecvrvrrrvrrerenere e .. $8,044 $202 %838 $1,244
Accrued wages & henefits.......ccooooreeiiiicriees 3,934 0 2,839 - 0
Compensated absences pavable.............ccccveinees . 668 0 593 0
Interfund payable... 0 , o _ . 0 .0
Intergovernmental payable.........-covevreeeereemmeenseenee = 6% 0 4,388 0
Deferred réVeNUE........cccee e remrere e r e ceae e .0 0 0 0
Other liabilities..... -0 . 0 . 0 0
Total liabilities. ....ccv.ceeeeereees 13,715 202 8.658 1,244
Fund balances : _
Reserved for encumbrances. ... ireccccceanes o 349 ) 0. 0 27
Reserved for loans receivable...........cccoovrvrmmnane- 0 0 0_ 0
Unreserved/undesignated (deficit)..............cccoemee 382,803 10,241 24,707 14,429
Total fund balances (deficit).......c.ccccciriicrrirrrrnrrsnn .- 383,252 . 10,241 24 707 14,456
Total liabilities and fund balances........cccooieeeeeeeeen. $406,967 $10,443 $33,365 $15,700
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Indigent Treatment
Driver Enforcement Community Computer Alternatives Certificate
Alcohol and Oriented Legal to Street of Title Recorder
Treatment  Education Policing  Research Crime Admin. Suppliemental
$27,529 %$17,156 $7.467 $5,934 $15,868 $440,785 $162,018
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
4] )] 0 0 0] 0 896
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 Q 0 0 0 0
0 o 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
$27,529 $17,156 §7,467 "$5,034 $15,5868 $440,785 $162,914
$0 $0 $0 $0 50 56,204 $24,827
D 0 0 0 2,627 6,589 0
0] 0 0 o 534 571 1]
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 407 0 a 6,062 101 g
0 0 0 0 0 0 C
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 407 0 0 9,123 13,555 24,827
0 33 4] 0 3,861 80,753 - 3,440
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
27,529 16,716 7,467 5,934 2,884 346,477 134,647
27,529 16,749 7 467 5,034 5,745 427,230 138,087
$27.,529 $17,156 $7.,467 - $5,934 $15.868 $440,785 $162,914
(Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1988 - (Continued)

Research Municipal Common
and Court Pleas Court
Computer- Computer- Computer- Ditch
. Assets ization ization ization Maintenance
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents..........ccccorvermeecrvececcccccerncmmnmmeeneees $485,280 $506,925 $106,242 $39,032
Receivables {net aliowances -
for uncollectibles)
Taxes......... . 0 : 0 o 0
ACCOUNES....covvverreeeeeenrc e e - 684 .77 0 0
Accrued interest......ccoceoceei v nee 0. 0 0 0
Due from other funds.......covervevv e emesmennes 1,622 0 0. Q
Loans receivable. ..o v cceeiinveerenmem e evmenne 0 ¥ 0 Q
intergovernmental receivabie...........cc........... - , 0 0 0 . 0
B o1 1 1o = T, ... 5497506 $507,002 $106,242 $36,032
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities: .
Accounts payable..... - $3,883 $128,8952 $43,339 $1,148
Accrued wages & benefits........ccoorvomeeeenee e - 0 0 0 0
Compensated absences payable.................c....... 0 0 0 0
Interfund payable................ 0. 0 _ 0 o]
Intergovernmental payable.......ccvcvorrrreeceeee s 14,687 0 0 D
Deferred revenue........coveeveeee.s 0 0] 0 0
Other liabilities.....cccccevvreercnnenne .0 0 _ 0 0
Total hiabilities.....c.ccorueeeem. . 18,570 128,952 43,339 1,148
Fund balances
Reserved for encumbrances........ccccoeeecevemerevvecemn 21,845 42 683 .. 43,464 1,163
Reserved for loans receivable.........cccovvmvereeeccrninnen 0 ) 0 ] 0 0
Unreserved/undesignated (deficit).....ccovvirvveieveneee 457,181 335,387 19,439 36,721
Total fund balances (deficit)........... ame s s anaanes 479,026 378,050 62,903 37,884
Total liabilities and fund balances......ccvvereeceeeeee.. 5497 5985 $507,002 $106,242 $39,032
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Juvenile Munricipal Local Law

Court Facilities Court Enforcement Muni/Court

Computer- Approval Community Intensive Block Probation

ization Service Corrections  Probation Grant FEMA Service

$43,118 3676 $13,482 $8,434 $554 $271,714 $114,066

0 0 0 0 0 D 0

2,230 0 0 0 o] 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 D 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 ' 0 0 0 0

$45,349 $676 $13,482 $8,434 $554  $271,714 — $114,066

$8,897 $0 $0 3663 %0 34,815 $195

8] 0 0 1,585 Q0 0] 0

0 0 o 0 0 0 0

[t} t] o o t] o 0

0 0 0 45 7 0 0

0 0 0 o 0 o D

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

8,897 0 0 2253 7 4,815 195

85 0 11,029 254 0 9,150 199

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

36,367 876 2,453 5,887 547 257,749 113,672

36,452 676 13,482 8,141 547 266,899 113,871

$45,349 3676 $13,482 $8.434 $564 $271,714 $114,066
{Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1999 - (Continued)

Administration
Assets in Justice Neville Totals
Equity in pooled cash and -
cash equivalents..........cccceveaa..... $1,741 $75,106 $14,462,325
Receivables (net a[[owances
for uncollectibles)
L= 5= T RSO .0 .0 4 735,152
ACCOUNTS....iiecemeee e ccrcr e s s e reeenae e armes 0 0 232,708
Accrued interest......c.coo o eeeees 0 0 31,530
Due from other funds....c e rre oo .0 0 254 688
Loans receivable... s raeeaan e e r e ————aaos 0 0 200,021
Intergovernmental recewable ................................. : 0 0 851,062
Total 8SSets.....ccoiirirs i errnisreere s e $1,741 $75,106 $20,767 488
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities: : , ao
Accounts payable........eooeeeeeee. — 30 $105,193 $3,011,362
Accrued wages & benefits......ooeeeerees e . 0 0 219,916
Compensated absences payable.......oveeeraeareeee 0 0 70,249
Interfund payable........cccceiieecre e 0 0 38,329
Intergovernmental payable......c.coviniceeerenerenens 0 0 184,187
Deferred revenue......coceeeeen. 0 0. 4,804,987
Other liabiiities............. S . 0 0 43,396
Total liabilities.....c.cccvecrvererrrrerrarrceveen 0 105,193 8,372,426
Fund balances
Reserved for encumbrances.......cc.ccccccevevvevmmnnnecaes _ 0 0 1,244,774
Reserved for loans receivable.......c.ccovovveenceees 0 , 0 200,021
Unreserved/undesignated (deficit).....cccccoereennes. 1,741 (30,087) 10,950,265
Total fund balances (deficit)............cccoveeeceereccrcerenr . 1,741 (30,087) 12,395,060
Total liabilities and fund balances.........ccccocevervaivrne — $1.741 $75,106 $20,767,486
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

Motor
Dog and Public Real Estate  Vehicle and
Kennel Assistance Assessment Gas Tax
Revenues:
TaXES..ueuemeeeererarreems — $0 $0 $0 $1,237,602
Licenses and permits........cco oo eecreecrcvsvnrcrecomennnns 173,879 -0 "0 44,570
Intergovernmental...........cccoeveerren e 0 9,019,244 0; 6,606,457
Charges for sernvices. ..o et 0 - 7,338 1,322,342 315,251
Special assessments................... .. 0 0 0 0
Investment eamings........ccccvveecemnerrmeerereeennmacsmearen- 0 0 0 132,330
Fines and forfeifures.... oo e eccecimimccieces et eenes .. 33630 0 - 0 236,775
Net decrease in fair value of investments............... . 0 0 ' 0 (52,818)
All other reVenUes...ov e e oo —ee —- . 0. 419,827 230 114,863
Total Revenues........c..ccocceneeeeene 207,508 5,446,409 1,322,572 8,635,130
Expenditures:
Current: ‘
General government:
Legislative and executive.......covrrcecermeeeeceeee . 0 0 1,225,186 0
Judicial. oo 0 0 0 . 0
Public safety....ccccccrrrrnens e asanas 0 0 0 ) -0
PUDIIC WOTKS.....civveersiersrnrromsme s cemee e memeen e s veeaeenee 0 0 0 7,368,042
Health.........cc............ U 233,790 0 0 D
HUMAN SEIVICES... .. veeem e e e e e crre rerrerererrsrmrsermes 0 - 9,382,882 0 -0
Community development............ 0 0 0 0
Transportation..........coccv e e 0 0 0 1]
Intergovenmental....c...ccoovccmrinr e 0 0 .0 0
Total expenditures.......ccccvvviveer e cserer e eeeennes 233,790 9,382,882 1,225,186 7,368,042
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures.........ccrecevirrr s csssrerrennrernnns . (26,281) 53,527 97,386 1,267,088
Other financing sources {(uses):
Operating transfers in............. . 0 489,265 0 12,316
Operating transfers (out)........., -0 U ¢ .0 (1,288,325)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets.................. 0 1,837 0 152,430
Total other financing sources (USeS).......co.ooveveeenass. .0 491,102 0 {1.121,579)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing USes. .o (26,281) 544 629 97,386 145,509
Restated fund balance(deficit} at beginning of year 42 824 579,515 1,222,397 2,681,121
Fund halance (deficit) at end of year.......ccccceeveernnees $16,543 $1,124,144 $1.319,783 '$2,826,630
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Youth Senior Children
Service Children Marriage Emergency Services Services Environmental
Subsidy Services Licenses  Management Levy Levy Reserve
30 $0 $0 $0 $2,567,474 $1,719,444 $0
0 1] 50,906 0 0 0 0
1,211,045 2,430,086 h] 40,451 252,187 156,082 .- 0
0] 103,079 0 o] 0 0 14,893
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 ¢] 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0]
0 0 0 0 0 a 0
0 87,026 0 4,653 _ 0 .0 -~ B0
1,211,045 2,620,191 50,906 45 104 2,819,661 1,875,526 14 893
0 1] 0 1] 0 1] 485,339
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1,067,981 0 0 174,928 0 0 8]
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 3,406,397 77,554 0 2,820,003 1,869,767 0
0 0 0 0 0 Q Q
0 0 0 0] 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1,067,881 3,406,397 77.554 174,928 2,820,003 1,869,767 485,339
143,064 {786,206) (26,648)  (128,824) .. (342) 5,759 (470,448)
0 0 0 138,850 0 1] 550,000
o 0 0 4] 0 0 0
0 0 0 ] 0 9] 0
0 0 0 138,850 0 0 550,000
143,064 (786,208) (26,648) 8,826 (342) 5,759 79,554
685,092 409,020 25,854 45,346 6,021 9,547 59,324
$828,156 ($377.186) {$794) $54,172 $5,679 $15,306 $138,878
(Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1899 - (Continued)
Employment
Training Solid Waste Community Advocate
Center Management Transportation  Project
Revenues: . S )
TaAXES.eereeeeecerrrmccreenens $0 $0 $0 50
Licenses and permifs.....ccoccceeveererrre e mervvenresesaees e es 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental,........ccooeeeeo.... 1,263,990 68,332 1,254,355 70,599
Charges for services........c.cce.... 0 232,197 306,594 ¢
Special assessments......c..... _ o 0 ¢ 0
investment eamings........cocrveeeerrrrsmrercccersvrerre e 2,474 ] o Q
Fines and forfeitures............ 0 0 0 0
Net decrease in fair value of investments.............. (1,474) 0 0 0
All other revenuUes _.......cccveeeciicirnnerrrmecsrersnnes . 4,787 2,870 5,589 0
Total REVENUES...couuveiveceeceeereserereessssanssne e sermmsnenans 1,269,777 303,399 1,566,538 70,595
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive........ A 0. .. 0 0 , 0
Judicial.... .o reerrenireieecae e 0. 0 .. D0 71,648
Public safety....ccccooececeinrenan . : 0 ¢ 0 0
Public Works. ... ceceer e e e .. O 0 .0 0
Health.........cocureeeeennnn. camen 0 241,202 0 0
Human services.. - 1,299,701 0 0 0
Community deve[opment 0 0 0 0
Transportation... . 0 0 . 1,577,827 0
lntergovenmental ................ .0 0 ... B 0
Total expenditufes. .........cvovveceeeeceereermeereecereresmseanmee <. 1,289,701 241,202 1,577,827 ‘71,648
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
{under} expenditures............. (29,924) _ 62,197 {11,289) (1,049
Other financing sources (uses):
QOperating transfers in................ . 0 0 57,438 31,000
Operating fransfers (out)... et e e 0 .0 0 0
Proceeds from the sale of f xed assets e 0 0 6,000 0
Total other financing sources (uses).....................,.. . 0 .0 653,438 31,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over {(under) expenditures
and other financing uUsesS.........oveevrcreeomm e (29,924) 62,197 52,149 29,951
Restated fund balance(deficit) at beginning of year 37,580 372,207 342,557 (2,416)
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year.............. e $7,656 $434,404 $394,706 $27,635
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Septic

Child Community Economic Tank
County Support Development Development Narcotics Rehabilita-
Mediation Lodging Enforcement Block Grant Loan Unit __tion
30 $213,067 50 $0 $0 $0 30
0 0 0 0 o 0 0
0 0 3,353,632 522,768 0 196,737 0
71,876 0 568,616 0 0 0 20
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 9,397 )] 394 7,788 813
15 0 0 0 0 181,318 0
0 0 0 0 {169) (3,781) {123)
0 0 89,381 L0 . ... 0 . 2233 - - 0 .
71,891 213,067 4,011,026 522,768 225 384,315 . 710
0 213,067 0 0 0 0 0
101,137 o 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 o 406,533 0
0 1] 0 0 0 0 0
0 o 0 0 0 1] - 0
0 0 3,758,238 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 71,870
0 o 0 0 0 g 0
0 0 0 574,081 Y] 0 .0
101,137 213,067 3,758,238 574,081 0 406,533 71,870
(20,246) 0 _ 252788 _ (51,313 . 225  (22,218)  _(71,160)
45,900 0 381,181 771 0 50,000 G
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 . 0 0 0
49,900 0 - 381,181 B 771 0 50,000 0
20,654 0 633,969 (50,542) 225 27,782 (71,160)
1,805 0 1,830,031 44794 . 8,360 415,752 277,796
$22,459 $0  $2,454,000 {$5,748) $8,585 $443,534 $206,636
{Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998 - (Continued)
Delinquent
Tax and Indigent Pilot Interest
Assessment Guardianship Probation Prepayment
Revenues: - }
TAXES . ireereceesrrreeneanoee e . $0 $0 $0 $0
Licenses and permits.......coovmurrverssrsesrecccccssssmsans 0 0 . 0 _ 0
Intergovernmental.....cccccoccrrrrre e e B 0 0 182,522 4]
Charges for services.... - 197,247 15,277 27,171 1]
Special assessmMentS.....crccc v cerrverrrrrecrr e - 0 0 - 0 0
Investment earmnings......c.cccceeueeee 0 0 0 3,504
Fines and forfeitures....... . 0. - D 0. 0
Net decrease in fair value of investments.........—.. 0 0 0 0
All other revenues...........ccoirrececrr e cerecraecrssssane o 0 . 0 0
Total ReVENUES.....coveeeeveeeevemrareernnn . 197,247 15,277 209,693 3,504
Expenditures:
Current: .
General government:
Legislative and executive........ccevverreeecevernaeccceee 201,063 0 0 2,775
Judicial.........cooee e, . rre 0. 17,313 0 0
Public safety........... - eerresstnsmasssnnaaararran 0 . .0 . 220,326 o
PUDIC WOTKS. .. oot eecorcrmeirnnaee e ey see o momss e reenrans 0 0 R | 0
Health........cc oo cceeeemeeemeneeecamae .ﬁ 0 0 0 0]
Human services........... eemecemsroetarensnss -0 0 ] 0
Community development.......cccouveeecencecneeens - 0 0 0. 0
TranspoTtation. ....ccccvvevensssree e e e vssemmmn s e 0. 0 0 0
_Intergovenmental..__.. . 0 0 .0 , 0
Total expenditures.... N 201,063 17,313 220,326 2775
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over .
{under) expenditures.......cooevree e — {3,816) {2,036) (10,633) 729
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers im.....cccoonnene i 0 .0 0 0
Operating transfers (Out)...........ccoev v eceees . D .0 .0 D
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets.........ccceeeees .0 0 0 0
Total other financing sources {USes).....ccccceceeeeerenns Q. 0 0. 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and cther
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses........cccvcevvrceeeerrrrmceeeee. - (3,818) (2,036) {10,633} 729
Restated fund balance(deficit) at beginning of year 397,068 12,277 35,340 13,727
Fund bafance (deficit) at end of year......cccceeeemneeen . _$393,252 $10,241 524,707 514,456
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Indigent Treatment
Driver Enforcement Community Computer Alternatives Certificate
Alcohol and Oriented Legal to Street of Title Recorder
Treatment  Education Policing _ Research Crime Admin. Suppiemental

$0 50 $0 $0 $0 30 $0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 D 0 241,300 0 0

0 0 0 5171 0 703,351 214,680

0 C 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 D 0
95,417 4,095 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 2,965 0 0 0 68 0
05,417 7,060 0~ BATT 241,300 703,429 214,680
] 0 0 0 0 601,573 275,696

0 0 0 0 0 0 o

0 13,051 0 0 266,922 a 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 1]
125,186 0 0 0 0 ] 0
) 0 g a ] 4]

0 0 0 0 0 4] 0

0 0 0 ] 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 a 0
125,186 13,051 0 0 266,922 601,573 275,696
(29,769) (5,991) 0 51471 - (25,622) 101,856 (61,016)
0 0 0 0 30,000 0 0

0 0 0 0 4] 0 0

0 0 o 0 0 o 0

0 0 0 0 30,000 0 0
(29,769) (5,991) 0 5171 4,378 101,856 (61,016)
57,298 22,740 7,467 763 2,367 325,374 199,103
$27,529 $16,749 $7,467 $5,534 §6,745 3427230 $138,087
{Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES - ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 - (Continued)

Research Municipal Common
and Court Pleas Court
Computer- Computer- Computer- Ditch
ization ization ization Maintenance
Revenues:
XS e vere e et e ceecetsissesssssnssrrnaurbs s sesatnsssnnanans 50 30 $0 $0
Licenses and permits...........ccoeeeeeeeeee 0 0 0 0
Intergovernmental............cooocovcnve s s emenere e a 0 0 0
Charges for services.......ccoouure- S S, 140,897 284,234 25,727 0
Special assessments.......cvvivmvirimn i, o . 0 0 0 17,151
investment earnings....c..c.o...... - 0 0 0 0
Fines and forfeitures.......c e cccenn i eereeeeee .0 0 o o
Net decrease in fair value of investments.............. ) 0 0] 0 0
All other FreVeNUeS. ..o raacv e 0 420 0 0
Total Revenues.....ccccceeeeen. . 140,897 284 654 25,727 17.151
Expenditures;
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive........eeeeereeccciiraecns 0 0 45,154 0
Judicial.......ooeeeeeeennnns - 77,946 293,402 ) 0 0
Public safety....ccccoo e 0 0 -0 0
PUDIC WOTKS . ....iiniiiiiiniiiie s ieaee s ere s reans senenen : ¥ 0 0 1,247
Health... OO 0 0 0 0
Human serwces ereenr e oo _0 0 0 0
Community development ..................................... o o 0 0
Transportation..................... eeeetrieenera e reeeeanane _ 0 0 0 0
Intergovenmental........cceeeeevvrniseciever e eeeeemnanees 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures........ccccovcecerveeseeeeceeneeerversreraneen 77,946 293,402 45 154 1,247
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expendifures. ...l - 62,951 (8,748) (19,427) 15,804
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in... e e 0] 0 0 0
Operating fransfers (out) eeememre— -0 0 0 0
Proceeds from the sale of f xed assets ..... verreraneees L. 0 0 0 0
Total other financing sources (UsSes)..........lcrereies 0 0 0 0]
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other fiNancing USES.........ccccvrvevemmmmrrrrscrrmermrres 62,951 (8,748} (19,427) 15,904
Restated fund balance{deficit) at beginning of year 416,075 386,798 82,330 _ 21,980
Fund balance (deficit} at end of year......c....occeconvnnee .- $479,026 $378,050 $62,903 $37,884
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Juvenile Municipal Local Law
Court Facilities Court Enforcement Muni/Court
Computer- Approval Community Intensive Block Probation
ization Service Corrections Probation Grant FEMA Service
$0 30 30 50 $0 S0 $0
0] 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0] 0 94,368 0 250,000 0
35,811 0 0 0 0 0 103,845
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 487 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 G 0 0 0 0 0
35,811 0 0 94,368 487 250,000 103,645
0 0 0 0 32,283 0 0
29 389 o] 0] 0 0 Q 26,696
0 66,200 0 117,198 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0]
0 0 1] 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1] 0 0 0 0 23,648 0
28,389 66,200 0 117,198 32,283 23,648 26,696
6,422 {66,200) 0 (22,830) {31,798) 226,362 76,949
0 8] 0 0 3,089 . 0 0
a 4 ] 4] g O ¢
1] 0 0 0 0 8] 0
0 0 0 0 3,089 0 0
5,422 (68,200) 0 (22,830) (28,707) 226,352 76,949
30,030 66,8768 13,482 28,971 29,254 40,547 36,922
$36,452 $676 $13,482 $6,141 $547  $266,899 $113,871
(Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - ALL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1899 - (Continued)

Administration
in Justice Neville Totals
Revenues:
TaXOS... i vereremeeceessservreens 350 $0 $5,737.677
Licenses and permits........cccovvrmrerecssmrrrerrrsrermennnes 0 ¢] 269,355
Intergovernmental........coci i 0 266,447 27,480,612
Charges for ServiCes......reerervsreressse e 0 .0 4,685,427
Special assessments.........vvrceeviererresssaresamresrerenne 0 0 17,151
Invesiment eamings.....ccc.cccavervsrsrmmcremsestrsssinscsssnnan 0 0 157,187
Fines and forfeitures. ..o erercemerrmmeesranenene 0 0. 551,250
Net decrease in fair value of investments.............. 0 0.. .(58,345)
All other revenues............ 1,785 24 045 - 760,742
TOtal ROVENUES...vvvvvvrereeeecceneeesneesecarennesnnannmsmramrnns 1,785 250,492 38,601,658
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legisiative and executive........vveereerereeee o] [V 3,082,136
Judicial.......cooiiver e e e e 44 -0 817,575
Public safety.......ccceeeeee . 0 0 . 2,333,139
Public works.....coveeeerrmenras _ 0 0 7,369,289
Health...ooooovcceeirvacsrnres s ceamnns 0 0 600,178
HUMmMan ServiCes.. ..o ereeesmrreemnes : . 0 0 . 22,624,542
Community development.......cmrereccccennmiinnnneee 0 0 71,870
Transportation..........ccn i rrrerenersseraneessmeae e 0 -0 - 1,577,827
Intergovenmental............cccoveeenes 0 483 930 1,081,658
Total expenditures.........eeeee e 44 483,930 .. 39,358,215
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures........coccvrceveneesrens e see e 1,741 (193,438) 242 841
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating {ransfers in... e eemrreeneveereoeesenesonnnuacen 0 0 1,793,610
Operating transfers (out) 0 o.. (1,286,325)
Proceeds from the sale of F xed assets .................. 0 _ -0 160,267
Total other financing SoUrces (USES)....ocmmorrererresee_— — 0 0 667,552
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses...... - 1.741 (193,438) 910,393
Restated fund batance(deﬁcut) at begmnlng of year 0 163,351 11,484 6687
Fund balance (deficit) at end of year... N $1,741 ($30,087)  $12,395,060
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BAILANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1899

DOG AND KENNEL - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: T =
Licenses and permits........coerevcemeencecenecar $168,000 - $173,803 $5,003
Fines and forfeitures. ... ..o eesornenrrenes _ . 28,500 36,030 9,530
Total reVeNUESs.....oc.veeceeeeeemeeeeeearae s 154,500 209,933 15,433
Expenditures:
Current;
Health;

Animal Control - Auditor: - ,
Personal services. 4,069 2,912 1,157
Purchased Services......ucemccneeenee 2,400 1,654 746
Materials and supplies....coovcoeeeecncenn . 5,000 - 4,985 5

Animal Centrol: ) ' '
Purchased services...ccooooreeccee e . 222 500 222,500 0

Total expenditures. ... eecraceomeemercees 233,959 232,081 1,908
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.........ccooceeuees (39,469) (22,128) 17,341
Fund balance at beginning of year............ 39,612 39,512 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.... _ 723 723 )
Fund balance at end of year.......cceecemn.. _§766 $18,107 $17,341
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

PUBLIC ASSISTANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorabie
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: -
Intergovernmental......ceeeeeerascreseenene. - $8,573,852 $9,019,244 $445,392
Charges for sevices 10,000 7,338 (2,662)
Other revenues... e 470,600 420,077 (50,523)
Total revenues 9,054,452 9,446,659 392,207
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services:
Administration and operation:
Personal services rererereemnn. 4,227,181 4,188,567 38,614
Purchased Services.........coeceveemcmmuan. 5,147,698 4,482,904 664,794
Matetials and supplies.....cevreeeeeeenenee 217,583 182,870 34,713
Maintenance and repair......e--vvveseens - 71,124 65,650 5,474
Utilities....... - - 162,726 146,146 16,580
Capital outlay...... - . 218,005 217,862 143
Other expenditures. ..o e mveeeccenes 1,237 1,237 0
Social services:
Personal services . 304,480 279,308 25172
Purchased Services.......cmecvcreirenses . 100,333 97,973 2,360
Children Protective setvices: .
Personal services....cveaeeesecssrnsnee. . 1,819,580 1,813,659 105,921
Purchased ServiCes.....ccecvreremmesiresnen: 46,948 24.971 21,977
Total expenditures . 12,416,885 11,501,147 015,748
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ,
over (under) expendifures........c.vveeeenee {3,362,443) {2,054,488) 1,307,955
Other financing sources(uses): '
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets....... 3,000 1,837 (1,163)
Operating transfers iN.........eveeeraes — 2,700,215 2,257,968 (442,247)
Operating transfers (0ut).....c.coemvnvceccnns {41,763} (34,932) 6,831
Total other financing sources (uses)...._. 2,661,452 2,224 873 {436,579)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other )
fiNANGCING USES...corveee i rmceeeesrr s ssanens (700,991) 170,385 871,376
Fund balance at beginning of year.......... 1,100,846 1,100,846 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated... 251,353 251,353 D
Fund balance at end of year.....c..ccveeeeeee $651,208 $1,522 584 $871,376
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1599

REAL ESTATE ASSESSMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: S '
Charges for S8MviCes.... .o merrrrrresressceees . 81,250,300 $1,322,667 $72,267
Other ReVENUES. ..o ccsimemerarm s annes , .0 230 230
Total revenues eeeereveraennnes - 1,250,300 1,322,797 72,497
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive
Personal ServiCeS5.... o vumvrvvrnnee e asvesnmmnen - 596,352 584,524 11,828
Purchased services.....oveereeeees . 718,014 694,872 23,142
Materials and supplies......ccorvvrevrrrwrreeee e 85,636 43,313 22,323
Maintenance and repair.......cccoeerrreecevarnes - ... 72,486 65,428 7,068
Utilities.....ccveeveereee . 14,183 12,183 2,000
Capital outiay......coccccveemever e e . 43,803 . 36,506 . 7,297
Total expenditures......couuveeccvcmrenemmnmcrscessaneme - 1,510,484 1,436,826 73,658
Excess (deficiency} of revenues _
over (under) expenditures... — — (260,184) (114,029) 146,155
Fund balance at beginning of year.........cccece... 1,040,999 1,040,999 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......... .. 336,051 336,051 0
Fund balance at end of year.....cccveereaeeercccocnne $1,116,866 $1,263,021 $148,155
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

MOTOR VEHICLE AND GAS TAX - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorabie
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: -
Taxes... $1,414,140 $1,244,665 ($169,475)
Lloenses and permuts __.39,140 44 816 . . 5676
Intergovernmental ... ........ccoeceeeercecees ----_5,947 894 6,573,010 . 625,118
Charges for SeViCeS......cmrervenerreerrreesas 214 455 308,765- 94,310
Investment eamings............c.covcvermmreeenns 154,500 _ 141,240 (13,260) _
Fines and forfeitures...........cocoereecrerereraee 214,500 247,873 33,373
Other revenUes............cecreervererermroceree . 52,077 ° _ 113,412 61,335
Total revenues...... 8,036, 7@ 8,673,781 637,075
Expenditures: -
Current:
Public works:
MV & G engineer:
Personal Services..........ocuuenreerem cermeees 502,825 870,978 31,847
Purchased services.........ccccvereceeececees . 175,237 175,070 167
Materials and supplies.........cceeeemeees - 60,920 52,215 8,705
Maintenance and repair........ccoccurnrueen- 8,386 7,410 a76
Utilities....cocrnrereees 88,517 68,517 0
Capital oUtlay.....c o ivreererersserarreerssaens 37,749 37 732 17
MV & G roads: . T - :
Personal Services.........evvveemmrrececorormene . - 1,521,498 1,488, 020 ) - 33,478
Purchased services.........ccc....... 114,724 114,718 6
Materials and supplies.........c...- 886,010 883,015 - 2,995
Maintenance and repair 558,608 - 551,303 5,305
Utilities... ravemareesereee s 7,775 _ 17.775 0
Capital outlay e vrase e 1,917,609 1,887,892 29,617
Other expend;tures ............................ 658 668 - 0
M V & G bridges & culverts: o _
Personal Services........uvevneeenne S 570,523 552 616 17,907
Purchased services 240,198 217,561 22,637 .
Matenals and supplies..... 300,884 287,827 13,057
Maintenance and repair 23,878 .81,069 12,809
{17111 (1=Y- S .5,989 ) 5,902 - 87
Capital outlay....c.o v 1,064,847 . 1,0535676 11,171
Total expenditures........cocooeeeeevvrvnnnn 8,544 645 L g,m,ﬂﬁ . 190 581
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures.........oeever... (507,939) 319,717 827,656
Other financing sources{uses): ]
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets.. 2,060 152,430 160,370
Operating transfer in........ccovcoereecoreers _-.3,000 . B 12,316 9,226
Operating transfers (out)... I {1,289,332) (1,286,325) 3,007
Total other financing sources (uses) - (1,284,182) ~{1,121,579) 162,603
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other
financing uses........ (1,792,121) {801,862) 990,259
Fund balance at beginning of year.......... 1,664,535 1,664,535 .0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated... - 1,128,247 1,128,247 Y]
Fund balance at end of year..........cceeenen , $1,000,661 $1,950,820 $980,258
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

YOUTH SERVICE SUBSIDY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental Revenue................ .. $1,072,012 $1,162,789 $90,777
Total revenues.............. - . 1,072,012 1,162,789 90,777
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safaty:
Felony Delinquent Care and Custody:
Personai services....... . : . 618,250 588,317 29,933
Purchased ServiCes.....cccccerreeevmveremsmmmerens 668,224 . . 8635279 32,945
Materials and supplies....cc.cccecivemneen . : 21,394 8,931 12,463
Maintenance and repair.......cvoeaeeseaerea - . _ 7,250 : 6,417 833
UtilitieS. . ouerreeeeenn. oo 9,867 9,929 38
Capital OULIAY......c.cvereeeceereecereeieaee e enmcrenes _— . 18,900 - 7,626 11,274
Total expenditures. . 1,343,985 1,256 499 87,486
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditfes....coccccvvvrrmraceneenes (271,973) ) {93,710} 178,263
Fund balance at beginning of year....vonu.oel . 705,009 705,009 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 115,985 115,885 0
Fund balance at end of year.....covveecececvvecceee . $5409,021 $727 284 5178,263
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Revenues:

intergovernmental ....
Charges for services.........ccrerrnerinnes
Other revenues.........

Total revenues........

Expenditures:
Current:
Human services

Purchased SelviCesS.....irreererocercceraremens .

Total expenditures

CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

CHILDREN SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures..........cccoovrrvunerne.

Other financing sources(uses):

Operating ransfers in.......c.oeeeeeeeeesvssccemnss
Operating transfers (out)........cccrerrvrrvernnnns
Total other financing sources (uses}...........

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
(under} expenditures and other

financing uses............
Fund balance at beginn
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..........
Fund balance at end of year........corccevununeneeees

Variance:

Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
................................... $1,940,000 $2,440,253 $500,253
| 85,000 103,424 18,424
. .. 84,000 115,109 31,109
.................................. 2,108,000 2,658,786 549,786
.. 3,854,888 13,816,481 38,407
— 3,854,388 3,816,481 38,407
- .. .(1,745,888) (1,157,695) 588,193
2,211,476 1,872,870 (238,6086)
(800,000) {800,000) 0
- 1,411,476 1,172,870 (238,606)
eeerrvaserrrrrserreeeooneeeeeee (334,412) 15,175 349,587
ingof year.......ccceeen 320,808 320,808 0
—— 48,050 46,050 0
$32 446 $382,033 $349,587
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

MARRIAGE LICENSES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised . Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
Revenues: o - T
Licenses and permits..... . $55,000 $51,460 ($3,540)
Total revenues....... . 55000 , 51,480 (3.540)
Expenditures:
Current;
Human services:
Purchased Services. o eovrerenneces R 79,000 B 51,368 T 27,632
Total expenditures....... . 78,000 51,368 T 27632
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expendifures......cccoeeavascereanrer - .o (24,000) g2 24,092
Fund balance at beginning of year............. 24,443 T 24/443 0
Fund balance at end of year.....oeceermeeeceeeceer . 5443 - $24 535 " $24,082
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FLUND

Variance:
Revised . Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: ) ] 7
Intergovernmental ......... $39,220 $40,436 51,218
Other revenues... o 0 . 4,653 4,653
Total revenues.............. .. 38,220 _45,089 5,869
Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety:
Personal services........ 119,673 114,028 5,645
Purchased services....... 52,195 46,089 6,108
Materials and supplies.. 6,229 5,858 371
Maintenance and repair.........ccceererrmeeceees -~ 5,324 3,231 2,093
Utilities..aaveceeeme e . 14,033 14,033 0
Capital outlay.............. _ 3380 3,380 0
Total expenditures...... 200,834 186,619 14,215
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures.......ccceeerermmncones (161,614) (141,530} 20,084
Other financing sources:
Qperating transfers in....... 138,650 138,650 0
Total other financing SOUrCeS...ccccvereeererrenns 138,650 138,650 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expendifures......oveeveseresssccissnns {22, 964) {2,880) 20,084
Fund balance at beginning of year......coveeeee.. 64,788 64,788 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......... 7,399 7,399 0
Fund balance at end of year........cooocvvieeenen, $49,223 $69,307 $20,084
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

SENIOR SERVICES LEVY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: e : o
Taxes...cccceom.n nann ' $2,512,400 $2,570,316 $57.916
Intergovernmental ... eviorcereemeranecenen - - 230,000 252,187 22,187
Totail revenues...... - __ 2,742,400 - 2,822,503 80,103
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services:
Furchased services....... _ . 2,961400 2,757,131 204,269
Total expenditures. ... o vecerecmneeseenee. . 2,961,400 2,757,131 "' 204,269
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures . - {219,000) 65,372 284,372
Fund balance at beginning of vear.....cc.c...... 219,002 © 218,002 0
Fund balance at end of year.....cc.oecoeeeeeeeeen . , £2 $284,374 $284 372
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

CHILDREN SERVICES LEVY - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
TBXES.cuvnreceemeeiiiieessreneressressaasannnmnenssnremensses $1,734,300 $1,721,448 ~ ($12,852)
Intergovernmental ........coovveviricecvrrsnss s . .145,000 156,082 11,082
Total revenues...... 1,879,300 - 1,877 530 T (1,770)
Expenditures:
Current:
Human services:
Children Services Levy: .
Purchased Sernvices.. ..o receeemmmverneccanee - 30,000 27,867 2,133
Total expenditires.........cveververeeccrccrneeerines . 30,000 27,867 2,133
Excess of revenues _
over expenditures........... 1,849,300 1,849,663 363
Other financing (uses):
Operating transfers out....coooveeevriiiiieee _{1,845,300) {1,841,900) 7,400
Total other financing (USs)........cerceerecrcrem (1,849,300) (1,841,900} 7,400
Excess of revenues over
expenditures and other financing uses........ -0 7,763 7,783
Fund balance at beginning of year................. 5,404 5,404 0
Fund balance at end of year........ccccoverrrrrees $5,404 $13,167 $7,763
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1899

ENVIRONMENTAL RESERVE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: )
Charges for services....... $10,000 $14,893 34,893
Total revenues...... teenmmmmessemsesmsssmnceeeeaan 10,000 14,883 4,383
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive:
Purchased Sernvices. . .o vce—eeeneerane __ 727,780 586,624 141,156
Total expenditures... 727,780 86,624 141,156
Excess (deficiency) of revenues .
over (under) expenditures. ... oeeveenne L (717,780) (571,731) 146,049
Other financing sources: .
QOperating transfers N, 550,000 550,000 0
Total other financing sources........ 550,000 550,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures...... : (167,780) - (21.731) 146,045
Fund balance at beginning of year.....cc........ 51,303 51,303 ) o
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......... 116,477 116,477 0
Fund balance atendof year.....cceee . _ 50 $146,049 $146,049
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

EMPLOYMENT TRAINING CENTER - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
. Budget Actual __{Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental .......... - $1,248,293 $1,270,990 $22,697
Investment eamings........ - ... 1,800 2,558 1,058
Other revenues.. - e - . 2,500 4,827 2,327
Total revenues........coeen-. - 1,252,293 1,278,375 26,082
Expenditures:
Curmrent:
Human services:
Personal services.. - . . 405,359 390,404 14,955
Purchased SerViCeS. v cecrssemrerememmmsrems 836.615 833,565 3,050
Materiais and supplies..... . 1,550 1,075 475
Maintenance and repair........ccceceevereecesceees . 2,181 2,092 - 89
Utilities........ S 400 - 358 42
Capital Outlay......coevercersmesaenns ... 21718 11,404 10,314
Total expenditures...ccorrmreecessvsmecremesssncnees . 1,267,823 1,238,898 28,925
Excess (deficiency) of revenues , .
over (under) expenditureS.....cvueeeemveeerrensas, {15,530) 39477 55,007
Other financing (uses):
Operating transfers (oUt)..coecvvceceieeee . . (41,298} (36,170} 5,128
Total other financing (USES)......ccrcceeereeecreane: (41,298) (38,170} 5,128
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (uUnder)
expenditures and other financing uses............ (56,828) 3,307 60,135
Fund balance at beginning of year.........cccc..... ... _41,398 41,398 0
Prior year encumbrances approprtiated.......... - . 15435 15,435 _ 0
Fund balance at end of year....ccccveeeceirinnaene - 5 $60,140 $60,135
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget _ Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: ) o )
Intergovernmental.. .o oo $105,000 $68,332 {$36,668)
Charges for seviCes...... e 320,000 231,669 - ~(88,331)
Other FeVENLES. ...cvvereceeererrnreeesssearnreer s 0 , 2,870 2,870
Ee IRVt T R —— 1 X o ¢ [ J 302,871 (122,129)
Expenditures:
Current:
Health:
Litter Conirol and Recycling: i : :
Personal ServiCes. .. oiinnienennne : 21,730 _ 17,020 4,710
Purchased Services........cceeveecneeveeenss 141,279 i 141,044 o - 235
Materials and supplieS.....ceeeeeeevnaan 5,108 3,246 . 1,860
Maintenance and repair........cccecemeee , 125 0 125
UtiliteS. oo e e cer e recmae e cme e 50 .0 50
Capital outlay........cccrnrvemcirsscrcccee o 10,500 1,500 o 9,000
Other expenditures...—....ovecceeeerenecen- .8,875 8,975 ) 0
Solid Waste District: T - -
Personal serviCes...ccocevecicrvrecvasamesmenee - 58,477 - 47.550 11,827
Purchased Services. ... eecvermmemmeeeaee 96,830 54,093 2,837
Materials and supplies.......ccomeeeveeees - 2,958 . ] 1,770 1,188
Maintenance and repair.......cccorveeemeeenne . 800 456 i 144
LJEHREES. ..o veceeeieeee e vnem e cemsmnnccaassnenn 2,774 2,644 130
Capital outlay....coovcemmeecceeeeeeeec e 12,000 2,300 9,700
Total expenditures....c..o.oocveeeeeeceveene B 362,504 320,598 41,906
Excess (deficiency) of revenues _
over (under) expenditures .......cceveeeeeeees : 62,456 - (17,727) (80,223)
Fund balance at beginning of year........... - = 358,346 , 358,346 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.... 46,383 46,383 0
Fund balance at end of year....ccccevnneene.. . $467,225 ) . .%387,002 {$80,223)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-~GAAF BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: : .
Intergovernmental.........ccccccceeeerrecninanens -$1,443,988 $1,250,575 ($193,413)
Charges for Senvices........ooorrvvereecmeeenea- _ 352250 300,296 (51,954)
Other revenues.......ccrrereerecceeeceveeenns B 15,000 267,399 252,399
Total revenUES....veveee e ciras e s en ..1,811,238 1,818,270 7,032
Expenditures:
Current:
Transportation:
Personal services.....ceecveercccrmievecvseeenns 828,189 825,227 2,962
Purchased Services......ccceerrcueinvvraenees 328,457 317,343 11,154
Materials and supplies.....covveeceeeeecnneere 79,356 77,125 2,231
Maintenance and repair.......c.ccoeeaeeveeens 235107 231,712 3,385
LHIlIHIES...c.ee e ere e rrrsnerrr e rmere e . 26,058 19,611 6,447
Capital outlay...cccceveeeeevrrrrecrvcercreerenenes 495,374 453,677 41,697
Other expendifures.....o.cooveeeceeecreeees . . .. 5,159 5,159 0
Total expenditures. ......covvrveveemecceecns 1,997,740 1,929,854 87,886
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures .........ccccovvveenns {186,502) (111,584) 74,918
Other financing sources{uses): ' :
AdVANCES IN....ccccrmmr oo evrservrrcnee e eees 70,000 50,000 {20,000)
Advances oUb.....ccovrvrrecreviircanverne e o e enae — (70,000) (50,000) 20,000
Operating transfers in......ccccmvmveerrernnes 0 57.438 57,438
Proceeds from sale of assets................. . 40,000 6,000 (34,000)
Total other financing sources (uses)...... 40,000 63,438 23,438
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other
financing uses.. . - (146,502) (48,146} 98,356
Fund balance at beginning of year............ {321,194) (321,194) 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..... 481,170 481,170 0
Fund balance atend of year......_........... - $13,474 $111,830 $98,356
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENBITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

(NON-GAAF BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1988

ADVOCATE PROJECT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: -
Intergovernmental .......c..veemeoemccraneceeaees $62,230 $70,599 $8,369
Total FEVENUES. . ..ceeeccremeceneremsnenacman e eenann ~ 62,230 70,599 8,389
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Judicial:
Personal services....... , 86,017 68,616 17,401
Purchased services..... , ) 734 ’ 561 ° 173
laterials and supplies.....coc - 674 413 261
Maintenance and repair.......occcveeeeevmacenea- - 360 343 17
Utilities....... . . 2,062 2,062 -0
Other expenditires. ... covevvervrreesrammssnres 2,318 2,139 180
Total expenditures 82,168 T4134 18,032
Excess (deficiency) of revenuss {
over (under) expenditures......c..oeemweemmeennn . (29,836) (3,535) 26,401
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in..... 31,000 31,000 4]
Total other financing SOUrCes. .eoeeemreamnee.. , 31,000 © 31,000 0
Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over expenditures. ............. . 1,064 27,4865 26,401
Fund balance{deficit) at beginning of-year.... (1,340) {1,340) ¢
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 21,3460 1,346 0
Fund balance atend of year........ccceecceroeeree $1,070 $27,471 T $26,401
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

MEDIATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
Revenues:
Charges for serviCes.......ccoovveemummmeecrmennenns $63,000 . . $48,932 ($14,068)
Total revenuUes....o..vvceeecivaanacanrerssranes . 63,000 - 48,932 (14,068)
Expenditures: -
Current:
General government:
Judicial:
Personal senvices. .......c..ccecicevceernemmsreenneas 97,960 95,893 2,067
Purchased services..........ceveene eeeeeeaenees , 500 0 500
Materials and supplies.......ccoocccmmmreeeneeeas 4. 500 1,450 . 3,050
Maintenance and repair........cominmernes . . 850 4860 190
UtlHES .. veeeeeee e eeeeee e e e ; 2,330 2,330 . 0
Total expenditures._.........occieeeeecevcrinnnne. 105,940 . 100,133 5,807
{Deficiency) of revenues - :
{under) expenditres........ccccvvnvraenne S —. {42,940 (51.201) (8,261)
Other financing sources: o : .
"Operating transfers iM........oovcvveereererensvnees .. 40,400 ) 49,900 9,500
Total other financing sources..........occcccvmree o 40400 49,900 9,500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over ' ,
(under) expenditures........c..occcermreceeceianees - (2,.540) (1,301) 1,239
Fund balance at beginning of year................. ' 7 6,008 . 6,008 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......... © 333 . 353 0
Fund balance at end of year.............. erenens .- $3,821 $5,060 $1,239
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

COUNTY LODGIEING - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorabig)
Revenues: ' o
TAXES. creeeeececereeramemernsnanaanns : . $230,000 $213,067 {$16,933)
Total reVenUes......cuveeeeemeecereeacaerrsassnesas . 230,000 - 213,067 ~(16,933)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive: .
Purchased SerViCes. .o eecrrnereecssmanaeas 230,000 213,067 16,833
Total expenditures..........cecevveneee 230,000 _ 213,067 16,933
Excess of revenues
over expenditures. . .. .o oo e - L 0 0 } 0
Fund balance at beginning ofyear......cccceeeeee. .. 0 _ _ 0 . 4]
Fund balance at end of year.........cc.oveeceeeenes L . 30 o $0 50
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: .
intergovernmental ... $3,850,000 $3,311,060 ($538,940)
Charges for services......umuerercnrcrrecceans 462,500 500,607 38,107
[nvestment eamings.......ccccoocrrceeeceve e rereeeees 3,500 9,864 6,364
Other FEVENUES......c.ceeunreemvrrnrcerrrravssarrmrmmas 58,700 89,381 30,681
Total revenues...........coeecr e rerecrreoresrserens 4,374,700 3,910,912 (463,788)
Expenditures:
Current:

Human services: . , }
Personal ServiCes........ccvviremmerreserocemrmenenes 2,937,377 2,449,705 487,672
Purchased Services.........coeceereveevcvmenens 567,734 565,498 2,236
Materials and supplies......ccccoreceiecccccmrnns 95,031 2,495 82,535
Maintenance and repair..........ccceeveeeccoromner 34,661 13,204 21,457
Utilities...ccooeearrinn e . 500 : 0 500
Capital outlay.......cooerm s .o 14,871 1,991 12,980

Total expenditures............ . 3,650,274 3,032,894 617,380

Excess of revenues
over expenditUres. . ......veereeveei it cerecreoe 724,426 878,018 153,582
Other financing sources(uses);
Operating transfers iN........cooeeemeereeeccvsnenns. 350,000 406,775 56,775
Operating transfers (out).......ccccovrerrreme-s (1,140,000) (932,533) 207,487
Total other financing sources (uses) (790,000) (525,758) - 264,242
Excess {deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources over

(under) expenditures and other

fiNaNCING USES..oueeuvvrccecerenmmcmarme s e verees {65,574) 352,260 417 834

Fund balance at beginning of year......cccccvevee. 1,880,494 1,880,494 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.......... 107,792 107,792 0
Fund balance atend of year........c.occcoovveeeeecs $1,922,712 $2,340,546 $417,834
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
_ Budget Actual ~_{(Unfavorable)
Revenues: o
Intergovernmental .....c.coueeeeeecmreccecens — $1,210,400 , $467,645 ($742,755)
Total revenues. .......cccvvuierceerrmre e _ 1,210,400 467,645 (742,755)
Expenditures:
Current:
Community development:
Purchased services....... 377,245 377,245 1
Materials and supplieS....... o ccecceee ~. _ 1,000 0 1,000
Maintenance and repair........ccccceeeereimmsnnas N 1,500 0 1,500
Utilities.....cccovemreeee J— . 300 _ 0 300
Capital outlay.....oe e e e e . 206,728 , 208,715 11
Total expenditures. ..o , . 586,772 o ‘583,960 2.812
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures......ccoevmereeeeee. , 623,628 , (116,315) (739,843)
Other financing sources: .
Operating transfers in........ccooomnremecene . - 0 7 771
AdVANCES iN....eeoreee e varess cormermerm e 50,000 . 38,329 . - (11.,671)
Total other financing Sources.........cooreeeme 50,000 . - 39,160 (10,900}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures. ... cceeneeeeen —- - 673,628 __ (77.215) (750,843)
Fund balance(deficit) at beginning of year.... . (52,548) (52,548) T 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... - . __ 82,142 - B2,142 0
Fund balance(deficit) at end of year.......e.. $703,222 (347,621 ~ ({§750,843)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FCR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT LOAN - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:; - S - - ’
Invesiment eamings.........ccoumneeninsnnes .= $350 - 5414 $64
Total Fevenues. .........cocccerviercrerenn. . 350 414 64
Expenditures:
Current:
Community development: :
Purchased services............coceeveunn. 0 ] .0 : o
Total expenditures............ccoeeiieaenn... -0 , 0 0
Excess of revenues :
over expenditures ... 350 414 64
Fund balance at beginning of year.......... . - 8154 8,154 0
Fund balance at end of year.........cc....... ... 58,504 $8,568 $64
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, -
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

NARCOTICS UNIT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual - _ {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental .......cceriviicenmins 192,238 196,737 4,499
Investment eamings..........ccocrivevvnnn s . 7,264 : 8,006 742
Fines and forfeitures.........veuveememcemeinenas 147,000 179,108 32,108
Other revenues.........cccommmeeceameea . 7,000 2,233 (4,767)
Total revenues.......ccccvcemrevneereccrarn - 353,502 386,084 32,582
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety:
Narcotics Unit:
Personal Services...ccvevereeevcerrerrenees . 238,019 209,940 28,079
Purchased services..........ccccecvvmvenees 76,285 - 75,235 1,050
Materials and supplies.....cccccccccceacnn-n . 15,945 12,850 3,085
Maintenance and repair...........cccccveee. - 8,462 8453 - 1,009
UKIHEES .noeecoeeerecc e e eme e . 27,345 16,025 - 11,320
Capital outlay.. . 26,458 11,0568 , 15,400
Other expenditures.........coooecevevmnnens _ 28,739 28,738 _ 1
Sheriff's Unit;
Purchased services........ccoorerrverreeens 13,000 ‘ 8,167 4,833
Materials and supplies.......c.ccceeeeeeee. 33,302 25,074 8,228
Maintenance and repair........cccccvveeeen 10,000 7,325 2,875
L8111 11 (T : _2,575 1,098 1,477
Capital outlay............... e evrem——a———_s . 25,600 5,104 20,496
Total expenditures. ... .reeccemrmeeses. .. 508,730 409,067 97,663
Excess (deficiency) of revenues .
over (under) expendifures........ccoveevnanes - {153,228) {22,983) 130,245
Other financing sources: )
Operating transfers in.......cccoecvevnenees .50,000 50,000 0
Total other financing sources .....ecceveave. 50,000 i 50,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures. . vt (103,228) 27,017 130,245
Fund balance at beginning of year........... . 374,597 . 374,597 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.... , 6,538 6,538 0
Fund balance at end of year.......cccoceenme... 277,807 408,152 130,245
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

DELINQUENT TAX AND ASSESSMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance;
Revised Favorable
) Budget Actual (Unfaverable)
Revenues:
Charges for sernvices. ... irrerermenees ~_$160,000 $215,452 $55,452
Total FEVeNUES.. . reeeemcerevrrsreennanenenns 180,000 ' 215,452 55452
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and executive:
Treasurer Delinguent:
Personal Services.........cccceeeeevereeeeeenas 59,345 56,851 . 2,694
Purchased Services........ccccccecrvrecreenss. _ 11,280 6,056 5,224
Materials and supplies........cccccccceeae 19,145 18,862 2,283
Maintenance and repair............cccevunes _ 1,500 815 685
L0311~ 400 _ 0 400
Capital outlay......ccocvvveereerr s . 36,942 T 8,499 — 28,443
Prosecutor Delinquent:
Personal services._.........ccceecemcercannees 116,463 - 115,884 579
Materials and supplies.........c.ccoeceneeee 4,000 1,500 2,500
Maintenance and repair.....cccccceeereene 389 ' -0 389
UHHES . ve e cvmrenvee e e e e v e o . - 1037 1,037 : 0
Total expendiflres...cc.ovvecveeeraeeeeccrvanenes 250,501 207,304 - 43,197
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures..........cccoeeeneeen .. (90,501) 8,148 98,649
Fund balance at beginning of year........... . 382,518 382,518 -0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.... .. 14,538 14,538 0
Fund balance at end of year.......ccccceeeveee. $306,555 $405,204 $98,649
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

INDIGENT GUARDIANSHIP - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual __(Unfavorable)
Revenues: - . ' ‘ -
Charges for Senvices........crwvamrrrrcoverreres 318,000 $15,110 {$2,880)
Total revenues............. - . . e 18,5_5 0 15,110 (2,800)
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government:
Judicial:
Purchased Services....cuccoemecacerracscnnes . 18,413 _ 18,172 241
Total expenditures......cccvereecccemsenccccees 18,413 18,172 241
{Deficiency) of revenues
{under) expenditures .....ccccececerevrcrraecnees . {413) (3,082) (2,649)
Fund balance at beginning of year............. : 11,852 11,852 o
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...... 413 413 0
Fund balance at end of year........cccccceveeeee $11,852 $9,203 ($2,649)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1959

PILOT PROBATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _ (Unfavorable)
Revénues:.
intergovernmental ..o $184,241 $182,622 ($1,719)
Charges for Services ........couvveemmeceen. _ 24,005 27,171 3,166
Total revenues i _ﬁGS_,:'ZZS 206,603 1,447
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety:
Personal Services.......eeeveereracccerranaes .- 193,009 192,040 1,059
Purchased ServiCes. ... cvverrarrerananes . 3,630 1,976 1,654
Materials and supplies......ccccceoeeee . 23,272 - 19,467 3,805
Maintenance and repair........cccoeeeeenee- - - 300 . 38 261
URIEIS. ..-ecveeeecrmmeeee e e eremermemsessscmssnnnes 1,700 1,449 251
Capital outlay........ceceeeeereereescncsenneernens 7,505 6,566 939
Total expenditures........cccceeereerecenmcmeees - 229 506 221,537 7,969
Excess (deficiency) of revenues )
over (under) expendifures............corveera . (21,260) (11,844) 9,416
Other financing sources{uses): :
Advances iMoo ccesnnceeenes ... 3pg0006 ] _ 0 (30,000
Advances out.............. .. {30,000) N 0 30,000
Total other financing sources {uses)....... - 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expendifures and other
fiNANCING USES....veeerceaceracraannanens (21,260) (11,844) 9,416
Fund balance at beginning of year............. _ 45,209 45,209 "0
Fund balance end of year....ccccevevecvecccmne . . _ $23,949 T $33,365 $9.416
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

INTEREST PREPAYMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Revenues;

Investment eamings........c.ovimmeeeiiiiinnans
Total revenues.......c.oocvveeeviiisineveececees

Expenditures:
Current:
General government:

Legislative and executive:
Purchased sServices.......ovvimeeriveccncaees

Materials and supplies....
Maintenance and repair..

....................

Capital outlay.........cccceermiimennniie.

Total expenditures...........

Excess (deficiency) of reven

ues

over (under) expenditures...........cccceent
Fund balance at beginning of year...........
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....

Fund balance at end of year

WVariance:

Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$5,000 $3,510 ($1,480)
5,000 3,510 (1,490)
500 - 0 500
4,000 1,850 2.150
500 — 0 500
3,000 279 2721
8,000 2,129 5,871
(3,000) 1,381 4,381
13,275 13,275 0
5 5 0
$10,280 $14,661 $4,381
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1888

INDIGENT DRIVER ALCOHOL TREATMENT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: :
Fines and forfeitures.........cceervvvvenereeennn. - .586,000 .. $95 508 $9,508
Total reVenUESs. . cccerecee v ceerrnaserrmne s 86,000 95,508 9,508
Expenditures:
Current:
Health: :
Purchased services...........c.ccoeenvenennn. 125,186 125,186 0
Total expenditures......cc.eeeeeeccersncaaene. 125,186 125,186 0
Excess (deficlency) of revenues i
over (under) expenditures..................... - .- .(39,188) ~ (29,678) 9,508
Fund balance at beginning of year........... 56,973 56,973 0
Fund balance at end of year........cccccceeeee. - - $17,787 $27,295 $9,508
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

ENFORCEMENT & EDUCATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorabie
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: : ’
Fines and forfeitures......co..cuvmmmermmnssmres ‘ $8,600 $4,458 ' ($4,142)
Other reVenUBS....cc e ceceesercccmmmrmmnrssmemmnene 0 L. 2,965 ) 2,965
Total revenues...... 8,600 7423 (1,177)
Expenditures: ’
Current:
Public Safety:
Purchased ServiCeS.....ccumreereemrermsen -1,500 a 1,500
Materials & sUPPHES......ccoccecmeeeccomee - = 10,000 8,876 1,124
Maintenance and repair.......cocaeecannnnes . . 2,000 1,073 927
Capital Qutlay.......coeccmeesmreessieenees = - .. - 6,465 6,100 365
Total expenditlres.......ccoemmvereeecrenneeneaacns 19,965 16,049 .. 3,916
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ‘
over (under) expenditures....c...ccccveeeeeeeee o= — . . _{11,365) (8,626) 2,739
Fund balance at beginning of year............ L. 22377 22,377 1]
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...... . 2865 2,865 0
Fund balance at end of year......ccoovvi . _ . $513,977 $16,716 $2,738
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CLERMONT COUNTY, CHIC
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

COMMUNITY QRIENTED POLICING - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: o : : - .
Intergovernmental ... L 30 30 30
Total reVeNUES...vee.ereeneeeeeeasarreerenmseeas 0 - .. %0 , 0
Expenditures: _
Current;
Public safety:
Personal Services.....c..ccuvaerraerssssensesenes - . 0 0 . 0
Other expenditures..........ceveeeeeeccrecenenns . 0 L ] 0 . 0
Total expendiures. ... covescereeeveeeeeeeeee ... .. 0 o ' 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues - N _
over (under) expenditures.....«...cccceeeeeen _ 0 , -0 _ .0
Fund balance at beginning of year............ . 7.467 ) 7,467 o 0
Fund balance at end of year......c.cccoveevernns .. . $7.467 37,467 $0
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1899

TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES TQ STREET CRIME - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance;
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: B
Intergovernmental... - - $278,500 $241,300 ($37.200)
Total revenues....... 278,500 241,300 T (37,200)
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety:
Personal services. ... ~ 188,348 164,897 23,351
Purchased $ervices.......ocorvmemeereee 95,864 80,977 4,887
Materials and supplies......cooecermennees 13,900 10,020 3,880
Maintenance & repair.......ocooeveeeevens 4,100 T 2,487 1,613
LS. e reeeecee e errce e e e e . 3,862 3,262 60O
Capital outlay....... - 15,300 15,245 55
Total expenditures. ... ceeeercveecerceecene e 321,374 286,988 34,386
(Deficiency) of revenues
(under) expenditures. ....cecvrereeeerceececsen g o (42, 874) (45,688) (2,814)
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in.....cccoocceemerne e ...30,000 30,000 0
Total other financing sources........... - 30,000 30,000 0
(Deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources B -
(under) expendifures.. ..o oeercceeemoce e (12,874) (15,688) (2,814)
Fund balance at beginning of vear........... 7.890 7,890 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..... 15,761 15,761 0
Fund balance af end of year.......ceceoveeeeuee . 310, $7.963 {52,614)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAF BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

CERTIFICATE OF TITLE ADMINISTRATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favarable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: .
Charges for services................. eearmnernn $725,000 $704.646 {$20,354)
Other reVenUes. ......coocerreccsmmvessiasenmnnmns . _ Y] B . 68 68
Total revenues......... . 725,000 - 704,714 ~ (20,286)
Expenditures:
Current;
General government:
Legislative and executive: .
Personal sernvices.....c....cceervceececmenes . 548,215 513,956 34,258
FPurchased services.......cccormeeeraeene 73,721 66,813 6,908
Materials and supplies.....cc.ocecomvecs _.64,140 61,114 3.026
Maintenance and repair.......covveeeeee-n. 21,717 13,867 7,850
UBIEES .eooeeneeneecncrrmmmansres s emccemememreea - 31,753 ‘ 30,338~ 1415
Capital outlay ......cccccecverecccrnnmeeee . 25,700 17,352 8,348
Total expenditures......ccooeeeeiereeecceennn 765,246 703,440 - 61,806
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures...........ccc.o—. (40,246) o 1,274 41,520
Other financing (uses):
Operating transfers (out)...ccccomceeemceeeee. .. {150,000) 0 150,000
Total other financing (uses) ........ S (150,000) = 0 " 150,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses.. . (190,246) 1,274 181,520
Fund balance at beginning of year.......... .280,6998 280,698 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.... ~_ 69173 69,173 0
Fund balance at end of year..........ce...... ..$159,626 ~ $351,146 $191,520
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

RECORDER SUPPLEMENTAL - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised . Favorable
Budget ) Actual _ {Unfavorable)
Revenues: ' ’ ' :
Charges for services _ . $180,000 $214 536 $34,536
Total revenues....ocoveeeeeeeeraeene . 180,000 _ 214 536 34,536
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive:
Purchased ServiCes.....cwcveaarrecanrees 238,813 227,386 11,427
Maintenance and repair........cco—. —— 12,700 11,886 ~ 814
Capital outiay......c.cccveemresemvememrcamsaneas 54,065 42 646 11,419
Total expenditures..... ..o emcesscnmsseresan 305,578 281,918 23,660
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures......cccervereemereee . [125,578) (67,382) 58,196
Fund balance at beginning of year............ 108,560 - 108,560 ' 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..... __ 105,690 105,690 0
Fund balance at end of year. ...c..cevvmevreeee _ 88,672 - $146,868 $58,196
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

MUNICIPAL COURT COMPUTERIZATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for ServiCes........cooecverieeeerenceenen. - _ _$270,000 $284,722 $14,722
Other FeVenUE. ......coor e veeee v eeeeree e cecernmsnnes _.0 420 420
Total revenues.....cccecvr e rervasrcaremrerraceons 270,000 285 142 15,142
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Judicial:
Purchased Sernvices....cccoerrmvercvcnreanns 10,650 10,168 482
Materials and supplies....c.....cccceenenn. 8,215 8,022 193
Maintenance and repair........cceevveereeenn 55,752 85,407 345
ULIRHES ..covececenrereereer e crrerancerer e e 7,000 0 7,000
Capital outlay ......ccccovcieiiieiiiiiniieniienen, 243,737 231,433 ) 12,304
Total expenditures.........cccoeeerivceeereennnn. .. 325,354 305,030 20,324
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expendifures ............ccoooveeen . .{55,354) (19,888) 35,466
Fund balance at beginning of year............. 368,146 368,146 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...... 18,975 18,975 0
Fund balance at end of year.........c.ccoe. $331,767 $367,233 $35,466
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

COMMON PLEAS COURT COMPUTERIZATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Revenues:
Charges for services.....c.ccoev i cciveecan
Total revenues.....

Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive:
Maintenance and repail...ccccoeeeeereucene
Capital outlay ..ooeeeeeriee e
Total expenditures......cccceeeeeeeee

(Deficiency) of revenues

(under) expenditUres. ... oo vermecennames
Fund balance at beginning of year...........
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....
Fund balance at end of year......cccove—mene-

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget __Actual _(Unfavorable)
$35,292 $25,777 {$9,515}
35,2?2 ‘ 25,777 _ {8,515)
. 8277 8,277 0
37,003 37,003 0
— 45,280 45,280 0
— (9,988} _ (19,503) (8,515)
— 82,055 82,055 0
_ 125 ) 125 0
$72,182 ~ %62,877 ($9,515)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

DITCH MAINTENANCE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: .
Special assessmMents....cccu e aermrrmaee— . .. ~.$13,400 $17,151 $3,751
TOtal rEVENUES..c..eeeecervecoaomererenrraeenen - 13,400 17,151 ] 3,751
Expenditures:
Current:
Public works:
Purchased services... __ 13,400 1,262 12,138
Total expenditures _ 13,400 , . 1,262 12,138
Excess of revenues .
over expenditures. ... ..ccceivevecisiennns - . 0 .. 15,889 15,889
Fund balance at beginning of vear............ 21,980 21,980 0
Fund balance at end of year....cceceecvve. ... $21,980 $37,869 $15,888
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JUVENILE COURT COMPUTERIZATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: . o _ :
Charges for services.....ccoecvveerenernnns .$30,000 $33,581 $3,581
Total reVENUES......ccvvvvrerrereereaeesrrerras 30,000 33,581 3,581
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Judicial:
Materials and supplies................... 4,650 4,306 344
Maintenance and repair................. _ - 14,585 14,516 69
Capital outlay ......coocemerccciiscsvnenens _ 11,000 10,804 196
Total expenditures........coceeeeeeeereans 30,235 29,626 609
Excess (deficiency) of revenues : .
over (under} expenditures................. - .. (235) 3,955 4,180
Fund balance at beginning of year........ 28,187 28,197 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated. 1,985 1,983 "0
Fund balance at end of year........... reenee . $29,947 $34,137 $4,190
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

FACILITIES APPROVAL SERVICE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favarable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable}
Revenues: , o :
Intergovenmental revenues...........coveeeeens 50 $0 $0
Total revenues.........ovcnciin . o 0 0
Expenditures:
Current: ;
General government:
Public safety:
Purchased services.. ...c.comvisines e — 700 700 0
Capital outlay .....ccoocemrvrieernrcrnemmeenrane _ 76,000 76,000 0
Total expenditures.....cceeerreerevrerene _— . 76,700 76,700 0
(Deficiency) of revenues .
{under) expenditures ........cccccrvviceecrcrciens .(78,700) (76,700) 0
Fund balance st beginning of year............ 654 654 1]
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..... 76,722 78,722 0
Fund balance at end of year.......c.c.ccc.oenen. _ %676 $676 $0
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

CONMMUNITY CORRECTIONS - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget 3 Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenues.....c.coveeeen. $0 L 30 $0
Tolal reVenUES......coveceevereeessmmmrmceeceanas .0 - 0 0
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Public safety:
Persanal sernvices.....c....cccvrummemnceee - 44 - - 44 1]
Other expenditures.....cocovvecvenveeeeeees . 10,985 , 10,885 0
Total expenditures.........ccoveeeeccervanacnns . 11,028 T 11,029 0
{Deficiency) of revenues
{under)} expenditures......cccoreccceenrrrccceren (11,029) (11,029) 0
Fund balance at beginning of year........... 2,454 2,454 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated.... 11,029 11,029 0
Fund balance atend of year.....cooooceecen . 52,454 52,454 $0
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

MUNICIPAL COURT INTENSIVE PROBATION - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: _
Intergovernmental revenues.....ccmreeeeeeeeee ... $124,373 $94,368 ($30,005)
Total revenues........c.creeceereceessivasnen 124373 94,368 (30,005)
Expenditures:
Current:
General government;
Public safety:
Personal Services........ccveeeeecveenecesennas . 106,693 . 99,855 6,838
Purchased ServiCeS.....mverarecceermsens e 4,800 853 ' 3,647
Materials and supplies......c...c.coreeeeeee : - 14,734 13,545 1,189
Maintenance and repair.........ooeecccveuus 9,663 5,517 4 146
ULIlIti@S. .o e e e e e e e e eece e 2,428 1,817 611
Capital Qutlay.....ccccoceeeerrrrrrrrrsresmnneen L 517 . 517 0
Total expenditures...........coovrecceeveceenee - 138,535 122,104 16,431
{Deficiency) of revenues
{under) expenditUres..........cccccceeeecvaannas (14,162) (27,736} (13,574)
Fund balance at beginning of year............ - .. 34,278 34,276 ’ 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..... 1,840 1,640 0
Fund balance at end of year...........coceeceeee $21,754 ~$8,180 (313,574)
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

LOCAL L AW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental ........ccccooveecinacrarnnes $24,208 - $0 ($24,208)
Invesiment @armings.....ccc.cueeecceeemmacccmeens . 500 751 251
Total revenuUes.......ccovvesseeevemrresesesserenas - 24708 751 (23,957)
Expendifures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative and executive:
Purchased Services........cceeeeramceacamsnen .73 0 73
Materials and supplies......c.ccccoeemnce - 500 ., 228 272
Capital outlay.......ccccerveeiivin e 55,673 33,204 22,379
Other expenditures.......ccoeeeeeeeeemeeeveres 42 141 T
Total expenditures................ 56,388 33,663 ©22,725
{Deficiency) of revenues
{under) expenditUres. .. ... remscenneecs (31,680) (32,812) (1.232)
Other financing solirces: _ B
Operating transfers in......ccoooeccceeee 2,690 3,088 399
Total other financing sources................ 2,680 3,089 - 399
{Deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources _

{under) expendifures.....c..cccvermeeeermmeranas (28,890) {28,823) {833)
Fund balance at beginning of year............ 28,599 128,599 -0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated..... 1,248 1,248 0
Fund balance atend of year.....c....cccuee.ec 3857 524 ($833)
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CLERMONT CQUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1299

FEMA - SPECIAL. REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised ' Favorabie
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: ) o - :
Intergovernmental ... ... . 51,553,436 $250,000 ($1,303,436)
Total reVenUES..........crcccevesinmrneec s - 1,563436 250,000 (1,303,436)
Expenditures: - -
Current;
Community development:
Purchased Services.....occcvevvevvemraryenes ... 50,000 11,633 38,367
Materials and supplies...cormvceeecr— . . - 5,000 0 . _ 5,000
Capital outlay........ceceeceeeeriensenisnneneas 247,130 32,744 214,386
Total expenditures.........cccoccorvnvneinnns — 302,130 44 377 257 753
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ) ) ) .
over {(under) expenditures..........cceeeeet 1,251,306 205,623 {1,045,683)
Fund balance at beginning of year.......... —_ 39,843 39,843 0
Pricr year encumbrances appropriated... .14,398 14,388 0
Fund balance at end of year.................... $1,305,547 $250,864 (51,045 683)
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CLERMONT CQUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1889

MUNICI{PAL COURT PROBATION SERVICES - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for Services o $60,000 . $103,450 $43,450
Total revenues...... S . 60,000 103,450 - 43450
Expenditures:
Current;
Judicial:
Personal services....coccccmmecrismncrvvnsene . - 3,644 3,643 1
Purchased services..... - 15,000 6,412 '8,588
Materials and supplies........c.ccoeeeceececeven 5,000 4,194 806
Maintenance and repair.........ccoeeevseeemeees .. 6,004 504 ' 5,500
Capital outlay......o.ooceoee e e e 15,203 12,142 ) 3,081
Total expenditures......... . i 44 851 ’ 26,895 ' 17,956
Excess of revenues
over expenditures.......... ) ‘ 15,149 76,555 61,406
Fund balance at beginning of year..oeevvvvaee — . 36,633 ' 136,633 .
Fund balance at end of year........coevccecevennens ,ﬁ,___=$51 782 $113,188 $61,406
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ADMINISTRATION IN JUSTICE - SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Other revenue.....coeeeees. - . $1,000 1,785 785
Total revenues.... - e = 1,000 1,785 785
Expenditures:
Current:
Judicial:
Materials and sUpplies......covvverenesnnrans — 1,000 44 956
Total expenditures......... 1,000 44 956
Excess of revenues :
over expenditures.......... _— 0 1,741 1,741
Fund balance at beginning of year................ 0 0 Q
Fund balance at end of year..........covcevveeeveens %0 $1,741 $1,741
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIOQ

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

Debt Service Funds are established {o account for the accumuliation of resources for the payment of debt reported
in the general long-term obligation account group and principal and interest. '

Correctional Facility
To account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of generai obligation bonds for the
construction of the correctional facilify.

Medical/Sccial Services’

To account for the accumutation of resources for the payment of general obligation bonds for an addition to
the Medical/Social Services Building.

Road Improvement i - ‘ - ‘
To account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of general obligation bonds issued to finance
county road improvements.

1993 Buildings _
To account for the accumuiation of resources for the payment of 1993 general obligation bonds issued
to finance the construction and renovation of various county facilities.

Engineer Equipment .
To account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of general obligation bonds to finance the
purchase of equipment.

Special Assessment

To account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of special assessment debt with governmental
commitment.
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1998 Medical/
Correctional Soclal Road 1993
Facility Services  Improvement _Buildings
Assets
Equity in pocled cash and -
cash equivalents........... . $12,745 $732 $3,364 $1,498
Cash equivalents in Segregated Accounts.......... D 0 0 0
Special assessments - 0. .0 , 0 0
Due from other funds... - .. 0 o) . g 0
Total assets $12,745 $732 $3,364 $1,498
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities
Interfund payable............ ~. . %0 $0 $0 $0
Deferred revenue... ) 0 0 0 0
Matured special assessment bonds payable....... a g 0 0
Matured interest payable........ 0 0 0 0
Totat liabilities 0 .0 0 0
Fund balances
Unreserved: ] _
Designated for debt service. .. . 12,745 732 3,364 1,498
Total fund balances..... e e 12,745 732 3,364 1,498
Total liabilities and fund balances . $12745 $732 $3,364 $1,408
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Engineer Special
Equipment Assessment Totals
$308 $221,299 $239 946
0 2,285 2,285
¢ 4,555,244 4,555,244
0 13,869 13,869
$308 $4,792,687 $4,811,344
50 $24,181 $24.181
0 4,568,582 4,568,582
0 26,000 26,000
0 12,798 12,798
0 _ 4,631,561 4,631,561
308 161,136 179,783
308 161,136 179,783
$308 $4,792,697 34,811,344
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - ALL DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

Medical/

Correctional Social Road 1993
Facility Services improvement Buildings
Revenues: , ) .
Special assessments............ 50 $0 $0 $0
interest.. . 0 0 0 Q
Total revenues..........cccceeeeeeems 0 0 0 0
Expenditures:
Debt service: .
Principal retirement............... 370,000 120,000 - 515,000 975,000
Interest & fiscal charges.... 302,695 92,578 664,319 384,161
Total expenditures.................. 672,695 212,578 1,179,319 . _ 1,359,161
Excess (deficiency} of revenues over (under)
expenditures............ - (672.695) (212,578) _ (1,179.319) (1,359,161}
Other financing sources: - L .

Operating transfers in......... 672,000 210,150 1,181,600 1,360,000
Total other financing sources 672,000 210,150 1,181,600 1,360,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other

financing sources over (under) expenditures........ (695) (2,428) 2,281 839
Fund balance at beginning of year........cccccooeeemeee . 13,440 3,160 1,083 659
Fund balance at end of year...... $12,745 $732 53,364 $1,498
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Engineer Special

Eguipment Assessment Totals
$0 $422,857 $422,857
0 2,285 _2,285
0 425,142 425,142
100,000 298,000 2,378,000
4,421 166,951 1,615,125
104,421 464,951 3,993,125
(104,421) (39,809) (3,567,983)
104,725 0 3,528,475
104,725 0 3528475
304 (39,809) (39,508)
4 200,845 219,291
$308 $161,136 $179,783
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

CORRECTIONAL FACILITY - DEBT SERVICE FUND

Vartance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues.......... ) . 30 50 %0
Expenditures:

Debt setvice: ) ]
Principal retirement...... oo e 370,000 370,000 0
Interest and fiscal charges......cccceeeeeee 303,300 302,695 605

Total expenditures......coverccmeeccvrerens 673,300 672,685 605
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures.....c.cevenemneas _{673,300) (672,695) 605
Cther financing sources: : .
Operating transfers in.....oecereniciceene £72,000 672,000 0
Total other financing sources............... 672,000 672,000 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over _ )
(under) expenditures........ccoceorereremenes - -(1,300) (695) 605
Fund balance at beginning of vear........... 13,440 13,440 0
Fund balance at end of year........ccceceenen . $12,140 $12,745 $605
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANGCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

MEDICAL/SOCIAL SERVICES - DEBT SERVICE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget _____Actual {Unfavorable)
REVEINUES.corveeresvreerseesrsaesmssneeneemamnteessses jﬁ_ 30 $0
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement........ccceeenivccinenenns 120,000 120,000 0
Interest and fiscal charges........ccoauen. 93,309 _ _92,578 C 731
Total expenditures......ccccoeveeeeannnnas 213,309 212,578 731
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expendifures.......coovrrreeceees __ {213,309) (212,578) 731
Other financing sources: B
Operating tfransfers in...c....oeceeermeienneas .. 210,150 210,150 9]
Total other financing sources.....cee...- _ 210,150 210,150 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures........oceecemmeemmeesnen - (3,159) (2,428) 731
Fund balance at beginning of year.......... 3,159 3,159 0
Fund balance at end of year........ccceeeeeee $0 $731 $731
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ROAD IMPROVEMENT - DEBT SERVICE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues. . N $0 $0 $0 N
Expenditures:

Debt service: 7
Principal retirement - 515,000 515,000 0
Interest and fiscal charges........cccccceevreen , .667,000 __ 664,319 2.681

Total expendiures........cocucvaneaccrcvnnn — ..1,182,000 1,179,319 2,681
Excess (deficiency) of revenues :
over (under) expenditures....cc-ccceverrreerrnen - {(1,182,000) (1,179,319) 2,681
Other financing sources: R
Operating transfers in......c..orvrmeverermrrreres - 1,182,000 1,181,600 {(400)
Total other financing sources......vmees 1,182,000 1,181,600 {400}
Excess of revenues
and other financing sources over ) :
EXPeNditUres. ....ccvvrcreveernnssrerercraressmsmnarerer 0 2,281 2,281
Fund balance at beginning of year............... 1,083 1,083 0
Fund balance at end of year....ccc.ccevenneee e $1,083 $3,364 $2.281
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EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,

(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1988

1993 BUILDINGS - DEBT SERVICE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues . $0 $0 50
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement....... . 975,000 975,000 0
interest and fiscal charges.....ccceececrceverns . ... 385,000 384,161 835
Total expenditureS........cceseeernerncearsenes: 1,360,000 1,359,161 839
Excess (deficiency) of revenues N
over (under) expenditures - {1.360,000) (1,359,161) 839
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers iN........c..cccvearsmescineas - 1,360,000 1,360,000 0
Total other financing SOUrCEs. ..o 1,360,000 1,360,000 0
Excess of revenues
and other financing sources over
expenditures........cvererereseeens -0 839 839
Fund balance at beginning of year.....cceeveueo- . 659 __B59 "0
Fund balance at end of year.......ccveveennaes . . 3658 31,498 $839
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues.....c..coueeee - __ $0 30 $0
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement.........cccceecvvviemeees 100,000 - 100,000 0
Interest and fiscal charges...cccccecceeveeeee ... 4500 4,421 79
Total expenditures......cecevevveecvveeenne — - 104,500 104,421 79
Excess (deficiency) of revenues o -
over {(under) expenditures. ... ecceee— (104,500} (104,421) 79
Other financing sources: : -
Operating transfers in.. e s 104,500 . 104,725 225
Total other ﬁnancmg SOUTCES...umercirrrmnnn 104,500 104,725 225
Excess of revenues _
and other financing sources over
expenditures L 0 ) .. 304 304
Fund balance at beginning of year ............ - 4 _ _4 Q.
Fund balance at end of year........cccueu..ec — $4 $308 _$304

CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ENGINEER EQUIPMENT - DEBT SERVICE FUND
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
{NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT - DEBT SERVICE FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavaorable)
Revenues:
Special ASSeSSMENIS. ... mseminnann — . . ®472816 $421,201 ($51,415)
Total revenues....... . _ .472.618 421,201 {51,415}
Expenditures:
Debt service:
Principal retirement.......oooovecisenccce, ; 287,000 287,000 0
Interest and fiscal charges.......cueeeeeemee. 185,910 165,583 30,327
Total expendituresS...... oo mmaan - 482910 452,583 30,327
{Deficiency) of revenues
(under) expendituresS. ... e — {10,204} {31,382) {21,088)
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers iN.......ccoommmeee _ ¢] 2,001 2,001
AdVANCES IM..verccerimaceemsrrceaarrsscnernnsmanes . D 24,181 24,181
Total other financing sources.....cocoe. _ 0 26,182 26,182
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures... (10,204) (5,200) 5,094
Fund balance at beginning of year............ o 226,498 , 226,408 Js)
Fund balance at end of year.....cocevcveceneee $216.,204 B $221,298 $5.084
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
The Capital Project Funds account for financlal resources o be used for the acquisition or construction of major

capital faciliies or improvements. Revenues and financing resources are derived from the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds,

Adult Detention
To account for the construction of the new Detention Facility.

Medical/Sacial Services -
This fund accounts for amounts accumulated for future capital requirements of the Medical Social Services
Facility.

Communications Center
To account for a 911 system upgrade.

Courthouse/Administration Building
To account for the construction of a new Justice and Administration Center.

Airport Taxiway
To account for the maintenance and repair of the County’s airport taxiway.

Road Improvement
To account for by-pass construction and other road improvements.

Sheriff's Office
To account for capital improvements to the Sheriff's office facility.

County Capital Improvement
To account for other major capital improvements to County facilities.

_ Administration Building Construction
To account for the construction of an Administration Building.

Planning and Development ’ =
To account for receipts from the Ohio Department of Development for infrastructure 1mprovements.

Juvenile Justice Fagcility 7
To account for the construction of a juvenile justice facility.

Domestic Retations Court Construction
To account for the construction of a Domestic Relations Court facility.

Telephone System
To account for the purchase of a new telephone system.

Heritage Building
To account for the renovation and improvement of the Heritage Building

Road Assessment Projects i
To account for the construction and improvements of county roads.
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET "~~~ - -

ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1998

Medical/ Courthouse/
Adult Social Communication Administration
Detention Services Center Building
Assels
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents..........coeeeeeee.. . 51,892,622 $90,930 $5,404,600 $688,216
Receivables(net of allowances , _
for uncollectibles):
TaxXes....ccomerrennee R ¢ R 0 0 0
Accounts.....c.e.... ——— . -0 . 0 I * 0.
Accrued interest.......cooecemicciieamen e erenes 19,709 1,223 19,110 0
Due from other funds......cc.oovvreiceceiii v . 4818 299 37,965 0
Total assetS... oo ceenines .$1,917,149 $92,452 $5,461,675 $698,216
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities:
Contracts payable................ ... $60,794 $0 $58,454 $926
Deferred revernuUe. ........ccivveeirvmeeversrmeeceeeee 13,328 B27 0 0
Accrued interest payable........eercoveee - - 0. _ 0 o . o
Notes payable..........cciiii s 0., 0 0 . _ D
Total Habilities.......cocovrvrrrereoacrmerrrrervvesmeremecrene. . 14,122 827 58 454 926
Fund balances:
Reserved for: - -
Encumbrances. ..o ceiei e cevecsscmmesnennanman 1,009,327 0 7,490,784 575,755
Unreserved/undesignated(deficit)........... erie _ 833,700 81,625 (2,087,563) 121,535
Total fund balances(deficit)....c.ovvvvreeveceececeeeeee. - 1,843,027 91,625 5,403,221 697,290
Total liabilities and fund balances........ccoreeeeo.. $1,917,149 $92,452 $5,461,675 $698,216
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County Administration Juvenile
Airport Road Sheriff's Capital Building Planning and  Justice
Taxiway Improvement  Office _Improvement Construction Development __ Facility
521,644 $0 $194,179 $3,702,099 $263,426 $1,377,036 $72,600
0 0 0 3,209,638 0 0 0
o 0 o 125,130 o 4] o
0 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0
0 0 0 91,941 0 0 0
$21,644 $0 $194,179 $7,128,709 $263,426  $1,377,036 $72,800
30 30 $0 $35,649 30 $530,508 $0
g 0 0 3,288,014 0 a o
0 0 o 0 0 0 0
0 0 4] 4] 0 0 0
_0 0 0 - 3,333,663 0 530,505 0
0 0 o 3B141 0 1,022,661 . 0
21,644 0 194,178 3,756,906 263,426 {176,130} 72,600
21,644 0 194179 3,705,046 263,426 846,531 72,600
$21,844 $0 ' $194,179 $7,128,709 $263,426 $1,377,036 $72,SDD
(Continued)

153




CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
PECEMBER 31, 1989 - {Continued)

Assets

Equity in pooled cash and

cash equivalents

Receivables(net of allowances
for uncollectibles):

Accrued inferest..........cccoocmeeeemvenemnnnns
Due from other funds
Total assetS.. e vreecerreenae.

Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities:
Contracts payabie

Deferred reVenuUe........ e csssrre s eeeee
Accrued interest payable
Notes payable......ccccceeet
Total liabilities...........cccvrreres

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances........cceererneeeee
Unreserved/undesignated{deficit)...........cccrerrerns
. Total fund balances{deficit)

Total liabilities and fund balances

............................ —$56.40

Domestic
Reijations Road
Court Telephone  Heritage Assessment
Construction _ System Building _ Projects
$56,400 $466,825 $23,069 $2,542,016
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
N _. 0 0 0 . 11,089
0 . 0 0 6,700
0 $466,825 $23,068 $2,559,805
30 $798 $0 5123
. 0 0 0. 0
0 0 o . 10,750
. 0 . 0 0 . 3,000,000
0 798 s} 3,010,873
......................... .. 0 462,271 0 8,434
. 56,400 3,756 23,069 {459,502)
466,027 23,089 {451,068)
$466,825 $23,069 $2,559,805
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Totals
$16,805,662

3,209,539
125,130
S1,13
141,723

$20,333,185

$687,249
3,312,169

10,750
3,000,000

7,010,168

10,607,373
2,715,644

13,323,017

$20,333,185
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES - ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 189¢

Medical/ Courthouse/
Adul Social Communication Administration
Detention Services Center Building

Revenues: '

TAXES . eeeceerreeamaarecsssnasanrmesresaseriesartesstrmensmnssane $0 $0 $0 $0

Intergovemmental......... e .0 0 0 0

Investment eamings.....c.ccccaceeacceeecs 85,132 8,682 53,199 0

Net decrease in fair vaiue of investments....... (36,982) (2,295) 0 0

All other revenues......... . 3] 0 0 o
TOLAl REVEINLES....uneeererreereeeemesersssresrmemssnssrmesen 48,150 6,387 53,199 0
Expenditures:

Capital outiay......... e 213,421 56,556 5,020,415 25,610

Debt Service: :

Interest and fiscal Charges. ... vrecrresnraaens .0 a o g
Total expenditures........c..... 213,421 56,556 5,020,415 25,610
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures. ..o ecccaeeeenn {165,271} {50,169) (4,967,216) (25,610}
Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds from sale of bonds........coceeivieenee. . g I ¢ 6,500,000 0
Operating transfers in........ 270,000 50,000 3,555,302 673,600
Operating transfers (out).... . 0 (94,945} ‘ 0 0
Total other financing sources (uses) veerevsernis 270,000 _ (44,945) 10,055,302 873,600
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other .
financing sources over (under) expenditures '
and other financing USES....ccvccccenernemssnnae - 104,729 (95,114) 5,088,086 647,990
Fund balance(deficit) at beginning of vear........ 1,738,288 186,739 315,135 48,300
Fund balance(deficit) at end of year........cc..s - 51,843,027 $91,625  $5,403,221 $697,290
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County Administration Juvenile

Airport Road Sheriff's Capital Building Planning and  Justice
Taxiway improvement  Office Improvement _Construction Development _ Facility
$0 $0 $0 $2,805,389 $0 $0 $0
0 1,507,223 o. 284,633 0 1,017,432 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
50 0 0 571,394 0 172,712 0
50 1,50?,523 0 " 3,661,416 0 1,180,144 0
8,755 1,607,223 . 5,885 479,254 19,784 2,029,720 0
0 0 o 0 0 0 a
- 8,755 1,507,223 5895 479§§4 ' 19,784 2,_629,720 0
~{B,705) 0 (5,895) 3,182,162 __(19,784) (839,576) 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0
] a 31,700 0 86,000 866,683 - 24,200
0 0 0 (2,641,306) 0 {7,000) 0
0 0 31,700 (2.641,306) 86,000 859,683 24,200
{6,705) 0 25,805 540,856 68,2186 20,107 24,200
28,349 0 168,374 3,254,180 187,210 826 424 48,400
$21,644 $0 $194,179 $3,795,046  $263,426 $846,531 = $72,600
(Continued)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES iN FUND

BALANCES - ALL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1898 - (Continued)

Domestic
Relations Road
Court Telephone  Heritage  Assessment
) Construction __System Building _ Projects
Revenues: ;
TAXES.ceeuerereseeaansrrneaasssmsrsanas . %0 $0 $0 $0
intergovernmental.........ccccueenn 0 0. o 0
Investment eamings........... e 0 0 0 126,710
Net decrease in fair value of investments........... 0 0 0 0
All other revenues.... . 0 . ... 0 0. _ 37,700
Total Revenues. S U ¢ IS _ 0 __Q - 164,410
Expenditures: 7
Capital outlay.........cccrsvurnen. . 0 90,186 22,299 . 207,875
Debt Service
[nterest and fiscal charges...... I 0 0 0 129,404
Total expenditures............... i 0 90,186 22,299 337,279
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures . o . Q. .(90,186) (22,299} (172,869)
Other financing sources (uses): .
Proceeds from sale of bonds.....cccccvemeorcecceceans. 0 _ 0 -0 690,000
Operating transfers in....c.cc.vveeec e cerscceemeeees 18,800 285,000 22,684 1)
Operating transfers {out)....... 0 .. D 0 0
Total other financing sources (USes)......c.ccrerersers .. 18,800 285.000 22,684 690,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
financing sources over {under} expenditures
and other uses - 18,800 194,814 385 517,131
Fund balance{deficit) at beginning of year............ 37,600 271,213 22,684 (968,199)
Fund balance(deficit) at end of year........c.cceveee. . $56,400 $466,027 $23,069 {$451,068)
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Totals

$2,805,389
2,809,288
273,723
(39,277)
781,856

6,630,979

8,684,593

129,404

9,814,397

(3,183,418)

7,190,000
5,883,969
(2,743,251)

10,330,718

7,147,300
6,175,717

$13,323,017
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

ADULT DETENTION - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

Revenues:

Intergovemnmental revenues.........—veeeen. $1,140,000 , $0 {$1,140,000)

investment earningS.....ccorrvaeeeeerererermmeen 70,805 88,954 18,149

Total revenues........ 1,210,805 88,954 {1,121,851)
Expenditures:

Purchased services - 5,000 D 5,000

Capital OUtlay.....ccecvecrr e cissss e enreane - 1,549,852 1,226,343 323,509

Total expenditures........ 1,654,852 1,226,343 328,509
(Deficiency) of revenues

{under) expenditures.... _ .. [344.047) (1,137,389) {793,342)
Other financing sources: - .

Operating transfers in.......occccmmsrmmeriecees 210,000 270,000 60,000

Proceeds of notes., - 660,000 . . 0 ____ (660,000}

Total other financing sources.....cccoc.. 870,000 270,000 " {600,000}

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other financing sources over T -

(under) expenditures. .....ceeeeeeeeee e 525,953 (867,389) (1,393,342)
Fund balance at beginning of year............ 1,336,119 1,336,119 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated...... 364,952 364,952 0
Fund balance at end of year....ccreeern. _$2.,227,024 $833.682 ($1,393,342)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1899

MEDICAL/SOCIAL SERVICES - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)

Revenues:

[nvestment eamings...c.cocvvevnrreecevmmmmsnem - cae .. o 94,860 $9,600 $4,740

Total revenues...... 4.860 9,600 4,740
Expenditures:

Capital outlay... - 60,054 56,556 3,498

Total expenditures .. .. 60,054 56,556 3,498
Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures.......cccuen.. — __.{55184) (46,956) 8,238
Cther financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers ... eeevcermceeeenne - 50,000 50,000 0

Operating transfers (OUt)......c.coeereavecees {94 948) {94,9486) 0

Total other financing sources (uses). (44,946) {44,946) 0

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and cother financing sources over

{under) expenditures and cther

financing uses.. . {100,140) (91,902) 8,238
Fund balance at beginning of year......... _ _ 180,494 180,494 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated... 2,045 2,045 0
Fund balance at end of year......ccece.eveem- __ _$82.398 $90,637 $8,238
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1909

COMMUNICATION CENTER - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: & _
Intergovernmental revenues........cc.cueeeeeens - $1,826,708 $0 30
Investment eamings......ccocuucrrrrveeeresascsses — . 0 34,089 (34,089
Total revenues 1,826,708 34,089 1,792 619
Expenditures:
Purchased services..... 86,271 86,271 o
Capital OUEIAY...coiereeercreececeeerreeseeeransnmanes 12,434,580 12,433,618 962
Total expenditures......... 12,520,851 12,519,888 862
({Deficiency) of revenues
(under) expenditures........ccccrreeeerresmecens — (10,694,143) {12,485,800) (1,791,657)
Other financing sources: - SR -
Operating transfers iMoo runserre 5,485,815 3,555,302 {1,930,513)
Proceeds from general obligation bonds... 5,000,000 6,462,035 1,462.035
Total other financing sOUrCes...cevveveenn.- 10,485,815 10,017,337 {468,478)
{Deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources
(under) expenditures...........ccccveiressreenn- - . .-(208,328) (2,468,463) (2.260,135)
Fund bafance at beginning of year............... 108,050 108,050 : 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated......... 217,105 217,105 0
Fund balance(deficit) at end of year............. _$116,827 (32,143,308} ($2,260,135)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1899

COURTHOUSE/ADMINISTRATION BUILDING - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _ (Unfavorable)
Revenues:. - - _$0 i $0_ $0
Expenditures: ]
Capital outlay.....ceovveceeeenrens : 712,601 642268 - 70,333
Total expenditures..... van . T12,601 642,268 70,333
Excess (deficiency) of revenues S ~
over (under) expenditures............,.....:.... {712,601) (642,268) 70,333
Cther financing sources: . . . o .
Operating transfers iN....oo.ocvviseeeeceeeveeannns ... 195,000 . 673,600 {121,400)
Total other financing sources.......c.ca... 795,000 673,600 {121,400}
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
and other financing sources over 7
{under) expenditures. ......cccr e ccreseeree—aas . 82,389 31,332 (51,067)
Fund balance{deficit) at beginning of year. {111,085) (111,065) 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....., . 201,268 201,268 0
Fund balance at end of year.......c.cceceveeeee .- $172,602 $121,535 - ($51,067}
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

AIRPORT TAXIWAY - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised - Favorable
Budget Actual ~ (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
All other revenue....c..cceeemeencenees — $0 $50 $50
Total reVeNUES....civurrccvemnnreseecvrarmremmremeees 0 50 50
Expenditures: - -
Capital QUtlaY ... nseer e e _ 40,000 = 6755 33245
Toial expendiures... .. - 40,000 5,755 33,245
Excess (deficiency) of revenues , . -
over {under) expenditures.......c.uueecccececns - . {40,000} (6,705) _ 33,295
Other financing sources: ,
QOperating transfers in.......coceoeesaanene . 40,000 0 (40,000)
Totatl other financing sources......coou...e - 40,000 T ¢ _ {40.000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues cm -
and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures. ..o ssecssesnesmnene - . -0 ' {6,705) (6,705)
Fund balance at beginning of year.............. 28,350 , .28,350 0
Fund balance at end of year.........c.ceeceeeceee .~ $28.350 $21.645 ($6,705)
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Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget ___Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES...1ieerreveceieesremsaecreeeremsemeseneans " L $0 30 $0
Expenditures:
Capital Cutlay... - ..__10,000 5,895 4,108
Total expendifures... .. coeeeaceeceenceenanen . ... 10,000 _ 5,895 4,105
Excess {deficiency) of revenues 7
over (under) expenditures.....coeecercaes . _{10,000) (5,895) 4,108
Other financing sources:
Qperating transfers in......ccccecieeicacenes 31,700 31,700 0
Total other financing sources............. 31,700 31,700 o
Excess of revenues '
and other financing sources over - .
EeXPendifUres. v ceaamcenrancnnens 21,700 25,805 4,105
Fund balance at beginning of year........... 168,374 168,374 0
Fund balance at end of year......couuma- . $190.074 $194,178 $4,105

CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1898

SHERIFF'S OFFICE - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
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CLERMONT COUNTY, ORHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1989

COUNTY CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _ {Unfavorable)
Revenues: -
Taxes....cceeeees $2,735,969 $2,808,415 $72,448
Intergovernmental revenues.............ccceeeee. 261,112 284,633 23,521
Other FeVEeNUES.. ... ereesam s srrsssee - 3,000 446,549 443,549
Total FEVENUES......coveeererrrcesveressrrrransneroaes . 3,000,081 3,539,597 539,516
Expenditures: .
Purchased ServiCes......crrreermrrsresreres S 459,033 452,846 6,187
Capital outlay......cc.ee e erevrresser e e errees ...1,300,658 496,574 804,084
Total expendifires.....c.crvrressecnmmmmreraen - 1,759,691 949,420 810,271
Excess of revenues
over expenditures........cvrrveereeeeeecrne . --1,240,390 2,580,177 1,349,787
Other financing {(uses):
OCperating transfers {out)......coccaeermeeeees _(3,047,976) (2,641,306) 406,670
Total other financing (USeS)..c...vvremmmeenn: . (3,047.976) {2.641,3068) 406,670
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under)} expenditures
and other financing USeS... . vvicereeeereeenee. {1,807,586) {61,129) 1,756,457
Fund balance at beginning of year.............. 3,184,068 3,184,068 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated....... 473,229 473,229 0
Fund balance at end of year........correceeeeen. $1,849,711 $3,606,168 $1,756,457
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ADMINISTRATION BUILDING CONSTRUCTION - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised o Favorable
Budget _ _Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues......... . ) $0 $0
Expenditures:
Capital outlay.... ... 20,000 . 19,784 216
Total expenditures.....cee oo comcenee - 20,000 19,784 216
Excess (deficiency) of revenues . : _
over (under} expenditures.....c.ccveeens . (20,000) {19,784) PAL)
Other financing sources: , o
Operating transfers in.....ccoevvecvemrreeenes . 85,500 , 86,000 500
Total other financing sources........... ~.. 85500 _ 86,000 _ 500
Excess of revenues
and other financing sources over - ) )
expenditiresS. .. reraccaomrrmvamenee - 05,500 66,216 716
Fund balance at beginning of year......... . 197,210 ] 197,210 0
Fund balance at end of year.....cceeemeean. - .$262,710 : $263,426 5716
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, .
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: . X
Intergovernmental revenues...........ceeee. $1,100,000 $1,017,432 ($82,568)
Cther revenues 594,393 172,712 {421,681)
Total reVenUES....coueuvrerecresmenememarres 1,694,393 1,190,144 (504,249)
Expenditures: i , _
Capital outay......ccoeeeeveerecceenmercermsens - 2,933,505 2,933,505 0
Total expenditures......cocvecceecencvcennee - 2,833,505 2,933,505 0
{Deficiency} of revenues
(under) expendifures........cccoovemremsicnns (1,239,112} (1,743,361) (504,249)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in....ereeee 1,315,072 866,683 {448,389)
Operating transfers (oOUt).....ccccccvviean - {7,000) {7,000) 0
Total other financing sources (uses). 1,308,072 ~859,683 (448,389)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other
financing uses........ - 68,960 {883,678) {952,638)
Fund balance at beginning of year.......... . 248,215 248,215 0
Prior year encumbrances appropriated... 846,112 846,112 0
Fund balance at end of year.........cvevevnn $1,163,287 $210,649 ($952,638)
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

JUVENILE JUSTICE FACILITY - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised : Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)_
Revenues.......e...... . . .. $0 . . %0 $0
Expenditures:
Capital outlay.......... - 5,000 0 5,000
Totail expenditures............... — __.5,000 0 5,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues i i _
over (under) expenditures..........ccoueen.. .. .{5,000) 0 5,000
Other financing sources: )
Operating transfers in.......ccccveerrreerrmaaces 24.200 . 24,200 .0
Total other financing sources....ccm.-. . 24,200 24,200 0
Excess of revenues
and other financing sources over C
expenditures.... _ 19,200 24,200 ~ 5,000
Fund balance at beginning of year............ 48,401 48,401 ) 0
Fund balance at end of year......cccccomuneenn 367,601 $72,601 $5,000
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

DOMESTIC RELATIONS COURT - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES...ccoeemeee e crraeeserasar rensmsemsrrerosenens - $0 _ 30 $0
Expenditures:
Capital outlay....... - . C .0 0
Total expendifures........ovcecrercirirren 0 o - 0 0 0
Excess of revenues _ , B}
over expenditureS. .. eeesceeesennns 0 . . (11 _ 0
Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in......c.eecerseemsasenreas, 403,800 .. .. 18,800 (385,000)
Totat other financing sources............. 403,800 18,800 {385,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other financing sources over ,
(under) expenditures........ccoeeeccvvvemerrennaes 403,800 18,800 {385,000)
Fund balance at beginning of year............ 37,600 37,600 0
Fund balance at end of year........ccceeevvene. $441,400 $56,400 ($385,000)
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Revenues....cccceem..n

Expenditures:
Capital outlay..

v

CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

TELEPHONE SYSTEM - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

.............

Total expenditures

B T

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under} expenditlres.....cc.oovreeeunnas

Other financing sources;

Operating transfers iN........ocuvemeccssanenns
Total other financing sources..............

Excess (deficiency} of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expendifures........ccccceeecieenneenns

Fund balance at beginning of vear..........-.
Fund balance at end of vear.....coveceveennens .

Variance:

Revised Favorable
Budget i Aciual (Unfavorable)
$0 50 50
556,000 552,007 3,993
556,000 552,007 __ 3,993
_(556,000) (552,007) 3,893
285,000 285,000 0
_ 285,000 285,000 ‘ 0
{271,000) (267,007) 3,993
_ 271,213 271,213 0
.. 3213 $4 206 $3,993
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

HERITAGE BUILDING - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Variance:
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual _ {Unfavorable}
Revenues........ccceceaanna- $0 30 $0
Expenditures: .
Capital outlay........... . . 22,684 22,299 .. 385
Total expenditures. ... ..o ceeeceecmsmesrmcess . 22,684 22,299 385
Excess (deficiency) of revenues _ ,
over (under} expenditures. ......ccovommarmeee. . .. (22684) _ (22299) 385
Other financing soutces: L
Qperating transfers in ..o 22,684 - 22,684 0
Total other financing sources.......... S 22684 © 22,684 0
Excess of revenues
and other financing sources over - , ,
expenditures......... - ] ) o _ ) 385 385
Fund balance at beginning of year......coee._ . 22684 22,684 0
Fund balance at end of year.........ceueeceee.. ..$22 684 $23,069 $385
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ROAD ASSESSMENT PROJECTS - CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

Vartance:
Revised Favorable
__Budget Actual _(Unfavorable)
Revenues:
investment earmings......o.c.ecoceecrereeeesecan $133,825 $127,190 ($6,635)
Other Revenues....... _ 37,700 - 51,695 13,995
Tofal revenues...........conreas , 171,525 178,885 7,360
Expenditures:
Capital outlay.....ccocemeecmnerneerecsne - 2,714,908 272,804 2,442 102
Principal Retirement. 3,650,000 - 3,650,000 ' 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges.......cccecceeenes 126,000 123,755 2,245
Total expenditures. ... eveeeeeevemeeeereenns - 6,490 806 4,046,559 2,444 347
Excess (deficiency) of revenues ,
over {under) expenditures......cccee o, (6,319,381} (3,867,674) 2,451,707
Other financing sources (uses): .
Operating fransfers iN.......coo v cececemenes 54,600 0 (54,600)
Operating transfers out......ccceeecmrsinvens (68,566) 0 68,566
Proceeds of notes 2,999,985 3,000,000 5
Proceeds from Sale of BondS...cccccremeeee o 688,000 683,300 {4,700}
Total other financing sources (uses).... 3,674,028 ~ 3,683,300 9,271
Excess (deficiency} of revenues
and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and cther :
financing LUSes....cuucea. _ . .. {2,645,352) {184,374) 2,460,978
Fund balance at beginning of vear............. . 2,615,272 2,815,272 0
Prior vear encumbrances appropriated...... _ 102,561 102,561 0
Fund balance at end of year........c.coveeeeen__ _ . $72.481 $2,533,459 $2,460,978
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

These funds account for the acquisition, operation and maintenance of County facilities which are financed
primarily by user charges.

Water
The County Sanitary Engineer provides water to residential, commercial and indusirial customers in
Clermont County. Revenue generated through user charges is used for operation, maintenance, and capital
improvements of the water distribution system.

Sewer
The County provides sanifary sewer service to residential, commercial and industrial users in Clermont
County also serviced by the water system. Sewer charges are based on water usage and serve as the
major revenue source for financing the operations and maintenance of the sewer system.

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

These funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other
departments or agencies of the governmental unit, or to other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Self-Funded Health Insurance
To account for claims and administration of the health insurance program for covered County employees
and eligible dependents. County funds are billed according to the number of participants in the plan.

Fleet Maintenance
To account for vehicle maintenance services prowded to various county departmenis and other
governmental units. Users are billed for costs incurred.

Telephone Company
To account for telephone services to various county departments and other governmental units. Users are
billed for costs incurred.

Workers’ Compensation
To account for the administration of a Workers’ Cempensation program to reduce employee risk,
decrease the County's workers’ compensation liability and to measure and recover the cost of providing the
program to departments of the County.
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CLERMONT CQUNTY, OHIOQ
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL ENTERFRISE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

'I;qtals

_Water Sewer
Assets
Current Assets: : - ; R
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents........e...n e - 93,174,125 $4,505,098 $7,679,223
Cash equivalents in segregated accounts........cecemememacens - 694,253 2,405,848 3,100,101
Investments in segregated acCOUNS..... vevommeremsemmreens 22,961,550 31,324,964 " 54,286,514
Accounts receivable (net of allowances far uncoflectibles) 1,635,130 . 2,473,501 4,108,831
Inventory of supplies at cost..... _ 172,533 41,573 214,506
Total current assets 28,537 591 40,751,384 69,388,875
Restricted assets:
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents.......cceee. — ... 600 D 600
Held by trustee: ’
Cash equivalents in segregated accounts........coreeveeene 219,615 500,114 719,728
Investments in segregated accounts 7.008,372 7,647,828 14,656,200
Retainage accounts............ . 13,694 39,208 52,902
Accrued interest.......... __ 133ead - 162,014 295,653
Total restricted assets 7,375.920 8,349,164 15,725,084
Property, plant and equipment: -

Property, plant & equipment... 113,336,224 184,254,167 297,590,391
Accumulated depreciation.......... (36,715,045) (71,253,534}  (107,968,579)
Construction in progress.............. 1,278,456 4 274,548 5,553,004

Tota! property, plant and eqUIPMENt. ... seesecrems e 97,899,635 117,275,181 195 174 818
Otherasgets: - - . B

Unamortized financing costs...... ... 822,139 1,073,509 1,895,648

Grants receivable........... 14,886 210,102 224 988

Loans receivable....... oo . 880,760 990,760

Interfund receivable.......... ... 257814 T 504008 0 758823

Total other assets ~ 1,084,839 2775380 T 3870219
Total assets $115,007,985 $169,151,109 $284,159,094
Liabilities and fund equity
Current iiabilities: - o ) )

Agcounts payable.... .. $185,181 $389,603 $584,784
Accrued wages and benefits.......... ) 398,240 475,150 873,390

Total current iiabilities.. — . 593,421 864,753 1,458 174
Tofal iiabilities payabie from restricted assets: )

Current portion of long-term obligations........ccwevecenmec - . 1,510,000 1,493,802 3,003,802

Accounts payable........ . 60625 187,742 248,367
Accrued interest payable.... _ 220615 7 7196,585 417,210

Retainage payable...... - - 13894 39,208 52,902

Maintenance bond payable " 35,525 33,525 71,050

Total payable from restricted assets..... e ceee. 1,840,459 1052,872 3,793,531

Long-term debt; . )

O.W.D.A, notes payable....., C 0 1,973,879 1,973,879

C.PW.C. loans......... S 2,986,629 ‘2,986,629

Revenue bonds payable 46,075,000 .45.490,000 91,565,000

Total liabilities . 48008880 53268 133 101,777,013
Fund equity
Contributed capital... e _. . 44,150,894 124,208,126 168,359,020
Retained earnings: - : _
Reserved for restricted assets _..5535461 6,386,292 11,931,753
Unreserved............. . 16,812 750 14,721,442 2,091,308
Total fund equity..,.-. o 10; 115,882 976 182,382,081
Taotal liahilities and fund equity....... $115,007,985 $169,151,109 $284,159,094
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Water Sewer Totals,
Operating revenues: - ) .
Charges for services: - ~ - ) S .-
Service charges......... $11,074,333  $13,907429  $24,981,752
New meters, services and revigws.. ...« mrcercsrinemen 824 235 112,085 1,036,320
All other revenues......... - . 2168912 2258 - 219,171
Total cperating revenues....... . 12215470 14021773 26,237,243
Operating expenses: .
Personal services 2612301 2,891,914 5,504,215
Contractual services............ . 550,128 ~ 1,084,463 1,634,591
Maintenance and repairs...... . 234,114 370,364 604,478
Utilities........ . 855397 1,156,779 2,012,176
Materials and supplies - 1,188,868 . 639,119 1,827,987
Depreciation......... a3, 228 240 8,146,990 9,375,230
Other...... 21,820 19,146 ' 40,966
Tatal operating expenses..... Q;GSO,W 12,308,775 20,988,643
Cperating income..... . 3,524 802 1,712,998 5.237.600
Nonoperating revenues (expenses): ) _
Investment income..........— renmat e L. 1,508,642 1,820,525 3,428,167
Net decrease in fair value of investments......ccocoeceveersn. e (2B7,367) (801,038) {1,088,403)
Interest expense and fiscal charges. {2,750,259) (2,588,170} (5,338,429
Total nonoperating revenues (BXPensSes}). ... wmrens {1,528,984) (1,468.681) (2,997 665)
Net income........... — 1,885,618 244 317 2,239,935
Retained eamings(deficit) at beginning of year.........rccomeeer ) 352 593 %8;569,467) 11,783,126
Retained eamings(deficit) at end of year....... 22,348,211 325,150} 14,023,061
Contributed Capital at beginning of year.....ccomuvcerermsrromr -~ .40,687,551 118,896,513 = 159,584,084
Contributions during the yearn:
Grant payments received and other........ccccoececccareapeenn . 15,461 210,102 - 225,583
Contributed assets by developers........cc.e.... e s o 1,451,797 1,875,932 3,327,729
System capacity charges .. . 1,996.085 3,225 579 5221664
Contributed Capital at end of Year......nrernieeroernee____ 44,150,894 124,208,126 168,359,020
Total Fund Equity at end of vear...... 566,488,105 $115,882676 _ $182 382,081
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Water Sewer Totals
Cash flows from operating activities: e
Operating income..... e 33,524,602 $1,712,998 $5,237,600
Adjusiments o reconcile operating income fo net cash
provided by operating activities: B
Depreciation. ... ceerceeeemmsrec e e 3,228,240 6,146,990 9,375,230
Change in allowance for uncollectibles...cccoaaeeceeen — 2,813 3,830 6,643
Decrease (increase) in assets:
Accounts receivable.....oooeereeee. {55.606) (125,145) (180,751)
inventory of supplies at cost. 6,774 (1,762) T 5,012
Prepaid expenses......ccmeemesersea - .. 41,264 47,696 88,960
Increase (decrease) in liabilities: '
Accounts payable..... (67.778) (44,062) {111,840)
Accrued wages and benefits............. _(45,067) {113.,154) {158,221}
Net cash provided by operating activities 6,635,242 7,627,391 14,262,633
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal paid on revenue bonds......... (1,445,000} {1,160,000) {2,605,000)
Interest paid on revenue bonds.......cccau.. {2,712,408) (2,407,600) (5,120,008)
Principal paid on OWDA notes......... 0 . {108,063) (108,063)
Interest paid on OWDA notes....... . — 0. (117,109) {(117,109)
Principal paid on OPWC loan...... — .0 {178,638)  (178,638)
Interest paid on OPWC loan........ — 0 _ {28,207y (28,207)
Construction of capital assets........... (2,440,818) (2,545,687) (4,986,505)
Retainage receipts (payments)............ (26,5486) 10,471 (16,075)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets...coeerreerececcnceeee - 36,830 71,573 108,403
System capacity Charges.... s e - 1,996,085 3,225,579 5,221,664
Proceeds from special assessments.... 15,461 g 15,461
FPayments of maintenance bonds..... S 10,326 10,325 20,651
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities.... (4,586,070} {3,227,356) {7,753,426)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investments.... (26,403,600)  (35,195,984) (62,599,584}
Proceeds from sale of investments..... 22,378,088 298,127,013 51,505,101
interest received oh investments........ . 1,465,090 1,872,956 3,338,046
Net cash used for investing activities....... (2,560,422} {5,196,015) {7,756,437)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents._.....cccoveomeee e, (491,250) (795,980} (1,287.,230)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year.....c.vcccoeeee.._ 4,593 539 8,246,246 12,839,785
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.....cccvveeeeeoee e 34,102,289 $7,450,266  $11,552,555
Nencash transactions - contributions from developers  $1,451,797 $1,875,932 $3,327,729
Restricted cash and cash equivalents at end of year $233,900 ?539,322 $5773,231

177



CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Self-Funded
Health Fleet Telephone Worker's
Insurance  Maintenance Company Compensation Totals
Assets .
Current Assets: .
Equity in pooled cash and cash equivalents........... $1,314.565 $99,984 $214,190 $1,189,733 $2,818,472
Accounts receivable.. i . B 35968 45391 0 81,359
Total current assets...... 1394565 135950 _ 259,581 1,180.783  __ 2,859,831
Property, plant & equipment........cv.ceeore S .G 115218 78,080 v} 193,308
Accumulated depreciation... . .0 (%(-_;,_521} . %’ggﬂ 0 1(25,?12)
Total property, plant and equipment. ... ecoreeeee .0 B57 70,089 1] 37,796
Total assets... _$1,314,565 ~ $203,645 §.§Q,580' $1.186,733  $3,037,627
Liabilities and fund equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable... - 138,003 77,004 42,023 o 258,030
Accrued wages and benefits...c..cvvvceemseemmceresaee. —. 703 4,443 54 .0 5,200
Compensated absences payable........omwreceees . .0 13810 0 0 13,810
intergovernmental Payable... 2,668 16,349 708 0 19,725
Claims payable...... . 471453 0 Q 0_ _ 471453
Total current liabilities. _..B13.827 111,606 42,785 0 768,218
Total liabilities...... _ 613,827 {11,806 __ 42,785 0 768,218
Fund eguity . o
Contributed capitat............. . s , .0 L7 18,814 37.800 . Q . 56,414
Retained eamings: - B _
Unreserved......... - _700.738 73,429 248,095 1,189,733 2,212,995
Total fund equity.....eou... . i __ 700,738 62043 _ 286,895 _ 1,189,733 2 260,400
Total liahilities and fund equity......cueecenrmummennns_$1,314.565 $203,649 $329,680 $1,189,733 $3,037,627
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND EQUITY

ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1599

Self-Funded
Health Fleet Telephone Worket's
Insurance  Maintenance Company Compensation Totals
Operating revenues: ) ] — T e s
Charges for services.. .$4,955,403  $1,146,327 $732,018 $997 424  $7,831,170
Ali other revenues. . - 30,181 ‘32064 107,778 16,027 186,030

Total operating revenues. .. 4,985 564 1,178,391 838,794 1,013,451 8,017,200
Operating expenses: .

Personal services....... 183,413 313,928 11,313 0 508,654

Contractual services..... e . 4,623,399 21,385 588 1,018,219 5,664,571

Maintenance and repairs... cpmam 0 205,261 579 0 205,840

Utilities o ) 433 o 1109677 850,054 0 61,583

Materials and suppiies. T 2282 T 627,221 23,341 0 573,383

Depreciation.... - 0 8,375 5,838 0 15,314
-Other..... , S 15,808 0 0 15,809
Total operating expenses....... . . 4830086 . 1,103,055 £92,814 ~ 1,019.219 7,645,154
Operating income (loss) befare operating transfers._ 155488 75,336 146,930 (5,768} 372,048
Operating transfers (ouf).... R ' {100,000) {150,000} 0 (250.000)
Net income (loss) ... e, 155,498 {24,664} (3.020) (5,768) 122,046
Retained earmings at ) o T e L : )

the beginning of year....... . 545240 98,093 252,115 1,195,501 2,090,949
Retainaed earnings at end of year......... ST—— 7]V £ T i VI 249,095 1,189,743 2,212,995
Contributed capita! at the .

beginning of the vear.... 0 18,814 0 0 18,614
Contributions during the Year......cccreeraee 0 - 0 37,800 0 37,800
Contributed capital at end of Year......c.cmmmerone . _____Q 18,614 37,800 0 _ _ 56414
Total Fund Equity at end of vear......ocoeecemreeeee .. $700,738 $82,043 $286,895 $1,189,733 $2,269.409
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CLERMONT COUNTY, CHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ALL INTERNAL SERVICES . .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 :

Self-Funded
Health Fieet Telephone Worker's
Insurance Maintenance Company Compensation Totals
Cash flows from operating activities: ] = j
Operating income (loss).. 5_155.498 ) $75,336 $146,980 {$5,768) $372,046
Adjustments to reconcite operating income 10 net cash : ’ : : - -
provided by operating activities: ) .
Depreciation. : - - .0 8,375 6,839 R 15,314
Decrease (Increase} in assets: B - T S -
Accounts receivable.. . 2,928 T 28710 5,518 o] 39,154
Increase (decrease) in Habilities: : : o T S - e )
Accournts payable . (43,879} {24,576} 328 0 {63,527}
Accrued wages and benefits , e (1,266) “18.425) - {678) 0 (10,369)
Compensated absences......v.ru.- N 0. 13,810 ~ 0 0 13,810
Intergovemmental payable.... 01,334 _ 8278 13 G 9,723
Claims payable . . 1DB 3,179 0 — 0 0 108,179
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activites 222782 58,108 163,200 ) @,7631 47@‘,330
Cash flows from noncapital activities:
Payments to other funds.. ; i 0 (100,000) {150,000) 0 {250,000}
Net cash (used for} noncapital acivities.. e O ~ {100,000} {150,000} [ (250,600}
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets... 0 {4.453) 27,397 a {31,850}
Net cash used for capital and related financing activifies. 0 (4453) (7380 0 (31,850)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents....... 222792 5,347) (14,197) {5,768) 197 480
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year......cveeeew. - 1,081,773~ 105,331 228,387 1,195,501 2,620,992
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.......oeowme— —_$1,314.565 599,084 $214190 $1185,73% 52818472
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

AGENCY FUNDS

Agency Funds are custodial in nature {assets equal liabilities} and do not purport to present the financial position
or results of operations of the related entities.

Undivided Tax Fund
This fund is used {o account for the coilection of various county taxes and the disbursement of those faxes
to County funds and subdivisions.

Political Subdivisions
This fund is used to account for funds held for other political subdivisions for which the County acts as fiscal
agent.

Other Agency Funds
This fund is used to account for miscellaneous monies coi]ected and disbursed fo other County funds, and
held on behalf of individuals and corporations.

Clermont County Court System ,
This fund is used to account for monies held by the County courts in outside checklng accounts.

Undivided Interest ) i -
This fund is used to account for the accumulation and disbursement to other County funds of investment
earnings.

General County Agency
This fund is used to account for monies held by County departments other than the courts in outside
checking accounts.
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and :
cash equivalents........cccoereeee -

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
UNDIVIDED TAX FUND
Beginning Ending
Balance - Balance
1/1/99 Additions _Deductions 12/31/98
$4,852617  $169,803,211 $168,583,033 . $6,072,785
128,512,189 145,272 516 128,512,195 145,272 516

Taxes receivable.... ceccererersrmmens

Equity in pooled cash and

o e Bk S —— - = = - = o

Total assets.... $133.364,816_ - §3T5.075£727 3’297,095.232:‘ $151,345,311
LIABILITIES: - . .

Due to other funds......cocoeeeeeee. $892,280 $483,636 $592,290 $483,636

Due to component units.............. 328,490 227,136 328,400 | 227,136

Intergovenmental payable........._ 132,444 036 314364955 206,174,452 150,634,539
Total liabilities....ccmereeeereee_$133,364,816 $315,075,727 $297,095,232 $ 151,345,311

POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS

ASSETS: ] ) .

Equity in pooled cash and _ , : - o T

cash equivalents.....c.ourrerreres ___$1.086.248 $6,003,728 $6,086,135 5'1,002%1 ;

Total assets. e ccinsinaienes ‘51.08,5&43 $6,003,728 $6,086,135 5;1,002= 1
LIABILITIES: .- : o L

Intergovemmental payable........ - $1,085248 $6,003,728 $6,086,135 $1,002,841
Total labilities. .o e crersn s corarseees $1,085,248 $6,003,728 E,O_B_@JSS' $1,002 841

OTHER AGENCY FUNDS

ASSETS:

cash equivalents.........cocecevssrens p385,315 108,548,480 $105,448.628 $494 177
Total assets..... $395315 _ $109,548490 . $105,449,628 $494,177
LIABILITIES:

Intergovemnmental payable.......... . 8346 .. %0 _ $348 $0
Other lizbilities. ... vcicrnivcemranans, 394,969 109,548,490 108,449,282 494 177
Total Yiabilities. $395,315  _ $109,548490 _ $109,449,628 $494,177
CLERMONT COUNTY COURT SYSTEM
ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and . o
cash equivalents.......ccocccpmeeeen. 51,825,764 $22,882,089 $22,994,584 $1,713,269
Cash equivalents in '

segregated aCCoUNtS.....oarereenes o 50,962 45,583 50,962 45 583
Total AasSets.. ..o et e $1,876,726 ~ $22027 672 $23,045,546 $1,758.852
LIABILITIES: . - ) )

Due to other funds.....ccmeceeeeceee, $158,283 $15,583 $15,283 $15,563
Intergovernmental payable.......... 478,362 226,433 478,362 226,433
Other liabiliiBs.....uvosverccnmrmersieees — 1,378,081 22,685,656 1,516,836
Total Habiities.......urmeremissseeremn, — 31,876,726 352,021 612 $1,758.852
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

UNDIVIDED INTEREST

Ending

Beginning
Balance - o Balance
1/1/99 Additions . Deductions 12/31/99
ASSETS: ) )
Equity in pooled cash and : ; ~
cash equivalents......... ernsmmarensees _$218,098 $3,932,522 $3,954,557 $196,163
Due from other govemnments......... 0 568 9 . 568
Total asSetS. .o oo ceereeeamme e, $218,008 _$3.933.190 $3.954.557 $196.731
LIABILITIES: :
Due to other funds....ceceeeee - $216,5086 $196,731 $218,508 . $198,731
Other Babilities. ... eerrmerarnenes } 1,592 3,736,459 3,738,051 0
Total liabilities........comesssisicnniniin $218,098 $3,933,190 $3,954,557 $196,731
GENERAL COUNTY AGENCY
ASSETS:
Cash equivalents in
segregated accounts......cveverens $243,195 $1,058,311 $243,195 $1,058,311
Cash with fiscal and
ESCIOW BGENS..cooe s rreaeramaseeas 156416 . 840,734 158,416 540,734
Total assefs....cveeceeemrerr e, $399,611 $1,605,045 $399,611 __ . $1,658,045
LIABILITIES: - o -
Due to other funds......oamee - $22,205 $58,531 $22,205 $58,531
Other liabilities.......... e — 377,406 1,640,514 377,406 _ 1,840,514
Total fiabilities.. e arcnnnimn, $399,611 $1,609,045. $389,611 $1,699,045
TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS:
Equity in pooled cash and
cash equivalents.....ceeieenes .$8,377,042 $312,170,140 $311,067,937 $0,479,245
Cash equivalents in
segregated acCoOUNtS...ooovmvemceae 294,157 1,103,894 294,157 1,103,854
Cash with fiscal and ’
BSCTOW agen{S...eere criinsininnne 156,416 T 640,734 156,416 640,734
Taxes receivable....ceiieenee e, 128,512,198 145,272,516 128,512,199 145,272,516
Due from other govemments 0 568 ] .0 568
Total assets..cnircarrrenns $1 37.339,814 $459,187.852  $440,030,709 $1 56,496 957
LIABILITIES: ) :
Intergovernmental payable.......... $134,007,992 $320,595,1186 $302,739,295 $151,863,813
Due to other funds....cew o, 850,284 754,481 . B50,284 © 754,481
Pue to component unitS.......e. 328,450 227,138 _ 328,480 227,136
_ Other liabilities......ocureriorivirissnan 2,153,048 137611118 136,112,640 3,651,527
Total liabilities....o.ccueeereaesecmoees $137,339,814 $459,187,852 $440,030,709 $156,496,857

183



CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO

GENERAL FEXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

This account group is used to present the general fixed assets of the County utilized in its general operations,
exclusive of those used in Proprietary Funds. .
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CLERMONT COUNTY, CHIO
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED
ASSETS BY SOURCES
DECEMBER 31, 1998

General Fixed Assets:

Land $1,403,698
Building, structures, and improvements 31,869,627
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 17,104,377
Construction in progress 17,169,322
Total Genera! Fixed Assets $67,547,024

Investment in General Fixed Assets from:

General fund revenues $27,932,563
Special revenue fund revenues 6,926,297
Capital projects | 31,503,940
Donations 1,184,224

Total Investment in General Fixed Assets . $67.547.024
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CLERMONT COUNTY, OHID
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
BY FUNCTION
DECEMBER 31, 1999

Buildings, Fumiture,
and Building Fixtures and Construction
Function Land Improvements __ Equipment  _in Progress Total _
General Government-

Legistative and executive $1,081,017 §15,000,597 $6,417.516 50 522,499,130
General Government- .

Judiclal 0 205,790 © 1,136,344 0 1,342,134
Public safety 192,028 10,845,851 2,817,080 0 13,854,960
Public works 110,652 270,113 3,476,558 0 3,857,323
Health 20,000 105,906 34,748 0 160,654
Human Services 0 5,441,370 1,743,564 o] ) 7,184,934
Transportation 0 0 1,449,329 1,449,329
Community Development 0 4] 20,235 g 29,238
Consfruction in progress o . .0 0 17,169,322 17,169,322
Total General Fixed Assets $1.403,698 $31,869,627 $17,104 377 $17,169,322 367,547,024

CLERMONT COUNTY, OHIO
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED
ASSETS BY FUNCTION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998
Reclass
Balance Between Balance
Fungtion_ Jan 1, 1999 Functions _Additions Disposals Dec 31, 1999
General Government-

Legislative and executive $22,132,729 $0 $757,785 $391,384 $22,499,130
General Government-

Judicial 1,287,670 0 182,975 128,511 1,342,134

Public Safety 13,730,808 B 0 322,080 197,898 13,854,960

Public Works 3,872,769 0 147,684 163,130 3,857,323

Heaith 161,157 Ly 0 503 160,654

Human Services 7,189,114 1] 113,018 117,198 7,184,934

Transportation D 1.314,281 227,293 92245 1,449,329

Community Develapment 1,341,111 {1,314,281) 6,844 4,436 29,238

Construction in progress 12,274 652 . 0 ___ 4.8%4670 ) 0 17,168,322
Total General Fixed Assets $61,990,010 $0 $6.652.320 $1.095.308 $67.547,024
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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Table 6
Clermont County
Special Assessment Billings and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total Total
Fiscal Assessment Assessments
Year Billings __Collected
1890 $400, 1 43 $369,221
1891 404,715 373,189
1992 414,238 381,199
1893 425,360 341,560
1994 362,888 349,132
1985 309,588 295 433
1996 266,785 238,332
1997 427,400 261,436
1998 660,584 427,187
1999 451,843 440,008

Source: Clermont County Auditor
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Table 8
Clermont County, Ohio
Statement of Legal Debt Margin
December 31, 1999

Direct legal debt limitation (1):
3.0% of the first $100,000,000 Assessed Valuation £3,000,000
1.5% on excess of $100,000,000-not in excess of $300,000,000 3,000,000
2.5% on the amount in excess of $300,000,000 - 75,657,650
" Total direct legal debt limitation (2} 81,657,650

Total of all county debt cutstanding(3) $130,817,274

Less:
Special Assessment Bonds (self supporting)(4) $3,367,000
Mortgage Revenue Bonds 94,285,000
Other exempt debt:
1892 Correctional Facility 5,030,000
1993 Building, Road Improvement and Refunding 13,400,000 : ,
Total exempt debt: 116,082,000

Less:
Available funds in debt service funds as of
December 31, 1989 : - : - 179,783

Total net indebtedness (voted and unvoted) subject to
direct debt limitation 14,555,491

Direct Legal Debt Margin : $67,102,159

Unvoted debt limitation (subject to 1% of County assessed valuation) $33,263,060
Total Net indebtedness (unvoted-subject to the 1% legal debt limitation) 14555481 =~
Total unvoted legal debt margin: $18,707,569

{1) Direct legal debt limitation is outlined by the Ohio Revised Code, 133.01 and 133.07

{2) Refer to "Table & - Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property" in this section.

(3) Total debt outstanding does not include enterprise fund long-term note obligation payable to the Ohio Water
Development Authority and the Chio Public Works Commission. These obligations are disclosed in
"Note L - Long-Term Bebt and Other Obligations” in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

{4) Refer to "Note L - Long-Term Debt and Other Obligations" in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Source: Clermont County Auditor
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Table 9
Clermont County, Ohio
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments (1)
Per $1000 of Assessed Value
Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 1998

County Entities 1990 1991 1992 1893 _ 1984 1995 _ 1996 1997 1998 1998
General 2.20 220 2.20 220 220 220 220 210 210 2.10
Senior Services 1.00 1.00 1.00 .1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Bd of Mental Retardation 250 250 325 325  3.25 325 3.25 3.25 3.25 325

Comm Mental Health Board 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 | 0.50 0.50 050 0.50 0.50 ‘0.50
Building Construction ’

Children Services 0.80 0.80 0.80 080  0.80 0.80 .80 c.&80  oso 0.80

Communications Building S

Hospital Bond R

Retarded Schoo! Bond

Courthouse-Admin. Bldg 0.90 0.90 0.90 - __ -

County Capital Construction o 090 090 _ 090 680 . 100 1.00 1.00

Total County Entities 7.90 7.90 8.65 865 8.65 8.65 8.65 8.65 8.65 8.65
Other Entities )

Park District 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.1 010 0.10 0.10 0.1¢ 0.10

Clermont Cty. Pub. Library 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50 _. 0,50 0.50 0.50 0.50 D50 . DJSO

Total Other Entities 060 __ 060 _ 060 _ 0B0.__ 060 _ 960 _ 0BD _ Q.60 g,sg_,, _..0860 60

Total County-Wide 8.50 8.50 8.25 925 _ 925 _ 9.25 9.25 9.25 9.25 825

School Districts

Batavia 3520 4270 4270 4270 49.00 49.00 4840 4840 4840 4840
Bethel-Tate 3430 3430 3430 3410 3410 3410 3370 3370 3370 3854
Clermant-Northeastern 3750 37.50 3720 3680 3690 3690 36.00 3650 3650  36.50
Felicity-Franklin 31.70  31.70 3180 3130 3130 3466 3330 3330 3330  33.30
Goshen 3040 30.40 3040 3040 3040 3040 3040 26140 26.40  30.40
Milford 5190 51.90 51.90 5750 57.50 57.50 5452 5910 5910  59.10 -
New Richmond 33.90 33.90 3260 3260 3260 3260 3240 3240 3245 3245
West Clermont 4070 4070 4070 4070 49.45 4945 4915 4015 4915  49.15
Williamsburg 3280 33.00 4250 4250 41.80 = 47.80 4560 4560 4560  45.80

U. S. Grant Vocational 4.30 4.30 420 420 420 410 410 410 410 410

(1) Property tax rates are determined by a combination of the county- wide
tax rate and the applicable tax rates for the school district, township,
municipatity or other districts in which a given property is located

Source: Clermont County Auditor
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East Fork Jnt, Amb.

196

Out-Of-County School Districts 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999
Blanchester 35.20 35.00 34.40 34.15 33.80 33.890 33.45 3345 3345 35.04
Forest Hills 42.99 4273 42.63 42.51 48.98 4870 5084 5084 5084  50.63
Great Oaks Vocational 270 270 270 270 270 2.70 2.70 270 270 2.70
Little Miami 37.94 37.94 44.84 44 .39 43.04 42.79 42,54 4775 46.98 45,44
Loveland 50.60 5668 56.60. 55.83 5527 54.58 59.68 58.12 6375 63.33
Southem Hills Vocationat 330 5.90 6.00 ° 590 _ 580 5.80 5.80 5.80 580 . _.5.80
Warren County Vocational 4 .50 4.50 450 . 450 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50
Westem Brown 23.40 23.40 21.40 1940 = 19.40 ' 19.40 19.40 2480 2480 24680

Cormporations )

Amelia 16.70 15.30 15.30 17.30 17.30  118.80 18.80 1880 17.80 18.90
Batavia 3.50 4.60 4.60 5.680 560 6.80 6.50 6.50 6.50 6.50
Bethel 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00° 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
Chilo 2.50 250.. 250 250 2.50 250 250 250 250 @ 250
Felicity 8.00 9.00 8.00 o0 " 2.00 8o 800 8000 900 0 900
Milford 14.80 14.80 14.80 14.80 14.80 14.80 14.30 1430 14.230 14.30
Mascow 2.50 2.50 3.50 250 250 2.50 4.54 454 454 4.54
Neville 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 250 . 250. 250 ..250 ‘250 2.50
MNew Richmond 13.70 13.70 10.40 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00
Newtonsvilfe 2.60 260 260 . 260 280 _ 280 260 260 . 260 260
Owensville 11.10 11.10 11.10 11.10 11.10 14.10 14.10 1410 14.10 14,10
Williamsburg 6.80 6.80 6.80 6.80 B880. . 6280 6.80 6.80 6.80 6.80
Out-Of-County Corporations

Loveland 8.87 9.67 9.67 9.93 891 2.91 a.55 9.55 955 9.55

Townships
Batavia 6.90 690 . 690 690 6.90 6.90 6.90. 6.90 680 . 690
Frankiin 9.20 9.20 920 8.20 920. . 820 _ 920 920 920 . 920
Goshen 16.60 16.60 17.60 17.60 17.60 17.60 17.60 17.60 17.60 17.60
Jackson 8.40 8.40 840 840 8.40 . 8.40 8.40 840 1040 _10.40
Miami 17.10 17.10 17.10 17.10 1740 ~18.60 22 11 2211 2211 22.11
Monroe 10.60 10.60 10.60 10.60 10.60 1060 © 10.680. 16.60 16.60 10.60
Ohio 4,60 4,60 6.60 6.60 860 880 8.60 860  8.80... B850
Pierce 10.80 1080 _ 11.30 11.30 11.30 11.30 1330 1400 1400 14.00
Stonelick 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10 8.10 810 10.60 10.60
Tate 570 8.70 8.70 B8.70 8.70 870 870 8.70 8.70 8.70
Union 13.60 15.50 15.50 1550 .. 15.50 17.40 17.40 1740 1740 17.40
Washington 7.20 7.20 7.20 720 720 7.20 7.20 7.20 ?20 7.20
Wayne 7.70 T30 7.70 8.70 8.70 B8.70 8.70 870 10.70 10.70
Williamsburg 5.60 5.60 560 .490 .. 580 5.80 5.80 5.80 580 8.70

Other Districts _

Bethel-Tate Jnt. Amb. 3.30. 3.30 330 —330 7 330 ' 330 0 530 5.30 8.60 . 6.80,



Table 10

Clermont County, Ohio

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
December 31, 1999

Percentage
General Obligation Applicable
Political Subdivision Debt (1) To County (2)
Clermont County $31,825,000 100.00%
Cities with overlapping
City of Loveland 5,085,000 12.73
City of Milford 3,805,000 . 98.59
Villages wholly within County 1,164,000 100.00
Townships wholly within County 772,000 100.00
School Districts wholly within 26,984,701 100.00
County
School Districts with overiapping
Bethel-Tate Local S. D. _ 6,535,500 99.75
Blanchester Local 8. D. 5,263,527 15.16
Clermont Northeastern Local 8. D. 5,170,600 99.65
Forest Hills L.ocal S. D. 24,945,000 0.01
Goshen Local S. D. 483,000 90.72
Loveland City S. D. 44,485,734 41.11
Little Miami Local S. D. 17,219,810 025
Milford Exempted Village S. D. 72,800 99.75
Western Brown Local S. D. 6,975,080 o.M
Williamsburg Local S, D. 3,890,000 . 89920
Great Oaks J. V. S. D. 0 10.24
Southern Hills J. V. 8. D. 100,000 0.01
Warren County J.V.S5.D. 0 0.03
U.S. Grant J. V. S.D. 0 99.89
$184,766,152

Total

{1} Includes general obligation debt which is being
repaid through general property taxes.

(2) Percent applicabie to Clermont County calculated using
assessed valuation of taxing district in Clermont County

divided by {otal assessed valuation of taxing district.
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Amount
Applicable
To Clermont
County

$31,825,000

647,321
3,751,350

1,164,000
772,000

26,984,701

6,519,161
796,435
5,151,905
2,495
438,178
18,288,085
43,050
72,618
698
3,858,880
0

10

0

0

$100,315,884
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Table 12
Clermont County
Demographic Statistics and Average
Unemployment Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per K-12
Fiscal Capita Median School

Year Population (1) income (1) Age (1) Enroliment {2)
1990 150,187 15,974 31.10 31,796
1991 150,187 16,974 31.10 31,145
1992 155,820 13,700 31.75 31,145
1993 158,190 14,030 32.05 31,145
1994 164,050 ' 13,781 32.46 28,616
1995 166,860 18,854 32.79 28,753
1996 170,450 18,349 32.93 28,874
1997 172,010 19,290 33.27 28,739
1998 174,320 22,630 33.52 ) 28,384
1999 175,960 24,742 33.66 28,363

Average Unemployment Rates (3)

Fiscal

Year Clermont County State of Ohio  United States
1990 6.4 6.4 6.4
1991 6.0 6.4 6.7
1992 6.8 - 7.2 7.4
1993 5.1 6.5 6.4
1994 5.1 5.5 6.1
1995 43 _ 4.8 B 5.6
1996 4.2 4.8 5.0
1997 4.1 4.6 4.9
1998 3.5 T 43 4.5
1999 3.7 4.3 4.2

Sources: (1} Clermont Chamber of Commerce
(2) Clermont County Board of Education
{3) Ohio Bureau of Employment Services
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Table 15
Clermont County, Ohio
Principal Property Taxpayers

December 31, 1999

Real Personal
Estate Property Total Percentage of
Assessed Assessed Assessed Total Assessed
Taxpayers Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation

Cinergy Corporation $39,935,650 . $343,876,880 $383,812,530 12.50%

Dayton Power & Light 16,474,130 97,660,210 114,134,340 3.72%

Columbus & Southemn 12,397,460 81,277,080 93,674,540 3.05%

Ford Motor Company 13,547,760 23,180,340 36,728,100 1.20%

Cinti Bell Telephone 809,250 28,126,870 29,936,120 0.97%

Cincinnati Milacron 3,777,160 22,756,710 26,533,870 0.86%

Eastgate Company 22,904,340 38,510 22,942,850 0.75%

Duke Realty 12,116,930 4,010 12,120,940 0.39%

U.S. Precision Lens 1,998,780 9,481,214 11,479,994 0.37%
Ohio Valley Electric 147,270 9,610,630 9,757,900 . 0.32%

Totals $124,108,730 $617,012,454 $741,121,184 24.13%

Source: Clermont County Auditor
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- Table 16
Clermont County, Ohio

Ten Largest Employers
December 31, 1999

Firm

Cinergy Company (Greater Cincinnati)
Cincinnati Bell Telephone - (Greater Cincinnati)
Cincinnati Milacron

Clermont County

Ford Motor Company

Structural Dynamics Research Corp

U. S. Precision Lens

West Clermont Local School District

Clermont Mercy Hospital

Milford Exempted Village School District

Source: Clermont County Chamber of Commerce
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Number
of

Emgloxee_s _
4,645

2,700
1,400
1,299
1,275
1,200
1,000

756

700

600



Table 17
Clermont County
Salaries of Principal Officials
December 31, 1999

Elected Officials

Office L=  Salary
County Commissioners (3) $49,714
Auditor 56,263
Clerk of Courts 59,029
Coroner 38,747
Engineer 74,918
Prosecuting Attorney _ 54,891
Recorder 43,591
Sheriff : o . Co 60,768
Treasurer . 47,223

Appointed Qfficials . i -

Executive Director :

Clermont County Community Mental Health Board $72,951
Superintendent of

Clermont County Board of Mental Retardation 99,179
Director

Clermont County Human Services . . 79,920

County Administrator

Board of County Commissioners - . 102,924
Sanitary Engineer -
Sewer District 30,000
Commissioner

Clermont County Health District 68,662
Director, Board of Elections 40,000
Director, Veterans Services : 33,651

Source: Clermont County Auditor
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Table 18
Clermont County

Surety Bond Coverage-Various Officials

Office
Auditor
Clerk of Courts
Coroner
County Commissioners (3)
Engineer
Prosecuting Attorney
Recorder
Sheriff

Treasurer

December 31, 1999

Source: Clermont County Auditor
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Bond Goverage

$100,000
40,000
14,000
14,000
- 10,000
66,000
14,000
68,000

100,000



Clermont County, Ohio
Miscellaneous Statistics

Form of Government: (1)
Board of County Commissioners
County Seat: Batavia, Ohio
Area: 470 Square Miles

Land Use: (1)
Urban 65%
Agriculture 22%
Other 13%

Libraries: {1}

Clermont County Public Library
10 Branches

Medical Care: (2)

Hospitals in County 1

Beds 157
Physicians 263
Nursing Homes 17
Beds 948 .

Communications, Glermont County: (1)
Radic Stations 2
Weekiy County Newspapers 2
Weekly Community Newspapers 3

State Parks: (1)

Facilities 2
Acreage 1,644

Sources: (1} Clermont County Auditor
{2) Ohio Data Users Center

December 31, 1998

Population (3) - 175,960

1980 - 1997 Growth Rate: 1.73%

1887 - 2005 Growth Rate Estimate: 1.77%*

*3rd in Growth for Ohio Counties

fndustries: (3)

No. of
Industry Workers
Farming 1,020
Agricultural sesvices, other 1,230
Mining S0
Construction 6,180
Manufacturing 8,350
Transportation, Communications
and Public Utility 2,620
Wholesale trade 3,700
Retail trade 15,220
Finance, Insurance and
= Real Estate 6,020
Services 17,850
- Federzl Civilian Government 310
Federat Military 450

State and Local Government 6,690

Transportation: (2)

Highways:
Amount Miles

U. 8. Routes 3 45
State Routes 17 208
Interstate Routes . 1 14

Railroads:

_RR Lines through County 2
Air: ' '

Commercial Airports;
Greater Cincinnati Intermnational
30 miles from Batavia

Ciermont County Airport
Daily Arrivals/Departures 80
Number of Runways el

(3) Clermont Chamber of Commerce
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88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140
Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

CLERMONT COUNTY FINANCIAL CONDITION

CLERMONT COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
Thisis atrue and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desan Poubbitt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
JULY 13, 2000
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